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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DA ER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. ZOU Gebing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. ZENG Jin
Mr. SHEN Zhidong
Mr. WU Yueming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Haifeng

Mr. PANG Wing Hong (appointed on 12 April 2019)
Mr. CHU Guodi (appointed on 28 May 2019)

Mr. SHAO Shaomin (resigned on 12 April 2019)

Mr. HUANG Wenli (resigned on 28 May 2019)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. PANG Wing Hong

(Chairman, appointed on 12 April 2019)
Mr. LIU Haifeng
Mr. CHU Guodi (appointed on 28 May 2019)
Mr. SHAO Shaomin

(Chairman, resigned on 12 April 2019)
Mr. HUANG Wenli (resigned on 28 May 2019)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. CHU Guodi
(Chairman, appointed on 28 May 2019)
Mr. LIU Haifeng
Mr. PANG Wing Hong (appointed on 12 April 2019)
Mr. HUANG Wenli
(Chairman, resigned on 28 May 2019)
Mr. SHAO Shaomin (resigned on 12 April 2019)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
RNEEH (FE)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LIU Haifeng (Chairman)

Mr. PANG Wing Hong (appointed on 12 April 2019)
Mr. CHU Guodi (appointed on 28 May 2019)

Mr. SHAO Shaomin (resigned on 12 April 2019)

Mr. HUANG Wenli (resigned on 28 May 2019)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAM Hoi Lun (appointed on 1 September 2019)
Ms. HO Ka Yan (resigned on 28 February 2019)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. WU Yueming (appointed on 28 February 2019)
Mr. LAM Hoi Lun (appointed on 1 September 2019)
Mr. SHEN Zhidong (resigned on 1 September 2019)

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
(appointed on 21 May 2019)
Ernst & Young
(resigned on 21 May 2019)

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
DNEEH (&)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS IN THE PRC

No. 500 Youquan Road
Haining Economic Development Zone
Zhejiang Province, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 2001, 20/F, Citicorp Centre,
18 Whitfield Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Citibank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Bank of Jiaxing

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Taishin International Bank

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

STOCK CODE

1575

WEBSITE

www.morrisholdings.com.hk
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Revenue decreased by approximately 39.1% to approximately
RMB980.3 million in 2019 (2018: approximately RMB1,610.0

million)

Gross profit decreased by approximately 75.9% to
approximately RMB103.1 million in 2019 (2018: approximately
RMB428.0 million)

Loss for the year was approximately RMB140.7 million in 2019 as
compared with profit for the year of approximately RMB86.4
million in 2018

Basic loss per share was approximately RMB14.07 cents in
2019 as compared with basic earnings per share of
approximately RMB8.64 cents in 2018

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend
(2018: HK1.3 cents) for the year ended 31 December 2019
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Morris Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2019 or the “Reporting
Period”) to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

2019 was a very challenging year for the Group as we experienced
increasing pressure from the trade-war between China and the US.
To mitigate the US market risks, with hard efforts and strong
execution of the management, our Group has successfully developed
other markets. The Group will put more efforts in developing other
matured and stable furniture markets so that our business will be
better positioned avoiding concentrated country risks and benefit

from the long-term global consumption growth.

Since our Group’s listing on the Main Board of The Hong Kong Stock
Exchange Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in 2017, we accelerated
the pace of development of our retail business and establishment of
our own brand. The determination to create a valuable and strong
retail furniture brand is the long-term aim of the Group, and we will
cautiously deploy resources during the uncertain times to develop our

presence and enhance our brand image.

Product is the key to the long-term success of our business, and
“Exquisite” product is the main theme for 2019 and years to come.
We have devoted more time and effort to improve our product
quality and style, to enhance the product value for our consumers.
With our continuous focus on the R&D, we have received high
technology enterprise recognition, and our research house has been
awarded as the provincial level research center. We are looking
forward to reaching more and more achievements with the aim to

bring better products to customers.
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OUTLOOK

We expect to be faced with more challenges and opportunities in
2020. As a result, we will keep a close watch on the development of
the situation, continue to refine our management and make timely

adjustments to our operation and sales strategies.

Looking forward to 2020, | will continue to lead all staff of the Group
to step onto the international stage and develop our self-owned
brands, aiming at becoming a well-known furniture brand enterprise

in the world.

Zou Gebing
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 8 May 2020
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zou Gebing, aged 43, is the chairman and CEO of the Group
and was appointed as an executive Director on 18 March 2016. He is
responsible for overseeing and mapping the Group's growth strategy

and overall management.

Prior to joining the Group, he was the marketing and development
manager in Zhejiang Kasen Industrial Group Co., Ltd., and was
deputy general manager in Hongyang Group Co., Ltd., from July
1997 to March 2000 and from May 2000 to March 2002,
respectively, and had been mainly responsible for exploration and
development of overseas markets of sofas and other furniture. He
joined Morris Group Co., Ltd. (“Morris PRC") as part of its
management team in May 2002, served as its vice chairman and
general manager since February 2005, and became the chairman of
Morris PRC in January 2012.

Mr. Zou obtained a bachelor’s degree in English from Shanghai
International Studies University in the PRC in July 1997 and a master’s
degree in business administration for senior management from
Zhejiang University in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") in
March 2007. He had also served as a corporate tutor for MBA
postgraduates in the Management School of Zhejiang University from
April 2007 to March 2012. Mr. Zou was accredited as a senior
economist by the Senior Economist Qualification Committee of
Zhejiang Province in December 2007.

With over 18 years of industry experience as mentioned above, Mr.
Zou is an experienced entrepreneur in furniture manufacturing

related businesses.

Mr. Zou's spouse, Ms. Wu Xiangfei (one of the controlling

shareholders of the Company), is a cousin of Mr. Shen’s spouse.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EESLaREEERE (&)

Mr. Zeng Jin, aged 46, is the senior vice president and head of
production and quality management of the Group and was
appointed as an executive Director on 18 March 2016. He is
responsible for overseeing production planning and manufacturing
and quality management the Group. He has extensive experience in

production and quality management.

Prior to joining the Group, he had worked as a technician in Shanghai
Hongdun Anti-Counterfeit Material Co., Ltd. from August 1997 to
May 1998. He had then worked at Uniplas (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. from
May 1998 to September 2000. He then subsequently worked as a
quality engineer at Krone Communications (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. from
September 2000 to November 2001. He had then been employed as
a plant manager assistant and manager in the engineering
department of Shanghai Trayton Furniture Co., Ltd. from November
2001 to January 2005. He then joined Morris PRC and was appointed
as a general manager assistant in January 2005 and then as a deputy
general manager in November 2011. He was then employed by the
Group as a senior vice president and the head of production and
quality management immediately after completion of the business

transfer in December 2015.

Mr. Zeng obtained his double bachelor’s degrees in polymer science
and computer software from the East China University of Science and
Technology in Shanghai, PRC in July 1997 and a master of Business
Administration degree from Donghua University in Shanghai, PRC in
June 2008.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESLaREEERE (&)

Mr. Shen Zhidong, aged 45, is a senior vice president of the Group
and was appointed as an executive Director on 6 July 2017. He is also
a director of Masia Industries Limited, a subsidiary of the Company in
Cambodia. Mr. Shen is the head of administrative operations and

human resources matters of the Group.

Mr. Shen had served in the government sectors in Haining for over
ten years. From February 1999 to June 2010, Mr. Shen had served in
the Organization Department of Haining Municipal Committee of the
Communist Party of China in many positions including, among
others, as a section member, a deputy section leader, a section
leader, a committee member and a deputy bureau level coordinator.
From June 2010 to January 2014, Mr. Shen served as the deputy
director of the General Office of the People’s Government of Haining.
In January 2014, Mr. Shen was employed by Morris PRC as its vice
president. He was employed by the Group as the senior vice president
immediately after completion of the transfer of the furniture division
of Morris PRC to the Group in December 2015.

Mr. Shen graduated from the Party School Open College of the
Central Committee of the Communist Party of China in the study of

economic management in December 2002.

Mr. Shen’s spouse is a cousin of Ms. Wu Xiangfei, one of the

controlling shareholders of the Company and the spouse of Mr. Zou.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EESLaREEERE (&)

Mr. Wu Yueming, aged 36, is the general manager of the
administrative department of the Company and was appointed as an
executive Director on 6 June 2018. He is mainly responsible for
coordinating and managing back office support works and public
relations of the Company. He is also a director of Zhejiang Apollo
Leather Products Co., Ltd. and Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Co.,
Ltd., each a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Wu joined Morris PRC in
2005 where he worked as a technician of semi-finished sofa
production. He was subsequently promoted to manager of the
logistics department in September 2010, deputy office director in
April 2012 and standing deputy office director in August 2014 at
Morris PRC. He was then employed as the general manager of the
administrative department of the Company in January 2017. He
obtained the qualification of assistant economist issued by the
Haining City Human Resources and Social Security Bureau in
November 2014. He also obtained the graduation certificate from the
Normal College of the Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
in administration management through distance learning in July
2016.

KRABEXE 365 BARRTHIR
EIE - R2018F6 HoHEZRERHMITE
E-REFZAERAREEARAR N
REZBRIERARABINAKBIE - ®IF
BT EZEE SRBBRAG RTTIE
AEHNREERATNES  ZMKXAF
BHEAEARTHNKBRAR o« RIEERN2005
FEMARDRELETEXRDEEER
T8 - MEEEN2010F9 8 B AE AT
B mEbasE - M2012F4ABFHARA
ZRIFERR2014F8AEABMAET
BRIET - HHR2017F1 AT B ARRF
T EF R AT o N 201411 AERE
EHANERMASRERBBEEOHIIEL
BEENERE - MEBBEREEEN201657A
ERLHGEABLEBSSTEREFTITRE
BEEMNEEZE o

HAERAR AR 2019 F3R 11



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESLaREEERE (&)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Haifeng, aged 45, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 6 July 2017 and is mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board. He is
also the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of
each of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Liu has been a tutor to master students in public administration
of faculties of humanities of Donghua University since 2011 and a
deputy manager of Donghua University Master of Public

Administration Center since September 2014.

Mr. Liu obtained his master degree in education from Shanghai
Normal University in June 2004. Mr. Liu later obtained his doctoral
degree in management science and engineering from Donghua
University School of Business and Management in June 2009. He
then later completed his postdoctoral study in applied economics at
Fudan University and obtained his certificate of postdoctoral in May
2014.

Mr. Pang Wing Hong, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 12 April 2019 and is mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board. He is
also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of each of
the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. He has
over 20 years of experience in financial management, accounting,
auditing and corporate finance. He obtained a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree, majoring in professional accountancy, from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1994 and a Master of
Business Administration degree from the University of Adelaide,
Australia in 2008. He has been an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 1998 and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
since 2002. Mr. Pang has been the chief financial officer of Miko
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1247), a company listed
on the Stock Exchange since October 2015. From April 2015 to
October 2015, Mr. Pang was the chief financial officer of China
Green (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 904), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EESLaREEERE (&)

Mr. Chu Guodi, aged 41, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 28 May 2019 and is mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board. He is
also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
each of the Nomination Committee and Audit Committee. He has
over 17 years of experience as a practicing lawyer in China. He is
currently a partner of #L/GEMMEFT (Zhejiang Haixiang Law
Firm*). Mr. Chu has been an independent director of /T ZE &=
Z 2R AR AT (Zhejiang Huatie Construction Safety Science
And Technology Co., Ltd.*), a company listed on Shanghai Stock
Exchange with a stock code of 603300, since June 2014 and an
independent director of SLBEHLIRHBPRAF] (Brother Enterprises
Holding Co., Ltd.*), a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange
with a stock code of 002562, since April 2017.

Mr. Chu is a member of FEL2EZERHE (All-China Lawyers’

Association*). He graduated from Zhejiang University with a bachelor

degree of law.

*  For reference only
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESLaREEERE (&)

Mr. Shao Shaomin, aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 December 2016 and resigned on 12
April 2019. He is mainly responsible for supervising and providing
independent judgment to the Board. He is also the chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of each of the Remuneration and

Nomination Committees.

Mr. Shao acted as a deputy county chief of Deging County of
Zhejiang Province, a deputy chief of the Issuance and Listing
Department of Zhejiang Securities and Futures Management Office
and the head of the Listed Company Supervision Department and
Inspection Department of Zhejiang Supervision Bureau of China

Securities Regulatory Commission.

Mr. Shao graduated from Zhejiang University in the PRC with a
doctoral degree in Economics in June 2004. Mr. Shao received
independent director training in Shanghai National Accounting
Institute in the PRC in December 2008. Mr. Shao was designated as a
senior accountant by the Senior Accounting Professional Assessment
Committee of Zhejiang Province in December 1998 and was admitted
as a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in December 2009. Mr. Shao was also appointed
as an accredited arbitrator in Hangzhou Arbitration Commission in
June 2013.

Mr. Shao's positions in other companies include (i) vice president and
director in Cosmos Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 002133, SZSE); and
(i) independent director in Yinlun Co., Ltd., Zhejiang China Light &
Textile Industrial City Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600790, SSE) and
Nanfang Zhongjin Environment Co., Ltd (stock code: 300145, SZSE).
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EESLaREEERE (&)

Mr. Huang Wenli, aged 38, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 10 December 2016 and resigned on 28 May
2019. He is mainly responsible for supervising and providing
independent judgment to the Board. He is also the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and a member of each of the audit committee of the
Company (the “Audit Committee”) and nomination committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”).

Mr. Huang was appointed as a researcher at the China University of
Finance and Economics in June 2016. Mr. Huang received his
doctorate in Mathematics from Zhejiang University in June 2011 and
became a postdoctoral researcher at the China University of Science
and Technology in Anhui Province in December 2011. During the
period, Mr. Huang received the second prize of China Postdoctoral
Science Fund. From August 2013 to September 2015, Mr. Huang is a

visiting scholar at the Columbia Business School.

Based on his education background and research experience, Mr.
Huang possesses the requisite knowledge relating to finance, risk

control and China economy.

Mr. Huang’s positions in other companies include independent
director in Jiangsu China Star New Materials Technology Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 836256, National Equities Exchange and Quotations,
China ("NEEQ")), Zhejiang Jinghua Laser Technology Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 603607, Shanghai Stock Exchange, China (“SSE")), Zhejiang
Tailin BioEngineering Co.,Ltd (stock code: 833327, Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, China (“SZSE")) and Beijing Xinxiang Weichuang Sci&Tech
Co., Ltd (stock code: 833554, NEEQ).
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESLaREEERE (&)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Peng Yuling, aged 56, was appointed as the chief financial
officer of the Group on 31 December 2015. She is responsible for
managing the financial operations and accounting functions of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Peng served as a finance
manager, a deputy general manager and a director at Haining
Jisheng Textile Co., Ltd. from February 1994 to November 2001. Ms.
Peng then subsequently served as a deputy finance manager and a
director at Zhejiang Jianshi Industry Co., Ltd. and a deputy general
manager and a director at Haining Jishun Garments Co., Ltd., from
December 2001 to December 2005 and from December 2006 to
January 2012, respectively. Ms. Peng joined Morris PRC as the chief
financial officer in February 2012 and was employed by the Group as
the chief financial officer immediately after completion of the
business transfer in December 2015. Ms. Peng graduated from the
Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of
China in the PRC in the study of Economic Management in December
2000. She was accredited as a senior accountant by the Assessment
Committee of Senior Accountant Qualification of Zhejiang Province
in December 2003.

Ms. Shen Jiangping, aged 46, was appointed as the director of
human resources of the Group on 31 December 2015. She is
responsible for overseeing recruitment, staff training, reward
management and human resources matters of the Group. Ms. Shen
joined Morris PRC in October 2001 and worked at the human
resources department of Morris PRC. Ms. Shen was then promoted
to deputy manager and manager in the human resources department
of Morris PRC in April 2002 and December 2011, respectively. Ms.
Shen was subsequently appointed as manager in the finance
department of Morris PRC in June 2014. Ms. Shen was employed by
the Group as the director of human resources immediately after
completion of the business transfer in December 2015. Ms. Shen
completed a three year program in accounting at the School of
Distance Learning of Zhejiang University in the PRC in June 2007. Ms.
Shen was accredited as a first level corporate human resources
professional by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security
of the PRC in December 2010.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR D

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the 2019 financial year, the Group continued to develop new
markets and invest in product design and research and development,
and establishment and expansion of sales channels. However, due to
the escalation of the Sino-US trade war, the Group's revenue
decreased from approximately RMB1,610.0 million in 2018 to
approximately RMB980.3 million in 2019, representing a decrease of
approximately 39.1%. Loss for the year was approximately RMB140.7
million in 2019, as compared with profit for the year of
approximately RMB86.4 million in 2018.

Business development in North America

The trade and tariff disputes between the United States and China
caused the overall slowdown of global macro-economy. The US,
being our largest market, brought the most adverse impact to our
Group’s overall performance. Both of our wholesale and retail
business in the US were not able to deliver the satisfactory
performance. To mitigate the risks, with the efforts of the
management, the Group strives to develop other markets, which is

hoped to set a solid foundation for the Group’s future growth.

Retail business development in China and Hong
Kong

As of December 2019, the Group had a total of 2 self-operated retail
stores and 2 franchise stores across different provinces in Mainland
China. In March 2019, the Group took its brand “Morrisofa” to the
34th Shenzhen International Furniture Fair, showcasing its
comfortable, appealing and high quality products in front of
customers. The Group has been expanding its scale of business in
Hong Kong since the opening of its first flagship retail store in
September 2017. As of December 2019, the Group opened 3 self-
operated retail stores in Wan Chai, Sha Tin and Tsuen Wan,
respectively. It also opened a store-within-a-store in Ma On Shan,
and 4 points of consignment sales in Kowloon Bay, Causeway Bay
and Yuen Long. In some of its branch stores, the Group also
introduced auxiliary decoration services to establish one-stop services
including decoration and furniture setting, instilling its stylish home

design concept into Hong Kong market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEEN®E D (&)

Product research and development

Product is the key to the long-term success of our business, and
“Exquisite” product is the main theme for 2019 and years to come.
We have devoted more time and efforts to improve our product

quality and style, to enhance the product value for our consumers.

The Group always attaches great importance to research and
development (“R&D") investment and product innovation. With our
continuous focus on the R&D, we have received high technology
enterprise recognition, and our research house has been awarded as
the provincial level research center. The objective of our research

efforts is to bring better products to customers.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year of 2019, the principal business activities of Group
comprise the manufacturing and sales of sofas, sofa covers and other

furniture products.

During the year, the revenue of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB980.3 million (2018: approximately RMB1,610.0
million), representing a decrease of approximately 39.1% as
compared with last year, which was mainly attributable to the
decrease in revenue generated from sale of sofas, sofa covers and
other furniture products, particularly in the market of North America
as a result of the Sino-US trade war.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWE DN (&)

The Group's gross profit for the year was approximately RMB103.1
million (2018: approximately RMB428.0 million), representing a
decrease of approximately 75.9% as compared with last year. The
gross profit margin decreased from approximately 26.6% to
approximately 10.5%, primarily due to the imposition of U.S. tariffs
on furniture imported from Mainland China. The net loss of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB140.7 million during the
year, as compared with the net profit of RMB86.4 million in last year.
The increase in net loss was mainly attributable to the decrease in

sales volume and impact from the Sino-US trade war.

The Company’s basic loss per ordinary share was RMB14.07 cents for
the year of 2019 (basic earnings per share in 2018: RMB8.64 cents)
based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company of approximately RMB140.4 million (2018: profit for
the year of approximately RMB86.4 million), and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 998,379,710 after excluding
treasury shares for the year of 2019 (2018: 1,000,000,000).

Cost of sales

The cost of sales of the Group decreased by approximately 25.8%
from approximately RMB1,182.0 million in 2018 to approximately
RMB877.2 million in 2019, which was primarily due to the decrease

in revenue.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately 75.9%
from approximately RMB428.0 million in 2018 to approximately
RMB103.1 million in 2019. The gross profit margin decreased from
approximately 26.6% in 2018 to approximately 10.5% in 2019,
primarily due to the additional tariff levied on the Group’s export
products and the decreased utilization of manufacturing capacity due
to the decrease in sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWE DN (&)

Other net income and gains

The other net income and gains of the Group slightly decreased from
approximately RMB85.8 million in 2018 to approximately RMB85.5
million in 2019. Such slight decrease was primarily due to the
decreases in gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, fair
value change on derivative component of convertible loan, sales of
raw materials and compensation on factory relocation, but partially
offset by the increases in net exchange gains, government subsidies,
rental income and fair value change on contingent consideration

receivables.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses of the Group slightly decreased
by approximately 7.6% from approximately RMB207.6 million in
2018 to approximately RMB191.9 million in 2019. Such decrease was
primarily due to the decrease in marketing cost.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group decreased by
approximately 17.9% from approximately RMB153.8 million in 2018
to approximately RMB126.2 million in 2019, which was primarily due
to the non-recurrence in 2019 of the increased legal and professional
expenses and consultation fee for the acquisition of Jennifer
Convertibles, Inc. (“Jennifer Convertibles”) in 2018, and the

implementation of cost-control measures.

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group increased by approximately 17.9%
from approximately RMB24.9 million in 2018 to approximately
RMB29.3 million in 2019, which was primarily due to the increase in
interest on lease liability of approximately RMB13.5 million upon the
new issue of lease accounting coming into effect, but partically offset
by the decreases in interest on bank loans and convertible loan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWE DN (&)

Income tax credit/(expense)

The income tax credit of the Group was approximately RMB38.3
million in 2019, as compared to income tax expense of approximately
RMB13.9 million in 2018. In addition, the effective tax rate decreased
from approximately 13.8% in 2018. The reversal of income tax
expense in 2018 to income tax credit in 2019 was mainly attributable

to the loss-making situation this year and over-provision in prior year.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Working capital

For 2019, cash and cash equivalents of the Group decreased by
approximately RMB52.9 million, which was comprised of the net
cash flows generated from operating activities of approximately
RMB132.9 million, net cash flows used in investing activities of
approximately RMB94.7 million, and net cash flows used in financing
activities of approximately RMB83.5 million, while approximately
RMB7.6 million was the net exchange loss of foreign exchange rate

changes.

Borrowing and pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's interest-bearing bank
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB220.8 million, all of
which were repayable within twelve months from 31 December
2019. The bank loans’ interest rates ranged between 3.2% to 6.5%

per annum.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group, which is total interest-bearing bank
borrowings divided by total equity as at the end of the year and
multiplied by 100%, increased from approximately 38.7% as at 31

December 2018 to approximately 112.0% as at 31 December 2019,
which was primarily due to the increase in total equity and repayment

of interest-bearing bank borrowings during 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWE DN (&)

Capital commitments

The Group did not have any capital commitment as at 31 December
2019 and 2018.

Contingent liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2019.

Trade and bills receivables

The trade and bills receivables of the Group decreased to
approximately RMB217.0 million as at 31 December 2019 (31
December 2018: RMB634.5 million), primarily due to the significant
decrease in sales to the Group's customers in the fourth quarter in

2019 as compared to the corresponding period in 2018.

Trade and bills payables

The trade and bills payables of the Group decreased to approximately
RMB389.3 million as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018:
RMB416.8 million), primarily due to the decrease in purchases from
the Group'’s suppliers in the fourth quarter in 2019 as compared to
the corresponding period in 2018. In order to monitor the Group's
cash flow position, the finance department will present the cash flow

statements to the senior management on monthly basis.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWE DN (&)

Foreign exchange exposure

Revenue from major customers is mainly from the U.S. while the
production facilities of the Group are mainly located in the PRC.
Accordingly, most of the sales are denominated in U.S. dollar while
the costs arising from the Group’s operations are generally settled in
RMB. As a result, fluctuations in the value of U.S. dollar against RMB
could adversely affect the financial results of the Group. During
2019, the Group did not experience any material difficulties or
impacts on its operations or liquidity as a result of currency exchange
fluctuation. The Group did not use any financial instruments for
hedging purposes during 2019 and there was no hedging
instruments outstanding as at 31 December 2019. The Group will
continue to monitor closely the exchange rate risk arising from its
existing operations and new investments in the future. The Group
will further implement the necessary hedging arrangement to
mitigate any significant foreign exchange risk when and if

appropriate.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

The Group had no other significant investments, nor had it made any
material acquisition or disposal of the Group’s subsidiaries or

associated companies during the Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEEN®E D (&)

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

The management of the Group believes that talent is the basis for
long-term development of enterprises. The Group targets to enhance
its corporate image through building up and solidifying the
Company’s brand name. With the “Five Hearts of Morris”: ambition,
confidence, determination, perseverance and loyalty, as core values,
the Group targets to establish a distinctive corporate culture. Through
regular trainings and promotion of its corporate culture, the Group
provides its staff with opportunities for personal growth and
enhances the employees’ sense of belonging to the Group. In
addition, the Group provides its employees with competitive
remuneration packages and various benefits in line with industry
practice. At the same time, the Group strives to create a good
working environment, and cultivates teamwork spirit among
employees. The Group carries out performance evaluation quarterly,
and conducts “Morris Artisans” evaluations, aiming at elevating the
morale of the Group’s technicians. The Group regularly reviews
human resources policies to ensure that the policies align with
market practice and comply with regulatory requirements. As of 31
December 2019, the Group employed 2,065 employees (31
December 2018: 2,499 employees). The total annual salary and
related costs (excluding directors’ remuneration) for 2019 were
approximately RMB181.1 million (2018: RMB184.9 million).

The Company operates a share option scheme which allows the
Company to grant options to eligible persons as rewards for their
contributions to the Group. The share option scheme has been
adopted by the Company on 10 December 2016. No share options
were granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the
share option scheme during the period from the listing date to 31
December 2019 and there were no outstanding share options under
the share option scheme as at 31 December 2019 and the date of
this report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
TERARRAEERE

The followings are part of the key risks and uncertainties identified
by the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition
to those shown below which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.

FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC RISK
Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements so
as to ensure sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions (when applicable) to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term. The
Group’s cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2019
maintained at a satisfactory level. As at 31 December 2019, the

Group had no significant capital commitment.

Foreign currency risk

Revenue from major customers is mainly from the U.S. while the
production facilities of the Group are mainly operates in the PRC.
Accordingly, most of the sales are denominated in U.S. dollar while
the costs arising from its operations are generally settled in RMB. As
a result, fluctuations in the value of U.S. dollars against RMB could
adversely affect the financial results of the Group. During 2019, the
Group did not experience any material difficulties or impacts on its

operations or liquidity as a result of currency exchange fluctuation.

The Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging
purposes during 2019 and there was no hedging instruments
outstanding as at 31 December 2019. The Group will continue to
monitor closely the exchange rate risk arising from its existing
operations and new investments in the future. The Group will further
implement the necessary hedging arrangement to mitigate any

significant foreign exchange risk when and if appropriate.
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Credit risk

The Group'’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables.
Credit evaluations are performed on all credit customers taking into
account the customer’s payment history and current ability to pay,
any information specific to the customer and the economic
environment in which the customer operates. The credit period is
generally one to two months, extending up to three to six months for
major customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
Impairment losses are recorded for those overdue balances where
there is objective evidence of impairment.

The Group has concentration risk in respect of trade receivables due
from the Group’s five largest customers who accounted for
approximately 75.8% and 67.7% of the Group’s total trade
receivables as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 respectively. The credit
risk exposure to trade receivables balance has been and will continue
to be monitored by the Group on an ongoing basis.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate
changes on interest-bearing bank borrowings. The Group monitors
the interest rate exposure on a continuous basis and adjusts the
portfolio of bank deposits and borrowings where necessary.

Economy of U.S. market

As the majority of the Group’s revenue is derived from the U.S., its
results of operations and financial condition therefore depend on the
U.S. economy. The Group’s profitability and business growth are
affected by the uncertainty of macroeconomic conditions and
uncertain economic outlook and political conditions in U.S..

The U.S. economy faces challenges such as budget deficits, public
debt, lack of labor market dynamism and change in political
instability. Moreover, Donald Trump, elected President in November
2016, has changed the U.S. trade policies with China, which could
bring adverse impact to the business of the Group.

The Group has evaluated the business risk from the change in trade

policies of U.S. with China, and would explore different means to
mitigate such risks stemming therefrom.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to protect the interests of its Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Board has reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance practices and is satisfied that
save as disclosed below, the Company has complied with all code
provisions (“Code Provisions”) and, where applicable, the
recommended best practices of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Corporate Governance Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
"Listing Rules”) since 12 January 2017, the date on which the
Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Date”) and
up to the date of this report.

According to Code Provision A.2.1., the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The Company has appointed Mr. Zou Gebing as
both the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company.
The Board believes that vesting the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer in the same individual would enable the Company
to achieve higher responsiveness, efficiency and effectiveness when
formulating business strategies and executing business plans. The
Board believes that the balance of power and authority is sufficiently
maintained by the operation of the senior management and the
Board, which comprises experienced and high-calibre individuals. The
Board currently comprises four executive Directors (including Mr. Zou
Gebing) and three independent non-executive Directors and
therefore has a fairly strong independence element in its
composition. The Board will nevertheless review the structure and
composition of the Board from time to time in light of prevailing
circumstances, in order to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices of the Company.

Code provision C.1.2 of the Corporate Governance Code provides
that management should provide members of the board with
monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment
of the issuer’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient
details to enable the board as a whole and each director to discharge
their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.
Although the management of the Company did not provide a regular
monthly update to the members of the Board, the management
keeps providing information and updates to the members of the
Board as and when appropriate.

TEERESR

RABBA#FEKENDEEAZLE -
NRERFEEERREACEEBEELRME
- -EESEBHNARANCEERE
] WEMBRTXCEEESIN - B20174F1
A1N2B (BB EB A ETAB(T LS
B DEEAREAE  ARRIEETH
PIRBE R AT H MR AT £ R 81Kt
UM RTA(SEERTA])
FiA <FRMESC ([ PR )) RiEERER
MOEmA) »

BIETAEXA2.1  EFRITRAHD
ABRAEMERY - A TEHER—AFRE -
ARBEZEFBELERARALFER
TR - EFERE - TERTERES
BAERE— ABERERARTRRNGEE
BRI R MITEB IR EGE  AUX
EEAMTE - EEGHE AKLREED
BEATHRNSREEERESTGETT
LEERNEBTFEERNEAER -EFE
BRHUARTES(BEFHEEELE) R
—RBUFNTESFEN - FHEAKREA
EHRESHBEILE - A EFSIHBR
BREATHRNEFSHRERAK - X
REFARBHNRKFEREATESR

TEERTRATFAKRXCI2EAE B8
EESANESEXNEREETER &
PIBEBABETANKRE  KARISEMNAIE
RSREBRBNTE  AAEUNRESTE S
BERE—NEFBETRSELTHRAUSE
308 REBIBSEETHRE - B4R
AEREEYETHRNEEEN RIS A
BHER HEEEBREENGERNESS
PRERHERREFER -

HAERAR AR 2019 F3R 27



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERRSE (&)

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance
practices in order to enhance its corporate governance standard,
comply with regulatory requirements and meet the growing

expectations of shareholders and investors of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of the
Company for Directors’ securities transactions. The Company has
made specific enquiry with all Directors and the relevant employees
regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code during the
Reporting Period, and they all confirmed that they had fully complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code and its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions throughout the

Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management, businesses,
strategic directions and financial performance of the Group. The
Board holds regular meetings to discuss the Group’s businesses and
operations. All important issues are discussed in a timely manner. The
Board delegates to the management the daily operations of the
Group under the directions set out by the management and the
Board. The Board has established various committees and has
delegated to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
and the Nomination Committee of the Board (collectively, the “Board
Committees”) various duties. All the Board Committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference.

Pursuant to the internal guidelines of the Group, the Board shall
meet at least four times a year. Additional board meetings will be
held when warranted. The Directors at all times have full and timely
access to information of the Group. There is a procedure for Directors
to seek independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary

by them at the expense of the Company, as appropriate.
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Directors receive at least 14 days prior written notice of a regular
meeting and may propose matters for discussion to be included in
the agenda. The minutes of Board meetings are prepared by the
company secretary with details of the decisions reached, any
concerns raised and dissenting views expressed. Copies of the final
versions of Board minutes are sent to the Directors for their
information and records. The draft minutes are sent to all Directors
within a reasonable time after each meeting for their comments
before being formally signed. The signed minutes are kept in safe
custody by the company secretary and are available for inspection by
the Directors.

Insurance coverage in respect of Directors’ and officers’ liability has

been arranged by the Company.

As of the date of this report, the composition of the Board is as

follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZOU Gebing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZENG lJin

Mr. SHEN Zhidong

Mr. WU Yueming

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Haifeng

Mr. PANG Wing Hong (appointed on 12 April 2019)
Mr. CHU Guodi (appointed on 28 May 2019)

Mr. SHAO Shaomin (resigned on 12 April 2019)

Mr. HUANG Wenli (resigned on 28 May 2019)

The biographies of the Directors are set out in “Profile of Directors
and Senior Management” on page 8 to page 16 of this annual

report.

EZGEFREIZNEL14RARKEIFL
EEBEAM  YAREABEEIIAZE -
EESQRLHHEATNERY  FAN
MRTFTERCRREE R Y ] BB A
FAER  EFEEIZCHENREMRARAR
BBEXRES  UHSEREH - g3
EEBREHR  LARBANAERME
NERGEMBEES  UHRHER - £F
VERLBHARIMELERE - UHE
FEH -

ARACLHRBEHREELSMBER
EAVRRR

RABERH  EFSEXTT ¢

BITES -
AR 50 (F B RITHARE)
B4 5
R
SRRk

BIERITES

2B 5L

EoKERE (R2019F 4812 HEZ(F)
EEBEE(R2019F5 A28 HEZ(T)
BR S (R20194E4 712 A BT )
B L (R201945 A28 HET)

EEEEENAFRFESEICANIES
HERERERE] -

HAERAR AR 2019 F3R 29



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EEERRSE (&)

During the Reporting Period, the attendance of the individual

Directors at the meetings is set out below:

RBEHIE SEFHESR

BRAT

Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend during the Reporting Period
REEHBLRE/BERERENERRY

Remuneration Nomination Audit General
Committee Committee Committee Board Meeting
Name of Director BEng FHESS REZEE ENZEE Ezg BRRAE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Zou Gebing PrErE N/A TNER N/A TER N/A TNER 111 Wy
Mr. Zeng Jin e e N/A N N/A N N/A i 1m 2
Mr. Wu Yueming RABEE NA &R N/A T N/A TR 111 22
Mr. Shen Zhidong NERLE NA TER N/A TR N/A TR 111 M
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
Directors

Mr. Shao Shaomin (Note 1) BB BUE 4 (Mt 1) N/A B N/A N N/A & " N/A B
Mr. Huang Wenli (Note 2) X EEE(RE2) N/A R /A TNEf 0 4/4 n
Mr. Pang Wing Hong (Note 3) &5k 56 4 (it3E3) M N 44 99 b))
Mr. Chu Guodi (Note 4) GBS AR 0 il 0 6/6 1l
Mr. Liu Haifeng 2L E b)) N 44 11 0
Notes: HiH T
(1) Mr. Shao Shaomin resigned on 12 April 2019. (M BB AR 2019 F 4 A 12 ABHT »
(2)  Ms. Huang Wenli resigned on 28 May 2019. (2) EXBAAERN 2019 F 5 A 28 ABHE »
(3) Mr. Pang Wing Hong was appointed on 12 April 2019. (3) TOKBERER 2019 F 4 A 12 HEERT -
(4) Mr. Chu Guodi was appointed on 28 May 2019. (4) BERILAER 2019 F 5 A 28 HEZRT -
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to provide
independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving adequate
control and balances for the Company to protect the overall interests
of the Shareholders and the Company.

They serve actively on the Board and Board Committees to provide
their independent and objective views. In compliance with Rules
3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Company has appointed
three independent non-executive Directors, representing more than
one-third of the Board. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional qualifications in accounting
or related financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

The Board must satisfy itself that an independent non-executive
Director does not have any material relationship with the Group. The
Board is guided by the criteria of independence as set out in the
Listing Rules in determining the independence of Directors.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other, save as disclosed
under the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report. The Company has received
annual confirmation of independence from all the independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board is of the view that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Director Mr. Shao Shaomin was
appointed on 10 December 2016 and resigned on 12 April 2019. Mr.
Pang Wing Hong was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 12 April 2019, replacing Mr. Shao’s directorship in the
Company. Mr. Huang Wenli was appointed on 10 December 2016
and resigned on 28 May 2019. Mr. Chu Guodi was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 28 May 2019, replacing Mr.
Huang’s directorship in the Company. Mr. Liu Haifeng was appointed
on 6 July 2017. They are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”). Please refer to “Corporate Governance Practices” on
page 27 of this report for further details.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

All Directors are provided with timely updates on the Company’s
performance, financial position and prospects to enable the Board as
a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In addition, the
Company arranges for and provides continuous professional
development training and relevant materials to the Directors to help
ensure they are apprised of the latest changes in the commercial,
legal and regulatory environment in which the Group conducts its
business and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and duties of a listed company director. The Directors have
provided to the Company their record of continuous professional
development training, and they have participated in training activities
in the following manner:

1. Reading materials on Directors’ duties, compliance issues for

listed companies and/or legal and regulatory requirements;

2. Reading materials on corporate governance and financial

reporting; and
3. Reading materials on risk management and internal control.

Dividend policy

On 10 December 2018, the Company adopted a new dividend policy
that may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the
Company, provided that the Group records a profit after tax and that
the declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the
normal operations of the Group. The Company intends to pay out an
annual dividend payment at a payout ratio of not less than 30% of
the Group's consolidated net profit after tax for the then financial
year after taking into consideration of certain factors stated in the

Company’s announcement dated 10 December 2018.
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Board Diversity Policy (“Diversity Policy”)

The Company adopted a policy of having a diversity in the
composition of Board members so as to enhance the quality of its
performance. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity
has been considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against selection criteria, having regard

for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Diversity Policy and, from time to time, review the Diversity Policy to

ensure its effectiveness.

Nomination Policy

The Board is responsible for selection and appointment of Directors.
The Nomination Policy of the Board (the “Nomination Policy”) sets
out the criteria, process and procedures for the Nomination
Committee to recommend suitable candidates for directorship with a
view to ensuring that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the

Company’s business.

The Nomination Committee shall consider a number of factors in
making nominations, including but not limited to the skills and
experience of the candidate, the commitment that the candidate is
expected to devote to the Board and the competence of the
candidate in satisfying relevant legal and regulatory requirements.
The Company adopted the Diversity Policy as stated in the previous
section for achieving diversity on the Board with reference to the
Company'’s business model and specific needs. The candidate to be
nominated as an INED must satisfy the independence criteria set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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If the Nomination Committee determines that an additional or
replacement director is required, the Committee may take such
measures that it considers appropriate in connection with its
identification and evaluation of a candidate. The Nomination
Committee may propose to the Board a candidate recommended or
offered for nomination by a shareholder of the Company as a
nominee for election to the Board. On making recommendation, the
Nomination Committee may submit the candidate’s personal profile
to the Board for consideration. The Board may appoint the
candidate(s) as director(s) to fill a casual vacancy(ies) or as an addition
to the Board or recommend such candidate to shareholders for

election or re-election (where appropriate) at the general meeting.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board Committees are established with defined written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board Committees
are posted on the Company’s website and the website of the Stock

Exchange and are available to the Shareholders upon request.

All members of each Board Committee are independent non-

executive Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process, internal control
system and risk management system of the Group, to oversee the
audit process and to perform other duties and responsibilities as

assigned by the Board.

34 MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

WREEZE SR EREMEAERES -
ZEGUENARRBEENEIE - LY
ERAEARE - REEZEGAMEFTSRE
FEHARRIRREBIIERHARERK
FEF - REHEER  REZE2TN

EEERIEEANEABEAREE -
EEgNLARIEEAETESUARR

RS IEAIMIZES - HMRRHEREZ
1RE AAE R R K g #EF o EE (i
A) -

EEZET

ExecRY="AZEg  AEKZ
T VHEEERRERZEES BWESR
ERARABERR - MAEEERRELE
HIEABNEEARELE EFZEE%
B H0 B M 0 [ SN AN R A M B AR P A
R ERREBAER

il

\

EEZEENRBHARBIIFNTE

BEREEE
ARFERUEZZE S WKE MR
AlFE3. 21 RARERTAFT AL EEE
EEE - %*Z%E@E’J?Exﬂﬁ%fﬁﬁﬁ&
BE A

f&ﬂ E@%ﬁ’ﬁ%%@ﬁ%%&@
NTEFESRTHEMBREEREL -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERRE (&)

Members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Pang Wing Hong
(appointed on 12 April 2019), Mr. Liu Haifeng and Mr. Chu Guodi
(appointed on 28 May 2019). They are all independent non-executive
Directors. Mr. Pang Wing Hong currently serves as the chairman of
the Audit Committee, replacing Mr. Shao Shaomin, who resigned on
12 April 2019.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Audit Committee on 8 May 2020, the
Audit Committee reviewed, among other things, the audited financial
statements for 2019 with recommendations to the Board for
approval and discussed with the management and the external
auditors the accounting policies and practices which may affect the
Group, the report prepared by the external auditors covering major
findings in the course of the audit and the accounting and financial

reporting matters.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to establish and review the policy and
structure of the remuneration for the Directors and senior
management and make recommendations on the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management and on

other employee benefit arrangements.

The Remuneration Committee consists of all the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Guodi, Mr. Liu Haifeng and Mr.
Pang Wing Hong. Mr. Chu Guodi currently serves as the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee, replacing Mr. Huang Wenli who
resigned on 28 May 2019.

The Remuneration Committee has assessed the performance of the
Directors and senior management of the Company, and reviewed
and recommended to the Board the remuneration policy and
structure relating to the Directors and senior management of the
Company.
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The remuneration for the Directors and senior management
comprises basic salary, retirement benefits and discretionary bonus.
Details of the amount of emoluments of Directors paid for 2019 are

set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointments of the Directors, to
assess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors,

to take up references and to consider related matters.

The Nomination Committee consists of all the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Guodi, Mr. Liu Haifeng and Mr.
Pang Wing Hong. Mr. Liu Haifeng currently serves as the chairman of
the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
requirements of the business of the Group and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations. An external recruitment
agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection

process when necessary.

36 MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

EENEREEEBFMNOEELRTE -
Wﬁﬂ&%ﬁ&ﬂo%mmiiﬁﬁﬁ
EME CREHF BRI EHRKM FES ©

REEESE

ARFCKIREERER  WKREEE
ATRIFTAEEEBERE - RREEQ
MEIZBRERRZCEEANESTSREE
& AHEEMIFRTERREY M - IS
FRANREEHEBES °

RELEehaBBYIIFRITESERS
S BB ERE KL EARK - 2
BEEEBMETREZESESF -

BER®ME - Kt
I/\.:Jﬂﬂ:.&?fx)\ﬂﬁ'%/(&
Z R EMARERETE R A &
BB T &T’E%ﬂﬂfﬁ%/\@&
V°ﬁ %‘JZ REINBBIE IR ETT
BELRIERR

\z%

o
)
i
0
g
piny
- /ﬂﬂH



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERRE (&)

Further, pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, the Nomination Committee, when reviewing the
composition of the Board, will have regard to the diversity of the
Board, which includes gender, age, cultural and educational
background, length of service, skills, knowledge and professional
experience of the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the

benefits of diversity of Board members.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the policy for the
nomination of Directors, the structure, size and composition of the
Board and assessed independence of the independent non-executive

Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance

Code, namely:

(i)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (including in relation to securities trading)

applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the corporate governance

report in the Company’s annual report.

The Board will continue to review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and legal and regulatory
compliance, training and continuous professional development
participations of the Directors, as well as the Company’s compliance

with the Corporate Governance Code.
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AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

During 2019, the total fees paid/payable in respect of services
provided by the Group’s external auditors are set out below:

BT =

20194 » A5 E SIS A% BUAD 5t B PR iR
HRBE ST EENRE RN
T

2019
20194
RMB’000
ARBETF T

Audit and audit related services

Non-audit services: Taxation and other

professional services

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for handling company
secretarial matters including compliance with the companies
ordinance. On 28 February 2019, Ms. Ho resigned from the role as
the company secretary of the Company. On 1 September 2019, Mr.
Lam Hoi Lam was appointed as the company secretary of the

Company.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board, supported by the finance and accounting department, is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group that give a true and fair view. In preparing the financial
statements, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants have been
adopted. Appropriate accounting policies have also been used and
applied consistently. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going

concern.
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The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is
included in the Report of the Independent Auditors on pages 67 to
80 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The management has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems, and the
Board has the responsibility to review and monitor the effectiveness
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems at least
annually covering material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls, to ensure that the systems in place are
adequate and effective. The Group adopts a risk management system
which manages the risk associated with its business and operations.

The system comprises the following phases:

Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives.

Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective

communication to the Board and on-going

monitor the residual risks.
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The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COSO") 2013 framework. The COSO
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The

five key components of the COSO framework are shown as follows:

Control A set of standards, processes and structures
Environment: that provide the basis for carrying out internal

control across the Group.

Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analysing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining

how risks should be managed.

Control Activities: Action established by policies and procedures
to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives
are carried out.

Information and Internal and external communication to provide
Communication:  the Group with the information needed to

carry out day-to-day controls.
Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain

whether each component of internal control is

present and functioning.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are,
however, designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has conducted an annual review on whether there is a
need for an internal audit department. Given the Group's relatively
simple corporate and operation structure, as opposed to diverting
resources to establish a separate internal audit department, the
Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is directly responsible for
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and for

reviewing its effectiveness.

During the Reporting Period, the Company engaged an external
independent adviser with professional staff in possession of relevant
expertise to conduct an independent review of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group in order to maintain high
standards of corporate governance. The review plan has been
approved by the Board and the Audit Committee. The Board and the
Audit Committee had also reviewed the resources, staff qualifications
and experience and training programs of the external independent

adviser and considered they are adequate and sufficient.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of the
relevant obligations under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO") and the Listing Rules.
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In order to enhance the Group's system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness
and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and
implements an inside information policy and procedures. Certain
reasonable measures have been taken from time to time to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group, which include:

1. The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.

2. Confidentiality covenants will be in place when the Group

enters into significant negotiations.

In addition, all employees are required to strictly adhere to the rules
and regulations regarding the management of inside information,
including that all employees who, because of his/her office or
employment, is likely to be in possession of inside information in
relation to the Company, are required to comply with the securities
transaction rules adopted by the Company which are on terms no
less exacting than those required under the Listing Rules.
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The Board and the Audit Committee had reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report
and believes that the existing systems are adequate and effective.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for the
Shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board. Subject to
provisions of the applicable laws in the Cayman Islands and the
Listing Rules, the Articles require that an annual general meeting
("AGM") of the Company to be held each year and at the venue as
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an AGM,
is called an extraordinary meeting.

According to the Articles, any one or more members holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT GENERAL
MEETING

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, a
Shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her/its proposal (the
“Proposal”) with his/her/its detailed contact information to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong. The
identity of the Shareholder and his/her/its request will be verified with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon
confirmation by the Company’s branch share registrar that the
request is proper and in order and made by a Shareholder, the Board
will determine in its sole discretion whether the Proposal may be
included in the agenda for the general meeting. If the request has
been verified as not in order, the Shareholder will be advised of this
outcome and, accordingly, a general meeting will not be convened
as requested.
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PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available and
the Company has an investor relationship personnel to attend to

enquiries from the Shareholders. Details of the contact person are set

out below:

Name: Mr. Xu Jing

Telephone: (852)21063218

Email: benson.xu@morrisholdings.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company and/or by sending them to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at the following
correspondence address and addressing to the Board:

Address: Unit 2001, 20/F, Citicorp Centre, 18 Whitfield
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings,
share transfer, share registration and payment of dividend to Tricor
Investor Services Limited (the Company’s branch share registrar in

Hong Kong). Contact details of Tricor Investor Services Limited are set

out below:

Address: Level 54, Hopewell Centre 183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Telephone: (852)2980 1333

Fax: (852)28108185

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board and senior management maintain a continuing dialogue
with the Shareholders and investors through various channels
including the Company’s AGM to answer Shareholders’ questions.
The chairman and other members of the Board are present at the
AGM. The annual report and AGM circular is distributed to all the
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels with
investors to update them with the latest business development and
financial performance including the AGM, the publication of annual
reports, announcements and circulars on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company in order to maintain a high level of

transparency.

MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

The Company adopted an amended and restated memorandum of
association on 10 December 2016 and amended and restated articles
of association on the Listing Date.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
ESERE

The Directors present this annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Company for 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of business performance of the Group, the Group’s
business prospect and the financial key performance indicators
during 2019 are set out in the sections headed “Financial Highlights”,
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on page 5, pages 6 to 7 and pages 17 to 24 respectively of
this annual report. The content is part of this directors’ report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING
THE COMPANY

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group during the
Reporting Period is set out in the sections headed “Principal Risks and
Uncertainties” on pages 25 to 26 respectively of this annual report.

The content is part of this directors’ report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
COMPLIANCE WITH LAW AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. Being manufacturing and trading companies in the
PRC, the Group is subject to various environmental laws and
regulations set by the PRC national, provincial and municipal
governments. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure
adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations. During 2019, the
Group has complied with relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the operations of the Group. Further, any
changes in applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the
attention of relevant employees and relevant operation units from

time to time.

A report on the environmental, social and governance aspects is
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules will be
published on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites as
close as possible to, and in any event no later than three months

after, the publication of the Company’s annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and business
partners are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is
committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners.

EMPLOYEES

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Company and
the Company regards the personal development of its employees as
highly important. The Group wants to continue to be an attractive

employer for committed employees.

The Company endeavors to motivate its employees with clear career
objectives and provides opportunities for advancement and
improvement of their skills. The Group provides on-the-job training

and development opportunities to its staff members.

SUPPLIERS

The Group has developed long-term relationships with a number of
its raw material suppliers and take great care to ensure that they
share the Group’s commitment to quality. The Group carefully selects
its suppliers and requires them to satisfy certain assessment criteria
including track record, experience, reputation, ability to produce
high-quality products and quality control effectiveness.

CUSTOMERS

The Group is committed to providing safe products to its customers.
The Group endeavors to ensure the safety and quality of furniture
products via stringent quality control measures and regular

communication with customers.

COMMUNITY

The Group will continue to contribute to the harmonious society
through social contributions and participation in public service and
donation activities.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as the holding company of the Group and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
sofas, sofa covers and other furniture products.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for 2019 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
81 of this annual report.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the

Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during 2019 in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 29 to the

Company'’s financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Restricted Share Award
Scheme” below, the Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase,
sell or redeem any of the listed securities of the Company during
2019.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately RMB105.5 million (31 December 2018:
RMB144.2 million).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Five year financial summary are set in the sections headed “Five Year

Financial Summary” on page 212 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during 2019 and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZOU Gebing (Chairman and CEQ)
Mr. ZENG Jin

Mr. SHEN Zhidong

Mr. WU Yueming

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Haifeng

Mr. PANG Wing Hong
Mr. CHU Guodi

Mr. SHAO Shaomin
Mr. HUANG Wenli

(appointed on 12 April 2019)
(appointed on 28 May 2019)

(resigned on 12 April 2019)

(resigned on 28 May 2019)

In accordance with paragraph 83(3) of the Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of shareholders after his appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company

and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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Further, pursuant to paragraph 84(1) of the Articles, one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an AGM
at least once every three years and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election for the forthcoming year. According to paragraph
84(2) of the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board pursuant
to Article 83(3) shall not be taken into account in determining which
particular Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire by
rotation. Therefore, Mr. Zou Gebing, Mr. Shen Zhidong and Mr. Liu
Haifeng will also retire at the forthcoming AGM and will offer
themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date or the date of appointment, unless terminated by
not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party

on the other expiring at the end of the initial term.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company. There is no specific term or
proposed length of service for the independent non-executive
Directors under the letters of appointment. They are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM of the Company at
least once every three years and until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either the Company or the

respective independent non-executive Director.

No Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” and the
related party transactions as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or a connected entity of a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2019 or
at any time during 2019.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, are set out below:
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(i) The Company (i) A&nF

Number of Approximate
securities  percentage of
Name of Director/ (Note 1) shareholding
chief executive Nature of Interest EHEE 15 B RERE 20
BEE FETHAEHS ERME (PrFEET) Bok
Mr. Zou Gebing (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 750,000,000 Shares (L) 75%

sk A (MisE2) S NE 750,000,0000%(L)

Note 1: The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Note 2:  Morris Capital Limited (“Morris Capital”) is owned as to 85% by Mr.
Zou Gebing. Under the SFO, Mr. Zou Gebing will therefore be deemed,
or taken to be, interested in the same number of Shares in which Morris
Capital is interested.
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(ii) Morris Capital (Note 1)

(i) RBEEAN(ME1)

Number of Approximate

securities  percentage of

Name of Director/ (Note 2) shareholding

chief executive Nature of Interest FBHEEE EIRERL

EE TETBABHE EEME (FtEE2) Batt

Mr. Zou Gebing Beneficial owner 85 Shares of 85%
IR BB A US$1 each (L)

Note 1:  Morris Capital holds more than 50% of the Shares. Therefore, Morris
Capital is the holding company and an associated corporation of the
Company.

Note 2: The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives of
the Company had any other personal, family, corporate and other
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code as at 31 December 2019.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) have interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO:

FTERRER

H2019F 128318 M FAL(ESFHA
NAEIEBITHABBRIN) PR (7 8 48 B B
DHRBEEAINIARQRIREZEARHEE
HE3361EFEERNESLMAERIAE -

Number of  Percentage of

Shares/underlying Shares of

Shares held the Company

(Note 1) in issue

Frisgm,~ HARATFE

Shareholders Nature of interest HERGOEE 2RITRG

IR EmtE (MH5E1) Batt

Morris Capital (Note 2) Beneficial owner 750,000,000 Shares (L) 75% (L)
RREAR(ME2) EmEAA 750,000,000 % (L)

Wu Xiangfei (Note 3) Interest of spouse 750,000,000 Shares (L) 75% (L)
SRR (FIEE3) Al iBtEn 750,000,000 (L)

Note 1: The letter “L"” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Note 2: Morris Capital is owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou Gebing and 15% by Ms. Wu
Xiangfei.

Note 3: Ms. Wu Xiangfei is the spouse of Mr. Zou Gebing. Under the SFO, Ms. Wu
Xiangfei will therefore be deemed, or taken to be, interested in the same
number of Shares in which Mr. Zou Gebing is interested.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other person (other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares and/or
underlying Shares of the Company which fell to be disclosed to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at 31
December 2019.

M1 FRILURRZBALREEROHEA -

M2« REERBPRELEHEES5% Kb BAMR
LLEHEHF15% °

MiEE3 - BARZLRFWEIEENERE - REES
KB EEH) - SRR 2 £ R R kAR A SR
EERSBREEERERANRASHAE RN
hHEAfEE -

Br EXCPT#EEE & SN - 2019412 A 31
H ARV EEZETANEMALT(ES
RARBIEBITRABRINEM RN
HRARARG RSABEROPHEEAE
RIEFESRBEEFEXVBE2RIDY
MARNFEBEAERIAE o

HAERAR AR 2019 F3R 53



DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (H)

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business were
entered into or existed during 2019.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group is well aware of the importance of incentivising and
retaining its employees. The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages to its employees and makes contributions to social security
insurance funds (including pension plans, medical insurance, work-
related injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity
insurance) and housing fund for its employees. The Remuneration
Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and
remuneration package of the Directors and chief executive of the
Group, having regard to the Group’s overall operating results,

individual performance and comparable market practices.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Restricted Share Award Scheme (the “Award Scheme”) was
adopted by the Board on 29 August 2019 (the “Adoption Date”) as
an incentive to retain and encourage employees for the continual
operation and development of the Group. During the year under
review, the trustee of the Award Scheme, pursuant to the terms of
the rules and trust deed of the Award Scheme, acquired 14,800,000
shares of the Company by way of acquisition at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$2,536,415 (including transaction
costs) representing approximately 1.48% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the Adoption Date.
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Details of the remuneration of the Directors for 2019 are set out in

note 8 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company,
or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
(including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of,

the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

There were no competing business of which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December
2019 or at any time during 2019.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Morris Capital, Mr. Zou Gebing and Ms. Wu Xiangfei (each a
“Non-Compete Covenantor”) has entered into a deed of non-
competition (“Deed of Non-competition”) dated 10 December
2016 with the Company, to the effect that each of them will not
directly or indirectly participate in, or hold any right or interest, or
otherwise be involved in any business which may be in competition

with the business of the Group from time to time.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of the Non-
Compete Covenantors in respect of their compliance with the non-
competition undertakings under the Deed of Non-competition during
2019.

The independent non-executive Directors also reviewed the Non-
Compete Covenantors’ compliance with the non-competition
undertakings. The independent non-executive Directors confirmed
that the Non-Compete Covenantors were not in breach of the non-
competition undertakings during 2019.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

During 2019, the Group had the following non-exempt continuing

connected transactions, details of which are set out below:

The Lease Agreements with Morris PRC

Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Co., Ltd (formerly known as “Haining
Gelin Furniture Co., Ltd.”), (“Zhejiang Morris Fashion home”),
Zhejiang Apollo Leather Products Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Apollo
Leather Products”), Haining Morris Home Gallery Co., Ltd.
("Haining Morris home Gallery”), and Haining Morris International
Home Furnishings Co., Ltd. (“Haining Morris International”), each
as tenant entered into the lease agreements with Morris PRC as
landlord on 1 January 2016 for the lease of various premises located
in Haining, Zhejiang Province, PRC for factory, direct sale store and
office use. However, as the area of leased properties was insufficient
to meet the production requirements of the Group, Zhejiang Morris
Fashion Home, Haining Morris Home Gallery and Haining Morris
International (each as tenant) entered into lease agreements with
Morris PRC (as landlord) on 17 March 2017 for the lease of leased
properties located in Haining, Zhejiang Province, PRC for factory,
exhibition hall, dormitory, canteens, office and research and
development center use for a term of three years commencing from
17 March 2017 and expiring on 16 March 2020. The major terms of

the lease agreements are as follows:
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Rent per
Leased area annum
(sq. m.) (RMB)
Lease agreements Term Tenant Landlord HERR £
R ] 2% %: (¥5K)  (ARER)
Zhejiang Apollo Leather Products 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026 Zhejiang Apollo Leather Products Morris PRC 40,226.08  2,896,277.76
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive)
FIMEEREHREERE 201651 A18Z202651 418 TR BN E 5% RETH
(REEREMAB)
Haining Gelin Furniture 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 1999035  1,439,305.20
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) {formerly known as “Haining
Morris Home Gelin Furniture”)
BERHRAREHE 201651 A1HZ20265 1418 HIRARAEE RATE
(REEEMA) (FIBIEEBHEA])
Haining Morris Home Gallery 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 3931200 2,830,464.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) {formerly known as “Haining
Morris Home Gallery Furniture”)
BERRUZZERERE 201651 A18Z2026%1 818 HIRBRHEE RETE
(REEEMA) (AR EERAERZE])
Haining Morris International 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 1,000.00 72,000.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as “Haining
Morris International”)
BERREREE RS 201651 4182202651518 HIRBRHEE RETHE
(REEEMA) (FIRIEERAER])
Haining Morris Home Gallery 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 40,474.00  2,914,128.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as “Haining
Morris Home Gallery Furniture”)
BERRMFFERERE  2017F3A1782202063A168  MIRBRHEE RETE
(BEEEMA) (FIBIEERBERZRE])
Haining Morris Home Gallery 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 2053200  1,478,304.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as “Haining
Morris Home Gallery Furniture”)
BERRMFFEREDZE  2017F3A17822020F3A168  HIRBBHEE RETE
(REEEMA) (FIBIEERBERZRE])
Haining Gelin Furniture 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 19,723.00  1,420,056.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as "Haining
Morris Home Gelin Furniture”)
BERKRAEE RS 017538170 F202063A168  MIRARHEE RETE
(REERMA) (FIRIEERHKA])
Haining Gelin Furniture 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 9,300.00 669,600.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as “Haining
Morris Home Gelin Furniture”)
BERKRARE RS 017538170 F202063 168 MIRARHEE RETE
(BEEREMA) (FIBIBERHKA])
Haining Morris International 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 6,400.00 460,800.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as “Haining
Morris International”)
BERREREE RS 017538170 £202083 168 MIRARHEE RETE
(BEERMA) (FIRIEERAER])
Haining Morris International 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 4,608.00 331,776.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as “Haining
Morris International”)
BERREREEHH 2017F3A176%202063A168  MIEARREE RETE

(BREEMA)

(AR BERAER))
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The aggregated annual caps of the lease agreements for the years
ended 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 are RMB15 million,
RMB15 million, RMB15 million and RMB15 million, respectively. For
further details of the lease agreement, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 17 March 2017.

As the entire issued share capital of Morris PRC is owned by Mr. Zou
Gebing and Ms. Wu Xiangfei, Morris PRC is, accordingly, an associate
of Mr. Zou Gebing and is therefore a connected person of the
Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules.

Sales Agreement with Jennifer Convertibles

Mstar International Trading (HK) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a sales agreement with Jennifer
Convertibles Inc. on 1 January 2016, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to supply sofas to Jennifer Convertibles Inc. The Group
completed the acquisition of Jennifer Convertibles Inc. on 31 August
2018, whereupon Jennifer Convertibles Inc. became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and thereby ceased to be a connected
person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Therefore, the transactions with Jennifer Convertible Inc. no longer
constituted continuing connected transactions after 31 August 2018.

Details of the above continuing connected transactions are further
summarised as follows:

B ZE201749F - 20184 ~ 20194 }.2020
F12A3BHLEFE HEHBENEFE
FRABABAREISHEE T - ARKKIS
BET ARBIsEETMARKISH
Ex - AHAERENE—FPHE #F2
BARARBHA2017FE3817HHI RS -

HRRAPEEMEETRAHPREEE
ERSARZ TSR - Bt - REBELETR
AIE14A.0716 - REFTBESFHEELE
MEBEA  BRETESEARBNEEA
+ o

EdJennifer ConvertiblesHy 5 & 35
M2016F1HTH - RARIZEN B QA
EEERE S (HE)BRAFRHennifer
Convertibles Inc. 3] 7 $H & Han » Utk -
7N & @ [ & 1A Jennifer Convertibles Inc.
HEDE - KEBMN2018F8A31HRE
B Y B Jennifer Convertibles Inc. * & 18
Jennifer Convertibles Inc. ik & 7~ A &) 89
2ENMBAR  WARTBEREARRAR L
MRAFEVAAZE THBEEAT - Bt -
B Jennifer Convertible Inc. 93X 5722018
FSANABRTERNBERERS -

A B R B 0 B — A
™

Transaction

amount for Annual Cap

Name of connected party Nature of transaction 2019 for 2019

RS B RHME 20195548  20195FE LR

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AR®T T

Morris PRC Lease of properties 13,218 15,000
REF MEHE

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive Directors who have
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into: (a) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Company; (b) on normal
commercial terms; and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing such transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Company in this annual report in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock

Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party
transactions, which do not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions, made during 2019 is disclosed in

note 35 to the financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The corporation governance report of the Group during the
Reporting Period is set out in the sections headed “Corporate

Governance Report” on pages 27 to 45 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During 2019, sales to the Group’s five largest customers and
purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
49.8% and 65.4% of the total revenue and purchases for the year,
respectively. The Group’s largest customer accounted for around
21.2% of the total revenue for the year. The Group's largest supplier

accounted for around 21.8% of the total purchase for the year.

At no time during 2019 did a Director, a close associate of a Director
or a Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) have an

interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution
of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The
Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors
and officers arising out of corporate activities. The level of the

coverage is reviewed annually.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report relating to share option
scheme, no equity-linked agreements were entered into during
2019 or subsisted as at 31 December 2019.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

The share options scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company on 10 December 2016. The Share Option
Scheme allows the Company to grant options to the following
eligible person(s) (the “Eligible person(s)”), namely, any full-time or
part-time employee of the Company or any member of the Group,
including any executive Director, non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Director, adviser and consultant of the
Group. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to the Eligible Persons as incentives or

rewards for their contribution to the Group.
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The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

1. The limit on the total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes which may be adopted by
the Group from time to time pursuant to which options to
subscribe for Shares may be granted (the “Other Schemes”)
must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as
at the Listing Date (which shall be 100,000,000 Shares) unless
Shareholders’ approval has been obtained, and which must not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

As at 31 December 2019 and the date of this report, the total
number of Shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 100,000,000 Shares, which represents 10% of the
issued Shares as at 31 December 2019 or the date of this
report.

2. The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to an Eligible Person under the
Share Option Scheme and Other Schemes in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue from time to
time, and provided that if approved by Shareholders in general
meeting with such Eligible Persons abstained from voting, the
Company may make further grant of options to such Eligible
Person notwithstanding that the further grant would result in
the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and Other Scheme in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of the further grant representing in aggregate over 1%
of the Shares in issue from time to time.

3. An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Board to each Eligible Person
provided that the period within which the option must be
exercised shall not be more than 10 years from the date of the
grant of option.

4. HK$1.00 shall be paid by the grantee to the Company by way
of consideration for the grant.
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5. The subscription price for the Shares subject to options will be
a price determined by our Board and notified to each
participant and shall be the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant of the options, which must be a
trading day; (i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
options; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

6.  Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing on the Listing Date.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the
Prospectus. No share option has been granted by the Company
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption up to 31
December 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
although there is no restriction against such rights under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that
the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules since the Listing Date.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The previous auditor of the Group, EY was re-appointed as auditor of
the Group at the last AGM of the Company held on 17 May 2018 to
hold office until the conclusion of the following AGM of the
Company. However, as the Company and EY had been unable to
reach an agreement on the estimated additional fees as detailed in
the Company’s announcement dated 2 May 2019, HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB") was appointed as the new auditor of
the Group with effect from 21 May 2019 upon the removal of EY,
until the conclusion of the following AGM of the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in the auditors

of the Company during the past three years.

The consolidated financials statements of the Company for the years
ended 31 December 2018 onwards were audited by HLB, who will
retire at the AGM and a resolution for the re-appointment as the
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

CONVERTIBLE LOAN

On 5 January 2018, the Company entered into a convertible loan
agreement (“Convertible Loan Agreement”) with International
Finance Corporation (“IFC"), pursuant to which IFC agreed to lend,
and the Company agreed to borrow, a convertible loan
(“Convertible Loan"”) in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$200,000,000. Please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 5 January 2018 and 24 January 2018 for further
details. Pursuant to the Convertible Loan Agreement and as one of
the conditions of disbursement, each of Mr. Zou, Ms. Wu Xiangfei,
Mr. Zou's spouse and one of the controlling shareholders of the
Company, Morris PRC, a company owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou and
as to 15% by Ms. Wu, and IFC entered into a share retention and
undertaking agreement pursuant to which, among others, Mr. Zou
has undertaken to at all times maintain his controlling stake (being
not less than 51% interests) in the Company and Morris PRC and not
to transfer his shares in Morris Capital, one of the controlling
shareholders of the Company and owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou and
15% by Ms. Wu, or Morris PRC if, giving effect to such transfer, Mr.
Zou will not be able to maintain his controlling stake in the Company
or Morris PRC mentioned above for so long as any part of the
Convertible Loan is outstanding or any amount is available for
disbursement under the Convertible Loan Agreement and for so long
as IFC holds any equity securities of the Company.
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As a result of the suspension in trading in the shares of the Company
from 28 March 2019, the carrying amount of liability of the
convertible loan to the principal amount was adjusted and the same
was reallocated from non-current liabilities to current liabilities in
order to reflect such continuance. On 20 April 2019, 23 May 2019,
12 June 2019 and 30 September 2019, the Company entered into
four amendment agreements respectively with the lender of the
convertible loan for the agree schedule of certain permitted
prepayments of the convertible loan. As at 31 December 2019, the
outstanding principal of the convertible loan was HK$110,967,128.
Under the agreed schedule as provided in the abovementioned
amendment agreements, for the period from 15 June 2019 to 31
December 2019, the Company agrees to pay the following permitted

prepayments:

a)  an amount of HK$7,500,000 on or prior to 15 June 2019;

b)  an amount of HK$7,500,000 on or prior to 30 June 2019;

Q) an amount of HK$6,000,000 on or prior to 15 July 2019;

d)  an amount of HK$6,000,000 on or prior to 30 July 2019;

e) an amount of HK$6,000,000 on or prior to 15 August 2019;

f) an amount of HK$6,000,000 on or prior to 30 August 2019;

g) an amount of HK$6,000,000 on or prior to 15 September

2019;

h) an amount of HK$6,000,000 on or prior to 30 September
2019;
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) an amount of HK$7,000,000 on or prior to 28 October 2019;

i an amount of HK$7,000,000 on or prior to 28 November
2019; and

k) an amount of HK$7,000,000 on or prior to 28 December 2019;

In December 2019, the Company's subsidiary has pledged our
Cambodia lease rights and respective tenant lease rights to IFC. In
February 2020, the Company has received the waiver letter from IFC,
allowing the Company to not make any payments to IFC from
January to April 2020.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 22 March 2020,
the performance of the Group’s sales further deteriorated in January
and February 2020, due to the worsening of consumer sentiment
and the disruption to global supply chains as a result of the outbreak
of the novel Coronavirus epidemic (the “Epidemic”). It was
estimated that the Group's export sales from China was down by
approximately 52% in January and February 2020, as compared to
the corresponding period in 2019. The Group's furniture retail
business in the United States (the “US Furniture Retail Business”)
was heavily hit by the Epidemic. With the increase of infected people
in the United States including the eastern states where the Group’s
retail network is situated, the management of the US Furniture Retail
Business has decided to close the retail shops in the United States. It
is uncertain as to how long this situation will last, as the estimate by
the market on the duration ranges from anything between three and
eighteen months. Prior to the outbreak of the Epidemic, the US
Furniture Retail Business was in negotiation with institutions and
investors regarding funding and investment proposals to replenish its
working capital. With the development of the Epidemic and the shop
closure in the United States, the management of the US Furniture
Retail Business is taking urgent legal and financial advice with the
view to taking all appropriate measures to preserve value and to stop
loss. Further announcement(s) will be made as and when appropriate
if any disclosure requirements are triggered due to the development
of events.
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On 31 March 2020, the Company served the Option Notice on
Morris Group Co., Ltd. (“Morris PRC") and Mr. Zou Gebing (the
“Warrantor”) stating its decision to exercise the Put Option to
require Morris PRC to repurchase Jennifer Convertibles at the Exit
Price of US$35 million. The Option Notice was accepted by Morris
PRC and the Warrantor on the same date. The exercise of the Put
Option and the Receivables Disposal constitute discloseable and
connected transactions for the Company. A circular will be dispatched
to shareholders, and an EGM will be convened at which the
transactions would be put to vote by the independent shareholders.
Further details of the Put Option and the Receivables Disposal are set
out in the Company’s discloseable and connected transaction
announcement dated 31 March 2020.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors, as
well as the management and all employees for the contribution they
have made towards the Group’s continued progress, and to thank all

the Shareholders, customers and business partners for their support.

On Behalf of the Board

ZOU Gebing
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 8 May 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
B AR E

M &3t F A R E
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Morris
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 211, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2.1 in the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a loss of
approximately RMB140,690,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019 and, as of that date the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB156,731,000. As stated in Note 2.1, these events
or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 2.1,
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our

opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to
the matter described in the “Material uncertainty related to going
concern” section, we have determined that matters described below

to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Key audit matters

BREHNEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ATMARERRESNER

Provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories

RERBEFERE

Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and accounting policies on Note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements

BRI BEREM T 17 R BB REN 2. 4B & B E

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recorded inventories of approximately
RMB169,509,000 after reversal of provision against obsolete and slow-moving
inventories of RMB12,451,000, which accounted for 12.6% of the Group's
total assets.

M2019%12A318 - EREERREREEGERBERODARY
12,451,000 % 5 FEH AR 169,509,000 - 16 ESEEELE
#912.6% °

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of provision against obsolete
and slow moving inventories included:
IAREEBNRELERFERERENGE
TR FRLE

. Evaluating the estimates made by
management and used to determine the
provision obsolete and slow-moving
inventories during the year and compare to
the provisions made in prior year;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTINUED)

Key audit matters

BREETEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HRETSEHE FTNNEERARENEE

Provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories (Continued)

BRERBEFLE#HE(E)

The provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories is estimated based . Performing a recalculation, on a sample basis,

on the net realisable value of the inventories with reference to the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. The Group manufactures sofas, sofa
covers and other furniture products which are subject to changing consumer
demands and fashion trends of the sofa industry, and this increases the level of
judgement involved in estimating inventory provision. We focused on this area
because significant judgement is required to assess the provision for items
which may be ultimately obsolete or sold below cost as a result of a reduction
in consumer demand. Such judgements include management’s expectations for
future sales of goods and product durability and market value of materials used
in the production.
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fhat - EEEAVDE VDEERAMKEERLEER EHDETEL
HELAHEER KRG RBY  REGFERED RO KT AR
B o BABTIZERE BRI EEEEETIOND M Al s &AL B X
WERKABRHENARRETRELERHE - W FH A EERE
HRREmEENPRERERMAMAREERBMHNTISEE

We focused on this area due to the size of the balances and the judgement
exercised by management in determining the obsolete and slow-moving
inventories.
BRI BE AN ERREAREBRENETRERBERFERITR
HHI KR -

70 MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

of the inventory provision made on individual
inventories;

o HEENAERERNFEELNEERE

o Sample checking on the subsequent selling
price of finished goods; and

o HEREHRREREE R

. Checking the aging profile of inventories, the

historical sales and usage records of the

inventories.
« REFEHBBER - BEHEREMR
ﬁz o

Based on the procedures performed, we consider
management'’s judgement and estimates in the
assessment provision against obsolete and slow-
moving inventories, to be supported by the available
evidence.

BEDETNRER  RARA  EEERTERE
BRI & R 0 B S fh At BB RIS RE B Hs



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYZBE RS ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTiINUED)

Key audit matters

BRENEE

BREESTEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ATMARERRENER

Expected credit loss (“ECL") assessment of trade receivables

ESRNYREHEEER([BHEEBR]) T

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and accounting policies on Note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements

BRG A MBRRMT 1SRG M BRRME24AMBSHBE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had trade receivables of gross carrying
amount of approximately RMB234,847,000 and allowance for ECL of
approximately RMB17,829,000, the net carrying amount of trade receivable
account for 16.1% of the Group's total assets.

M20195 128318 ERENEFRETERAEAEORARK
234,847,000t R BHEEEERBENAARK 17,829,000 - EHEWK
FORMREFEN SEEEELEN16.1% -

In general, the trade receivable credit terms granted by the Group to the
customers ranged between one to four months. Management performed
periodic assessment on the recoverability of the trade receivables and the
sufficiency of provision for impairment based on information including credit
profile of different customers, ageing of the trade receivables, historical
settlement records, subsequent settlement status, expected timing and amount
of realisation of outstanding balances, and on-going trading relationships with
the relevant customers. Management also considered forward-looking
information that may impact the customers’ ability to repay the outstanding
balances in order to estimate the expected credit losses for the impairment
assessment.

—KhE EEERTFPRENEZRURECERN T —EZ0EA - &
BERBETRAEFPEEHNR  BHRUFIERER  BELERS  RES
EMR - BHRERREEEAKRERSBSTEN  UREBBEFPNEE
BHBE THAHEZIREFBENTREEAERERZERR - B2
ETCZRARYERFERRNERERENOARUER  UEFTHE
AEREREERSR -

Our procedures in relation to management's
impairment assessment included:

PR ERRREFGETHRFEE -

. Understanding and evaluating the key
controls that the Group has implemented to
manage and monitor its credit risk, and
validating the control effectiveness on a
sample basis;

o  TERKTHEXBREREREEHEFER
e EEOBREGER LRERER
1 75 e ) A AU

. Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing
profile of the trade receivables as at 31
December 2019 to the underlying financial
records and post year-end settlements to
bank receipts;

o HERBEN2019F12A31AMNEFEK
FERREEBMBLE  UREFRER
TTHREBEEMR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRBE RS (F)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTINUED)

Key audit matters

BREINEE

BREETEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ATMAERERRENER

Expected credit loss (“ECL") assessment of trade receivables (Continued)

BESRNTREHEEER([BHEEER)F (&)

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and accounting policies on Note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements

BRAGAVBRERM T 18 REA M BRERMT2 AN SE R

We focused on this area due to the impairment assessment of trade receivables
under the expected credit losses model involved the use of significant
management judgements and estimates.

FABEIZBE AN RERBEEFEREXETE HRRFIEREN G
WREREREIRE H B MG -
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Inquiring of management for the status of
each of the material trade receivables past
due as at year end and corroborating
explanations from management with
supporting evidence, such as performing
public search of credit profile of selected
customers, understanding on-going business
relationship with the customers based on
trade records, check historical and subsequent
settlement records of and other
correspondence with the customers; and
MERETHARFRANNEEERES
FEWRIBRAAMR - WA R IEERER
ENAHRE fInEETTFNEEMR
NETLHRER BREXFHTHTHRER
PRREXGHAER REBERERER
o URERFPHEMBAR - &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
BIZEMRE ()

i
Eie

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTiNUED)

Key audit matters

HRENSEE

BRETEIR(E

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FOINARERRESEE

Expected crediit loss (“ECL") assessment of trade receivables (Continued)

EORUSREHCERR ([ BHEEER])FE(E)

. Assessing the appropriateness of the expected
credit loss provisioning methodology,
examining the key data inputs on a sample
basis to assess their accuracy and
completeness, and challenging the
assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to
determine the expected credit losses.

o REERHEEFREHENEIREEE M
BREEE8 AR LERE R
Bt TERARETEACEBENR
R(BEBERAEILER)

Based on the procedures performed, we consider
management’s judgement and estimates in the ECL
assessment of trade receivable, to be supported by
the available evidence.
BEEETNERF  BMRR EREREHE
WHRIRTRBEE BB G HE R EBTE
BRI o

RAERARAT 2019 £



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRBE RS (F)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTINUED)

Key audit matters

BRENEE

BREETEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ATMAEREHRRENER

Contingent consideration receivables

Refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and accounting policies on Note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements

BRAGAVBRERM T 16 REA M BRRMET2 AN SE R

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recorded a contingent consideration
receivables of RMB234,425,000 which will be received after 2020.
20195128310 - ESEHRGEHR2020F R MO ERIARBAR
#234,425,0007T °

The Group entered into the sale and purchase agreement with the vendor for
the acquisition of Jennifer Convertibles Inc. and its subsidiaries, the Group
recognised a contingent consideration receivables at fair value in according to
the guarantee terms in the sales and agreements. These fair value
measurements require management’s estimation and significant judgement on
post-acquisition performance of the acquired businesses and discount rates
used.

EEBEEE U lennifer Convertibles Inc. R EM B A AR E & #
# BEEERBEERRNEREIEAAERABRRIAKE - BEL
REFEFTEEREUMBKERBORBRRRABRERRELRGTR
ERAIER
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Our procedures in relation to the fair values
assessment of contingent consideration receivables
included:
BPHERIAREAABFEETNEFE
i

o Understanding, evaluating and validating
management’s key control over the
contingent consideration payables assessment
process;

o TE FERIEEEEBURMNIAAE
HERFERRBERZHIER

. Checking the contingent consideration
payables calculation prepared by management
against the formula stated in the sale and
purchase agreement for each of the acquired
businesses;

s NREEEMBRRENIAREFTEERXE



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYZBE RS ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTiINUED)

Key audit matters

BREHEE

BREESTEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ATOMEERRET SR

Contingent consideration receivables (Continued)

BRAAREE)

Refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and accounting policies on Note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements

BRASEAVBRERM T 16 REA M BRRME2 AN SE TR

Contingent consideration receivables are remeasured at fair value at each
reporting date, and may be affected by changes in the estimation of post-
acquisition performance of the acquired businesses. Any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. For the year ended 31 December 2019, a fair value gain
RMB5,257,000 was recognised.

NEREEH  BURIRKERAABENNE - LA REMREREN
RBERARTAENIITE - EMARELNRER G BRRAMD
PEREERER - HE2019F 128318 LFE ERRBLAEBBEAR
#5,257,0007T °

We focused on this area as the assessment made by management involved
significant estimates and judgements in relation to the post-acquisition
performance of individual businesses and discount rates applied, which may be
affected by unexpected changes in future market or economic conditions or
significant events or circumstances related to the acquired businesses.
BPRDEZ RSN E R B AR R B UREER RIR NPT AR R KPR E
WREREA G RAE - Wl RARR ISR BER RN EPRERE AR
MEARFHABERERBERHNEPMXIITE -

Evaluating performance forecasts used in the
contingent consideration receivables
calculation, testing the mathematical accuracy
of the underlying calculation of consideration
payables and agreeing them to the financial
projection prepared by management for the
specific financial period stipulated by the sale
and purchase agreement; analysing the key
assumptions adopted by management with
reference to their business plan and historical
actual results to assess the quality of
management’s financial projection;

AR ARE EMARERER - B
SAEERMNREFENEWERNE AR
EREREERHATROE T BB
RABRA H>WEBEMRAARRE
UKD EEEBHEARBAERE
B NRREEREMBRANGE

Comparing the discount rates used by
management against market information and
internal data;
BEBEMAURXETISEN KA
B

Assessing the events and circumstances
emerging since the last assessment which
triggered the remeasurement; comparing the
performance forecasts to the business plan
prepared by management and obtaining
evidence of those-events or circumstances to
support the remeasurement.

AHE B E—IREHE AR B 4 B AT AB B E AT
ENEHLER  HWBEREMRRER
SMRAER - UBMSAEEHIBERNE
BASX S ERAE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRBE RS (F)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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FEREDERNENFRANER - BFE
IR B M HRR RPN ZBEI RS -
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ZRAEMEERT BERA M HER LI
EBFBRETATHOBRFEERNERE
HEUFFEERERRANER - R
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BofEhm e RPRAEA®RSE -

EEREREEENGESUBR
RAENER

EXARARBEBGIMAGRMNE
BMBHREEARBER RGO KER
THRIBEEEMTENGEMBRE - L H
HEHRRREFRAMBREROEE T FHER
REFFREER TG ERHRBRMH
MABEZREE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYZBE RS ()

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTinuep)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

BEERERZEENGASUER
REEWEE(#)

EREGAVBHRERE  EFEAF
i BEREFELEMNESD  LHEERB
MTHRBEEFBECEBRNER - ARE
ARBEEERSHER RIEFEHE
K BEEEBRIE LKL HHEEM
ERHMERTER -

%

o

m
8

E%E@:fx
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BERENTERE

\

E“uj%
Mo N

BB RN B B AT AR S B IS R AR
MEE

BMWE SRS BRREEBES T
FEANRFHBRMERNERNFER
FOL IS BRE  THABERMER
MEZBESRE -  RAEHE2BRR (R
ER)MERMANER - BRI - K
SUEEMAE - ROT SR ZBENRE
MARFEMEMALTE EAETMNE
(E

BERBESKFHRE  BTERER
REBBRTEAETHNES  EX-EX
#H RR UM T B AR BE B3R - SHRRFRUM AT PA
MG R SIE - MRAETAHHES
KEBERAETEGAMBTRRERE
RREER A B TSR AT B EEDRTE - B
BRNERRATTHRIEER -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRBE RS (F)

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

78

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYZBE RS ()

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

BB AR BT 4r B B A R R AR IE
NWEEE)

e HEERAHELLZSHERNR
EUHELER -  REMEDDFT
BE MTRSFEEFERELBR
BREMEATHEEN  HMAkE
B ERENBEKLERNELE
EARE - MRERMRBBFEEK
THEN  ABLEERBEES
PIRBEREIRSEAMBRT N
HERE REFHENBRESR
ARPEREERIFERERER - &
MR RN Z B ®RE B LA
HISHER/RE - A - RKER
HBERAIEEH EEETRESE
KE -

e HESKAMBHBROERIMmA
X EBENAR BEEE UK
HEMBEHRRRETERRZSZM
FE -

e ¥ EEERNERBIXBEDN
MBEEERRR BENER
BE O NBHEAMBERRER
BER-RMEE BEKEEFFNNS
[~ EEMAT - HMASEFER
EERRELE -

BREMERI) RMEAEZZEQBBT
SPEIMEHE  BRTEREKRETE
% BRBMEER B AER
B ({0 B K BRFE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRBE RS (F)

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 8 May 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEmEkHEtEERER

Year ended 31 December 2019

EE20199F 12 H31 HIFFE
Notes
Bt 55
Revenue LN 5
Cost of sales SHE AR
Gross profit EH
Other income and gains = PN ST & 5
Allowance for expected credit losses in 1% # 84 5% 271 BR 19
respect of financial assets carried at CREENEHEE
amortised cost, net E e E T
Impairment loss on property, plant and  #1% - B &R EHRIE
equipment 518
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets {5 3 # & E R B E 18
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HEAX
Administrative expenses THRAX
Other expenses and losses HEMAZ RERE
Finance costs A& AR 6
(Loss)/profit before tax BB (EE),BF 7
Income tax credit/(expense) FiERiEeE, (FAxX) 10
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EBR) =R
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hftt 2 (E51E) i3
Other comprehensive (loss)/ RA#AEI A fEE T 72
income may be reclassified to Bas A 2w (EE),
profit or loss in subsequent periods: Wz -
Exchange differences on REMBRERNELEZRE
translation of financial statements
Total comprehensive (loss)/ FREE(BR) WEHHE
income for the year
(Loss)/profit attributable to: FEfE (B518), % )
Owners of the Company KRNRHEE A
Non-controlling interests FEPERR IR R
Total comprehensive (loss)/income EE2E(EBE), IR
attributable to: HARE
Owners of the Company AR A
Non-controlling interests FEE PR AR SR R i
(Loss)/earnings per share attributableZ~ A R EREFIFEE A
to ordinary equity holders EiEER(EE),BF
of the Company
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) EXRREEARESD) 12

REEBRARAF 2019 F3H

2019
20194

RMB’000
AR®T T

980,298
(877,211)

103,087

85,549
(15,579)
(2,346)
(6,773)
(191,938)
(117,073)

(4,539)
(29,331)

(178,943)
38,253

(140,690)

(5,969)

(146,659)

(140,436)

(254)

(140,690)

(146,397)
(P1:p))

(146,659)

2018

20184
RMB’000

ARBFT
1,610,043
(1,181,999)

428,044
85,791

(2,331)

(207,606)
(153,770)
(24,972)
(24,870)

100,286
(13,881)

86,405

15,814
102,219
86,405

86,405
102,219

102,219

8.64
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

wRa BB MRR &

As at 31 December 2019
H2019F12H31H

Notes
B &E
Non-current Assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE &R 13
Prepaid land lease payments AT LA E IR 14
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15
Contingent consideration receivables & sk A (E 16
Deferred tax assets EEHIEEE 27
Total non-current assets FERBEELE
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17

Trade and bills receivables
Prepayments, deposits and

B 5 RARIA R KRR E
BNHE BER

18

other receivables H b fE U FRIB 19
Pledged deposits B IFER 20
Cash and cash equivalents RehkBeEEY 20
Total current assets MBEEMRE
Current Liabilities REAE
Trade and bills payables B 5 EMNFIERENEE 21
Contract liabilities aEHaE 22
Other payables and accruals Hin gt E R EFE R 22
Amount due to a shareholder AR B 1B 24

Amount due to related companies
Interests-bearing bank borrowings
Warranty provision

Lease liabilities

Derivative financial instruments
Convertible loan

Income tax payables

FES B2 2 R 3R
FHEERITE R
RIEEE
HEAE
TEEBMTA

A 2 B B R

e FT1S 3

Total current liabilities

mEAEERE

Net current (liabilities)/assets

hE(BE) EEFE

Total assets less current liabilities

EERERABAR
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-

2019
20195
RMB’000
AR¥T

71,480
227,972
234,425

9,020

542,897

169,509
217,018

PAVIVAY)
132,277
71,046

802,067

389,334
24,844
63,240
10,107
80,310

220,815

4,689
46,504
99,986
18,969

958,798

(156,731)

386,166

2018
20184
RMB’000
ARET T

59,096
8,074

226,318
6,866

300,354

217,291
634,521

62,082
93,976
123,928

1,131,798

416,766
17,967
126,331
9,978
81,959
142,197
4,943
2,521
181,372
68,923

1,052,957

78,841

379,195



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

meEmBRRE (E)

As at 31 December 2019
H2019F12H31H

2019
20194

2018
20184

RMB'000

367,321

6,914
360,407

367,321

367,321

Notes RMB’000
e AR¥T AREEFTT

Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEE 27 2,888
Accruals Bzt & B 22 -
Convertible loan AR E X 28 9,602
Lease liabilities HEARE 23 176,709
Total non-current liabilities ERBAELRE 189,199
Net assets BEFHE 196,967
Equity fEm
Share capital % A 29 6,914
Reserves B 30 190,315
Equity attributable to RKATEEA

owners of the Company PR 197,229
Non-controlling interests IEER IR R (262)
Total equity B 196,967

Zou Gebing Wu Yueming
BEE R A
Director Director
- EE

RAERAERAF 2019




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEERmEER

Year ended 31 December 2019

B ZE2019F 12 H31 HIFF/E
Attributable to equity holders of the parent
BAGERARE
Exchange Non-
Share Share Other  Treasury fluctuation  Reserve Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve  shares  reserve funds  profits Total interests  equity
EiGfE
Kx  ROEE HitRE EERG R REEE REEH a3 FEREE ERER
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL ARETH ARETR ARETT ARBTRL ARETL ARETL ARETH ARETT ARETL
(note 29)  (note 30(i)) (note 30(i) (note 30i)) (note 30(iv))
(F29) (FEE300) (HE3E300) (HEE30(0) (PHEE300)
Asat 1 January 2018 #2018F1A1H 6914 211900 198,462 - 1,697 12,000 (91307) 339,666 - 339,666
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - 8405 86405 - 86405
Other comprehensive income for the year: — FREM2ENE :
Exchange differences on translation o~ #EBEHEA
financial statements EiZR - - - - 15814 - - 15814 - 15814
Total comprehensive income for theyear ~ £AZENZEE - - - - 15814 - 8405 102219 - 102,219
Acquisition of an entity under common  WEER EREILEIER
control - - (240853 - - - - (2408%) - (2408%)
Effect on contingent consideration EhSARERE
receivables - - 14507 - - - - 214507 - 14507
Merge effect on subsiciaries HERRAHEE - - 731) - - - - (73 - &)
Transfer from retained profits EREREER - - - - - 3129  (37,29) - - -
Dividend paid BRARE - (4480) - - - - - (7480) - (48))
Asat 31 December 2018 01812318 6914 Te4dizr 171385 NS 4820 (@19 367321 S K]
Adjustment on inital application of RERRAR SRS ER
HKFRS 16 note 22) F16%FEE (M2.2) - - - - - - (10088 (10084) - (10084
Restated balance s at 1 January 2019 201981 A1 BAVBES|
e 6914 164413 171385 - 17511 49290 (52,276) 357237 - 357231
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - (140436)  (140,436) (254)  (140,690)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: EREMRERE:
Exchange differences on translation of HEHBRRY
financialstatements EiZE - - - - (5%) - - (5% ® (599
Total comprehensive loss for the year FR2AFEES - - - - (59%1) - (140436)  (146,397) (262)  (146,659)
Purchase of treasury shares BEERRLR - - - 2269 - - - 2209 - 229
Dividend paid BERRS - (1134 - - - - - (138 - (1138
As at 31 December 2019 H2019128318 6914  153071* 171,385%  (2,269)*  11,550%  49,290* (192,712)* 197,229 (262) 196,967
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB190,315,000 * REREEOREEAVBRAIETRNNEEFE

(2018: RMB360,407,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= 3 =
FmEHERER
Year ended 31 December 2019
B E2019F 12A31HILFZ

Note
B aE

Cash flows from operating activities

REZBDRBRERE

(Loss)/profit before tax BRBAT(ER), SRR
Adjustments for: FHEIEE
Interest income FMEHA 5
Depreciation of property, ME - BEMEETE
plant and equipment 7
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAEEERE 7
Impairment loss on property, plant ME - HERRERE
and equipment &8 7
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets  {& F# & E R EE B 7
Gain on disposal of items of HEME - WERZE
property, plant and equipment, net HH KW - F8E 5
Loss on written off items of WL - BERRE
property, plant and equipment 15 E e EE 7
Fair value change on contingent ﬁEHﬂZEﬁi?)ﬁﬁfg HARE
consideration receivables ) 5
Fair value change o derivative —Hﬁ‘ﬂxg KT B B
component of convertible loan N EEE 5
Amortisation of prepaid land asvE N A E A
lease payments 7
Impairment on trade and E%FEHAZMIE&FEH&KE@
bills receivables, net BAE - FEE 7
Impairment on other E@JEH&TAIE&&QAEHE ’
receivables and deposits, net P = 7
Loss on remeasurement of liability E%ﬁ qug—Hﬁ BERaE
component of convertible loan DHEE 7
Loss on non-substantial modification 3F§7({ A AR E A
of convertible loan E518 7
Write-down of inventories at net T,\W/UZ:I:—J—%J\EE,
realisable value 7
Provision/(reversal of provision) W%&Frﬁ ¢ 1V
against obsolete and (BERmE)
slow-moving inventories 7
Product warranty additional provision = m RIS ZE SN E & 7
Finance costs ELEENEN 6
Operating cash flow before CEESRHALERS
movements in working capital mE
Decrease in inventories FE R
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills B 5 EWRIE K R E IR
receivables A, (35 n)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, FE R - ?;zé R H A 8 U
deposits and other receivables ()R
Decrease in trade and bills payables %%E’%H%\E&Eﬁﬁ%‘%%
L
(Decrease)/increase in other payables — E th g {5} 7018 % fE =1 & F
and accruals CRA),/ 18
Increase in contract liabilities AR BEE N
Utilization of warranty provision A RERE
Cash generated from operations KEMFH S
Income tax paid [RENRIESE

Net cash flows generated from
operating activities

#“® %/ﬁ@]ﬁﬁ?a 2RE
) %E

2019
20195
RMB’000
ARET T

(178,943)
(1,357)

9,586
50,219

2,346
6,773

(15)
4,322
(5.257)

(2,530)

12,451
4,649
29,331

(48,931)
36,437

404,992

(149,550)

(27,758)
(66,731)

6,602
(4,962)

150,099
(17,177)

132,922

2018
20184
RMB’000
ARBFT
100,286
(2,218)

9,936

58

(18,804)
4,746
24,870

111,405
182,184

(247,569)
51,801

(72,924)
47,710

17,967
(3,329)

87,245
(16,304)

70,941
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FERERER (E)

Year ended 31 December 2019
B E2019F 12A31HILFZ

Note
B aE

REZHMERERE
BEWE  BERR
0 B AR

Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for purchases of items of
property, plant and equipment

Payment for purchase of leasehold land B B 0 & + # K9 15 X
Proceeds from disposal of items HEWE  BERREIER
of property, plant and equipment B PTG FRIA

Acquisition of an entity under Ug B = HR4E | B g2
common control

Payment for repurchase of shares

Interest received

(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits

R DR D B 15 3R
EHH S
BEMEFERGEM), KD

Net cash used in investing activities KEEBMARESF5E

MEZHRERERE

Cash flows from financing activities

New bank borrowings FaRITIER

Repayment of bank borrowings BEEBITER

Advance from a shareholder R B R R =K

Advance from related companies K EBEA R
Repayment to related companies M EEE QN RERN

Proceeds from issue of convertible loan  2%17 A] # J& B SR AT 15 5008
Repayment of convertible loan BEARIEER
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEEAE

Dividends paid BIR B E

Interest paid BERFE

BMEEH (AR HMisRE

Net cash flows (used in)/generated

from financing activities MEFHE
Net (decrease)/increase incashand HERESZEY
cash equivalents G2V biih-:2 ]
Cash and cash equivalents at FNRSRASEED

beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate GNEE E SR A B A RO 2

changes, net HEE
Cash and cash equivalents at FRESRESEEY
end of year
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRASEEYERDN
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITHER 20

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements. g2
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o

2019
2019€
RMB’000
ARET T

(28,154)
(27,360)

27

(2,269)
1,357
(38,288)

(94,687)

437,608
(359,778)
4
46,243
(49,509)

(81,037)
(57,864)
(11,342)

(7.873)

(83,548)

(45,313)
123,928

(7,569)

71,046

71,046

2018
20184
RMB’000
ARBFT

(10,869)

7,145
(241,584)

2,218
88,871

(154,219)

354,287
(362,814)

99,112
(21,426)
166,192

175,410

92,132
27,351

4,445

123,928

123,928
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE R RME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Morris Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries as the “Group”) is an exempted company with
limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The
registered office address of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at Unit 2001, 20/F, Citicrop Centre, 18
Whitfield Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 12 January
2017.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the
year, the principal activities of the Group are the manufacture
and sale of sofas, sofa covers and other furniture products.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Morris Capital
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
IIBVIII).

1.

REREEEHR

REBERARAR([AQR] - EF
HINBARSHE XEE]) ANHAS
HETMRINERRERAF -
RN A EYEE A 3 2 B M Ak /5 Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Caymanlslands e ARG M EE &
EMEUNEBWBEHIFRES
SREEEBEPO20E2001E o

AATIRMHDBE2017E1R12BRE
BEBMERZFIAER AR ER LM °

RRABBEEERRAT - FALXE
BNEZXBREERBEED %
DEEREMEREER °

EERARRANERD T RBLE
CRATHARREAARAA -
BARREBELHS ((KEER
BB )M -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019

EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AAREEER®)
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries B8~ B E R
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as ARREEZEMBRARFBRT
follows:
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary share equity attributable
registration and capital/paid up to the Company
business registered capital KAAEEERADL
Company name gWAL/ BRTZAERLK/ Direct Indirect  Principal activities
DRER BEREEHY HRERMBRA E# B TEER
Mstar International Trading Hong Kong/ HK$100 - 100%  Trading of sofas, sofa
(HK) Limited** United States covers and other
fumiture products
*2ERES(BB)ERRR  AE/XE 100%7 - 100% EEDE DEER
EtEEER
Zhejiang Apollo Leather The PRC US$615,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Products Co., Ltd.* sofa covers
IR K2 S TE 615,000%7T - 100% AEREENEE
BRAF
Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home The PRC US$41,470,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd. * (Formerly knows upholstered sofas
as "Haining Gelin Furniture
Co,, Ltd.")
MIRABRFEBRAA Gl 41,470,000% 7 - 100% AEREEREDE
(FIBIEEBRHKARR
)
Masia Industries Co., Ltd. The Kingdom of US$5,000,000 - 100%  Notyet commenced
Cambodia operation
(“Cambodia’)
Masia Industries Co., Ltd. RERIE 5,000,000% 7 - 100%  HARKEEE
(IREE])
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019

EE2019F12H31HILF/Z

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

NEAREEER (#)

MEBLRER(F)

Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary share equity attributable
registration and capital/paid up to the Company
business registered capital FAAEEERADL
Company name gL/ BRTZERLK/ Direct Indirect  Principal activities
DRER BEREEHY HEERMBRAR E# B TEER
Jennifer Convertibles, Inc. The United States US$9,010 100% - Salesof sofas, covers
of America and other furniture
Jennifer Convertibles, Inc. FHNEARE 9,010%7T 100% - products
HEDE DEERK
tEEER
MorriSofa Europe Limited The United GBP1,000 70% - Wholesale of funiture
Kingdom products
MorriSofa Europe Limited 3 1,000% 8 70% - BEEREER
Notes: fteE -
(@) This entity is registered as a domestic enterprise under the laws of the (a) ZEBEBREPEEZAMALLE
PRC. E

(b) This company is registered as a wholly-owned foreign enterprise under
the laws of the PRC.

* The English names of these entities represent management's best effort
at translating their Chinese names as these entities did not register any
official English names.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

(b) FZARBETEEFIMAIEHBED
#

FRIHEEZRARIERELRE
FAXREIBRFEEZERE
MARBIMBLRA - EEZRS 1
HEMHBRARAFBEEEHEH
RILE e

b
=]
E

i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

90

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention. These financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (RMB’'000) except when otherwise
indicated.

Going Concern

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity of the Group in light of the Group’s net loss of
approximately RMB 140,690,000 and net current liabilities of
approximately RMB 156,731,000 as at 31 December 2019. The
directors of the Company have taken the following factors to
consider the future liquidity which include, but not limited to,

the followings:

(i)  Operation plans and positive cash flow operations
The Group will implement operation plans to control
costs and generate adequate cash flows from the Group's

operations.

(i) Necessary facilities
The Group will negotiate with its bankers for the renewal
and additional of bank facilities, and the restructuring of
bank loan combination with an aim to transform the
short-term bank loans to long-term bank loans, in order
to meet the Group’s working capital and financial

requirements in the next 12 months.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019

B E2019F 1231 HIEFE
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (conTinuED) 2.1

Going Concern (Continued)

(iii)  Financial support and amount due to immediate
holding company
Morris Capital Limited, the immediate holding company
of the Group, has agreed to provide the financial support
for not less than 12 months from the year ended 31
December 2019.

(iv)  Put option
Pursuant to the disclosable and connected transaction
announcement of the Company dated 31 March 2020,
the Company has exercised the put option to require the
seller to repurchase all the common stock of Jennifer
Convertible Inc. at the exit price of US$35 million.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, in light of
the various measures or arrangements implemented after
the end of reporting period together with the expected
results of the other measures, the Group will have
sufficient working capital for its current requirements and
it is reasonable to expect the Group to remain a
commercially viable concern. Accordingly, the directors of
the Company are satisfied that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

mBLEZE (7)

SEEE (B

(i) BEEERAINTBIZH

AEEMEEZERARRAE
RERAREREBEZE2019
F12A31BIEFERBEHETD
1218 A BB B o

(iv) RoLEERE
RIBEARRGF B HR2020F3 A
BSTHMATERELRBAERS
NE - AREETERGER
B EREHIRTEEIEE
FE LA Jennifer Convertibles
Inc. 2 EE@AR -

B
=
=
T
=
OfF
&
o
o
NN
(]
=
v
i
mE

A7 ) I N R = A= OR
HER  ARAEEFAR K
HERHEEESRNR
EERBR  TRERHAEE
AERAREERE - HIt
ARAREREMRBERLER
ERUSEMBERRTIBE

i
i

% o
REEE

REUMBHRBEAEEHZ=2019
F1I2A31HEFENIBERE -

B AR ABARAEZIEEE
HHER(BREBIEER) - BX
SEAZ2EBREHROEHMmAE
Rk AREESTIHO®R  LHE
NEBHREHROE D (NE T A
SEENUETEREHRNMERA
SR FRN)FEZFLRE - A
HRAS 4% il 4 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
M BHERME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.1 REEE &)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (conTinueD)

92

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing

whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders

of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

()  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss

of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

REREEE)

MARPEZRXAEEERLRERE
HENRZBERREIALUER -
AIREERFEEEEHRAHKRE
HEONBIKEERE —HEBEFE
KER - B

(a) EHREMKRERTAAN

/

o> &
5

2
X

HiBORBEPTELMER

%/tﬂi

() AREEMIES
#E o

ERRBERR

B ARMMERRRBER G
12878782 NYNCIP NI Ea=  E T
HoWBRAMEEAAKRERE
IR RESRE AR WHEER
BAREEREZEHEHREAR
1k e

EalkEbEzmkaSERBOH
FERASERRARZHEAA °
AEBRERAZANRHELN
FESREREERERE  #x@
AXHEREREDESREKRE
2B -

WMEEENRBERER Ll =HZEH
.%a@—;aq;;aﬁiﬁm@ N
SEEENTHERTEHREY
E MT%“TE%?H i # Al & B
ERDEHRERR I AR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma

IR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (conTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the

Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs (the “New and Amendments to HKFRSs") issued by
the HKICPA for the first time in the current year:

HKAS 19 (Amendments) Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

HKAS 28 (Amendments) Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

2.1

2.2

mEERE7)
REREEE)

fie] 75 5% 18 5k 25 — KM /BB & B A9 42
0 BIERIERER(G) M E R
BE(BERE)REIE - (i) EMIFE
EHIEREMREE RGN ER
NREHENRARFHEZH - URER
(WFTAER A RE (i) TRE T
MRENAAE  R(iBEREPE
MAKELENRE - EAREME
M W A RERR B AN R B B (S B 0 %
MAERBEERHERNREELER
RRENHERAEESH ORERS
KRB B A (B A )

ot

SRR E2#

AEBECRAFEBEREAIATH
BAEGRTE R GEMO AT REE
RIEEMBHREER([HETRER
AERMBREER])

BRGIMENFI9% LT BRAEE

(BF1%)

BAEIENEY  REELRARAELE
(BF1%) B RS

BAMBREER BB BREEL2015
(1B3TR) FENVFRENERE

i

BRI REER ARRBENRANER
FOR(BTX) B

BRI REER fE
F16% (BT R)

BE(ERBERE FERARN TR

2EZEg)-523%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
=)

PR R MY RE (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

94

DISCLOSURES (conminuep)

Except as described below, the application of the New and
Amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases
("HKAS 17"), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS
16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this standard to
contracts that were not previously identified as containing a
lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts which
already existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 January
2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance
with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether
a contract contains a lease.

As a lessor

Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged
from HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either
operating or finance leases using similar principles as in HKAS
17. Therefore, HKFRS 16 did not have an impact on leases
where the Group is the lessor. The lessor accounting
requirements are brought forward from HKAS 17 substantially
unchanged.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BB RN E ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 S HERREBE2E8 (#)

DISCLOSURES (conminuep)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Definition of a lease (Continued)

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application,
1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional lease
liabilities and measured right-of-use assets at the carrying
amounts as if HKFRS 16 had been applied since
commencement dates, but discounted using the incremental
borrowing rates of the relevant group entities at the date of
initial application by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(i) transition. Any
difference at the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening retained profits and comparative information has not

been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following
practical expedients to leases previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to the extent

relevant to the respective lease contracts:

() elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within

12 months of the date of initial application;

(i)  excluded initial direct costs from measuring the

right-of-use assets at the date of initial application;

(i) applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
a similar remaining terms for similar class of underlying

assets in similar economic environment;
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
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DISCLOSURES (conminuep)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Definition of a lease (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

(iv)  used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as at
date of initial application in determining the lease term
for the Group’s leases with extension and termination

options; and

(v)  relied on the assessment of whether leases are onerous
by applying HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets as an alternative of impairment

review.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities at
the date of initial application. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rates applied by the relevant group
entities range from 2.49% to 6.65%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 EHERRIEECEE (£)
DISCLOSURES (conminuep)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) ERMBREERNE16FEE(E)
Definition of a lease (Continued) HEMTE(E)
As a lessee (Continued) EABEFN ()
RMB'000
ARETT
Operating lease commitment R2018%128318H
as at 31 December 2018 REHERE 249,266
Less: total future interest expenses o RRFBERT B (56,158)
Less: short-term leases not recognised as liability B AERBBENEHRES (2,640)
Less: practical expedient-leases with lease termending & : AI{THEE 5 )& — B &N ER B #AfE st
within12 months from date of initial application NREARNESRLRNEE (9,391)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 N2019F1A1BMNEHESR 181,077
Analysis as: DT
Current nE 22,735
Non-current JERE 158,342
181,077
The carrying amount <.)f nght-of-use. assets for own use as at 201941 A18 - GEEAREE
1 January 2019 comprises the following: MR e IE N TR IE -
Notes RMB’000
Bt ARBTFT
Right-of-use assets relating to operating FEFE SR RE R E 165814 170,993
leases recognised upon application 27 B4 A T 5 75 R M 18
of HKFRS 16
HEE
Add: Reclassification from prepaid lease n: BENBEZXEEHSE (a) 8,254
payments
Less: Accrual lease liabilities B EETRE AR (b) (7,101)
172,146
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
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DISCLOSURES (conminuep)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Definition of a lease (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The following table summarises the impact of transition to
HKFRS 16 on retained profits as at 1 January 2019:

22 BHBERBEZ28 0

ERMBHRELENF1657EEHE)

HEMER(E)
1ERAA (&)

s .
MR E

TR EE = BB USRS R
F165¥2019F 1 A1HMRE

il

Impact of
adopting
HKFRS 16 at

1 January 2019

®1A1E
20194
RNE B %
AR
F1eFMTE
RMB’000
ARBTT

Retained profits

Initial recognition of right-of-use assets
as at 1 January 2019

Initial recognition of lease liabilities as at
1 January 2019

REB % F
M2019F1 A1HERERERESE

M2019F1 A1THEAERTEERE

170,993

(181,077)

Impact as at 1 January 2019

M2019F1 A1THNFE

10,084

Notes: B
(a) Upfront payments for leasehold lands in Cambodia for own used (a) M2018F12A318  BiRBEEAAY
properties were classified as prepaid lease payments as at 31 December ¥hHET MO EMNFIES EATEMNE
2018. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the current and non-current portion ERE-EAEEMBHRELENSE 16
of prepaid lease payments amounting to RMB180,000 and RMB8,074,000 g ENEERENRS RIERD
respectively were reclassified to right-of-use assets. B DRI AARY180,000T R AR
8,074,000 - WEFHHDHEEAEE
=
(b)  These relate to accrued lease liabilities for leases of properties in which (b)y HEEHAAREEYERHELERNE

the lessors provided rent-free period. The carrying amount of the lease
incentive liabilities under trade and other payables as at 1 January 2019
was adjusted to right-of-use assets at transition.

AATHEBEAM - M2019F1A18 -
B REMEMNFKEE THEEEEE

MEREENEERARERAEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 B BEREEZEH (&)
DISCLOSURES (conTinuED)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) ERMBREERNE16FEE(E)
Impact on the consolidated financial statements HixaMBaEnz 2
The following table summarises the impacts of the adoption of TRBMRABT B BREELNE
HKFRS 16 on the Group's consolidated statement of financial 165 ANEEMN2019F1 A1 HNE
position as at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not affected EMBRARNEE TXEHT
by the changes have not been included. ZWIEBRIARBEEENA °
As at As at
31 December 1 January
2018  Reclassification Leases 2019
120185 R2019%
12531R EXnE BE 1618
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETR AREFT ARETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Right-of-use assets (Note 1) RREEET) - 1,153 170,993 172,146
Prepaid land leases payments (Note 2) & + st/ E & (Fi512) 8,074 (8,074) - -
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 300,354 (6,921) 170,993 464,426
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and BRME  RER
other receivables (Note 2) i IR (FiE2) 62,082 (180) - 61,902
Total current assets RBEELH 1,131,798 (180) - 1,131,618
Current liabilities RBERE
Lease liabilities (Note 1) REaBE(ME) - - 22,735 22,735
Accruals and other payables EAERREMERTE 126,331 (1,072) - 125,259
Total current liabilities RBARAR 1,052,957 (1,072) 22,735 1,074,620
Net current assets RBEERE 78,841 892 (22,735) 56,998
REERAERAT 2019 F8,R 99



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 EHERIEECEE (&)
DISCLOSURES (conminuep)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) BEMBRELEMNE16RBEHE)
Impact on the consolidated financial statements HIRE M BHRERNTE(E)
(Continued)
As at As at
31 December 1 January
2018 Redlassification Leases 2019
#2018% R2019%
12A318 EXD R BE 1518
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTIL ARBTT ARBTL ARBTR

Non-current liabilities FRBEE

Lease liabilities (Note 1) BERE(ME) - - 158,342 158,342

Accruals and other payables e ERREMERNTE 6,029 (6,029) - -

Total non-current liabilities FhBaBeE 11,874 (6,029) 158,342 164,187

Net assets BERE 367,321 - (10,084) 357,237

Equity ER

Reserves FE 360,407 - (10,084) 350,323

Total equity ERA8 367,321 - (10,084) 357,237

Notes: MEE

(1) The application of HKFRS 16 to leases previously classified as operating () HEMBEBEEBESFENEI17RSE
leases under HKAS 17 resulted in the recognition of right-of-use assets of REEHENHERRBBEAMBRE
RMB170,993,000 and lease liabilities of RMB181,077,000 at the initial HERFE16REBNERRNBT BN B
adoption of HKFRS 16. WMEFAFICRHRACHEEEA

R#170,993,000c A HEBBBARK
181,077,0007T °

(2)  Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the Cambodia own used (2)  M2018%F 128310 RmEREAAME
properties were classified as prepaid land lease payments as at FHEETMMIERRES EATEMN L
31 December 2018. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the current and HERE - EAEBYBWMEENE 16
non-current portion of prepaid land lease payments amounting to & - DRl AARKE180,000t AR
RMB 180,000 and RMB8,074,000 respectively were classified to #.8,074,0007CH) BN B &2 JE BN HAFE 1+ =
right-of-use assets. WHERESDREERAEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019

#E2019F 1231 HIFFE
2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23 EEMEERERNE BB

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HwE%ER

The Group has not early applied the following new and AEBYEBRERFEAUNTEHME

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet R EME IR RGBT BB

effective: WwEEA

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material’ FRGHENZ S ERHEE'

(Amendments) REEGHES
8% (BEIA)
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’ BB e ENE9% - FIREERE
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) BAGHER
FI9RRERHE
BERUETH
(7 K)
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a business? FANBREENEIE  EBNTE
(BFIK)
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets EERBREES REFEEBLENA
(Amendments) between an Investor and its FI0EREBGH HEELEZRLE
Associate or Joint Venture® BRFF(BITR) FIAEE
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’ BRUBREENZ IR RRAW
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. ! R2020F1 A1 B 2 B FIAH FEH
AR »

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the 2 HRAUE B HA2020F1 A1 B 2%
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period Wiz EEEEHMORKRs 2% B
beginning on or after 1 January 2020. MEBEHREERBER -

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. 3 R2021F1 A 1B 2 B HIA W FEH

AR ©

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 4 NETHH2ERABOEEHMAE
determined. B e

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs, a MR LR RT & 78 BT 25 R R A R K

revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was IERTARDN - (EAE T B 75 3 &5 LA

issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the RIN2018F F M o HARMEASFT (B

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in HEBMBRELBESIER IR

HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods beginning iz AER]) 2020 1 A1 RS2

on or after 1 January 2020. ‘RFGZFERRER -

The Directors anticipate that the application of all new and ESHMERMAEN REERTE

amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the 78 B A R R AR AT RS RS T8

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future. HEAPBRREREATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

M BHERME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.4

102

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following

criteria is met:

o the customers simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has no
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required

before payment of that consideration is due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BB RN E ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EETBERBE )

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer. A contract asset and a contract liability
relating to a contract are accounted for an presented on a net
basis.

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sales of sofa, sofa covers and other furniture
products are recognised at a point in time when control of the
goods has transferred, which generally coincides with the time
when the products are delivered to customers and title is
passed.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,

assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
M BHERME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EETTBERBE )

POLICIES (conTinuED)

P

B E(#)

]
A
=
al||

Fair value measurement (Continued)

FEeRMEENAABNEAT D
L2RELERARERERZEE

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into

account a market participant’s ability to generate economic

benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by ERRERAS  WBZREELET

selling it to another market participant that would use the asset BERARECTRZEEERZER

in its highest and best use. BREMMISLHEEREENERE
s o

AEBRBEARTEBRAERE
ROBEBAHAELIAENEES

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in

the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to

measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable %o NEREFERABETERGE AR

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. BRESRM OGBS R AR
& o

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or MMEERARERYBRRT2HH

BEMEEMAENRTINERAAEE
g& \"'E , /\*EB%R\ T/A\L_\ AE-_I_%

disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a BEREmEBERNKEEH AR

whole: HTT

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active E1h— ENBREESBERNE
markets for identical assets or liabilities PRI 5 A B CRETHE)

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest 22— EREARBEFEMSE
BEANAER(EEXH
measurement is observable, either directly or B)REERARENG
indirectly (EWADZA

level input that is significant to the fair value

ERY AR B RS E
EAHTIREREES
AR BT %

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest E3M—
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the

end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EETBERBE )

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the

cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories

consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

M BHERME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTinuED)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same

group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow

subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an

entity related to the Group;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTHHERBME )

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Related parties (Continued)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies: (Continued)

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influence
by, that person in their dealing with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer or resources, or obligation between
the Group and a related party, regardless of whether a price is

charged.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition

and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful

lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the

lease terms and 33.3%
10% to 20%

20% t0 33.3%

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures
and office equipment

Motor vehicles 20% t0 33.3%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at

each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building, plant and
machinery and other items of property, plant and equipment
under construction, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalized borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed

and ready for use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESFHBERBE®)

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2.2)

Lease is a contract contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract

are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2.2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the

non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-lease

components as a single lease component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBRBE®)

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2.2) (Continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of buildings that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption for
lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight — line basis or another systematic basis over the lease
term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use asstes as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

112

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2.2) (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise:

o fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate,
initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

o the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the

lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate
the lease.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

2.4 TEESTBEREE (#)

HE#E)

EEEFEBERBEA(RER 2.2
HYIB B AR X JEFG & BRI H 3
RIFE1655#&) (%)

REHERE
ENAERHERE IREREY
BREENFEISFRI M T A |([HFHR
MBHEEENEIR AR LH
BARENE - VITHIAKH AR
EEEHRABERRSEINEENRK
Bt NERBEEEMRAE -

BERE

REERBAS  AEERZAE
NOWEENRRERBRIERE
B1E - R ERER KN RIER -
fF RS R R RE - AR
1 8 PR 7L B R 02 B4 R
R -

FAAMERGEAENEENKREE

e BEEMHEMNK(BREZEE
R - REEAEREEE
H

o HEMEEMNNK HBURN—IA
BHAMNE - VLT ERER
e B HIEY 18 B R X

o ABARBHHKEEBEREY
S

e BEERERNTEE(HEAME
ABEBETEEEE) &

o HEMRBRITERLHERNR
B AR LEEENE

e
A °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHmRMWE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTinuED)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2.2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)
After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review or expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease
if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESFHBERBE®)

POLICIES (conTinuED)
HE(#)

EEEFEBERBEA(RER 2.2
HYIB B AR X JEFG & BRI H 3
RIFE1655#&) (%)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2.2) (Continued)

HEEAT (&

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate RAEA—HEBHEAENEE
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the BHmME  AEBERBRERE
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised AR A B KB AT R IR R AL IR &K
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective & T 10 & T SR £ & i & 1) 1H 13
EFTEHEAE -

Lease modifications (Continued)

date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities AEBFEREYEBEERAEEEED
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of- HERAE  BHEBBEEHIAEA
use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease o BEENEHNBEREOMD K
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease N — & =k 2% 1B 58 SN 49 2k FE T 49 K
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the AE - REERBEHEOK DB
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of the BUYEREIFBONSNEBEE
relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the 1% BEEREHNTFHREIESR
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components. FEBHKS -

The Group as a lessee (prior to adoption of AEBERFRBA (R2019F 151

HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received from the
lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBRBE®)

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2.2)

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other

leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model. Upon application
of HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, variable lease payments for
operating leases that depend on an index or a rate are
estimated and included in the total lease payments to be
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are

recognised as income when they arise.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate the
consideration under the contract to each component.
Non-lease components are separated from lease component on

the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESFHBERBE®)

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2.2) (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits
Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as
a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

The Group as a lessor (prior to adoption of
HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received from the
lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

116  MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

HE#)

EEFEBHBEA (RER 2.2
HYAE B AR X JEFG & B R B3
RIFE165%&) (%)

AR HE R S

BEWEH A REES N KRS RE
BEMBHRELEREIRAKRBNS
BARERE - ITEIBH LA
ERNHEERERFEANBEINEE
(DR

HEEET
AEBBEEHEERBEHRER
PHEERFTHEAR YK AH
REBEEMNEMBENKEFHEN
RERHEENHENR D -

AEFESHAA (R2019F181H
HANE BB EREERFE16555)

HEADREEERBEOBAI
EHREEROBEEINIFEER
g - MAKEREABA  RELE
HERMWES (FNK B HE AMKER
R E) IR BAEREE BR
Ik -

KEHETHRNLWESENRE
IRBERANR - BBERREHARE
BORTER. ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.
Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed

when incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTHHERME )

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest and dividend income which are derived from the
financial assets and shareholders’ rights are presented as other

revenue and other income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FEETTHEREBE &)
POLICIES (conTinuED)

Financial instruments (Continued) TRIAE)

Financial assets THEE

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets CTHEEMNSERAEE

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are REUTHRENEREEHL GRS

subsequently measured at amortised cost: ARG &

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose e SRMEEREMAKMAELR
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and ERENHEEXANMIFTE

54

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash s AHNKRFNRETRHELER
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest TR RABEAESFEDN
on the principal amount outstanding. WEME °

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are REUTHRENEMEERZRD

subsequently measured at fair value through other AEFAEMEEKGE

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose e SRMEEREMAKNMAELNR
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash eRERDENFERNAM
flows and selling; and BE &

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash s SHBRFRETERHESER
flows that are solely payment of principal and interest on TR RABERAEFEDN
the principal amount outstanding. WEME °

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if: CREEDERFHIEER i

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling e WHEZAEFZENRREHR
in the near term; or e gk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(Continued)

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;

or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or
FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or

significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit

impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTHHERBME )

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other revenue and other
income” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses ("ECL") on financial assets which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables, deposit
paid, other receivables, loan receivables, time deposits, loan to
director and cash and bank balances). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting period to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

M BHERME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

122

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12 months ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting period.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting period as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
without significant financing component. The ECL on these
assets are assessed individually for debtors with significant
balances.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
period with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e BB RN E ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTinuED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtors;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is

unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more

appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data

about the following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTinuED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognized

in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks

of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial

recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet
be available, the financial instruments are grouped on the

following basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s trade
receivables are each assessed as a separate group. Loans
to related parties are assessed for expected credit losses

on an individual basis);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTHHERBME )

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit

risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on

amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognized through a loss

allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

M BHERME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings and are recognised initially at fair value and

net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other payables, and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on

their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting

period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in the profit or loss.

Non-substantial modifications of financial
liabilities

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant
financial liabilities will be calculated at the present value of the
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial
liabilities original effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees
incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial liabilities and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial liability is
recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion

and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an

integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature
to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

130  MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

24 TR HEBE#)

TRMIAE)
BHETHMTA

MRFARATRITHEEZEFEED
BEREBEBERIREELH
KFRFEREERGERG  AE
MEEHESRABEANEHEAFER
MIBRARER -

rE

FE AR R ] B3R E M E A
R E IR o AN I DO T g A
BE ERmMEKGORANEE
BEEME  BEESTIREELIN
MZEEM - IR FERGEFEE
B AEAR] T2 B Ko 6 P 7R AT AR AR

iE °

RERRTEEY

ARl RERNRAENREEFE
VERFERSEFRFR - UK
ARERERACNeRES  BE
EPREIAABER—KRAEET
BEZEACREAMANERTR
BRE BINRARERKEEREAR
BRASEERSER G5 HRT
B e

REMBRRARNRERBASEE
MEREIRAENFERS RRTT
Re(BRERFRREERRSHE
PUWEE) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
each reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume and past
experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to

their present value as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

132

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Income tax (Continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying

amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting

profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can

be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or

loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reserve in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of each reporting period.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “"MPF
Scheme”) in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s operations in Mainland China
are required to participate in central pension schemes operated
by the local municipal governments, the assets of which are
held separately from those of the Group. Contributions are
made by the Group based on a percentage of the participating
employees’ salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension schemes. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully

once made.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
M BHERME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised

immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements items of the combining businesses in which the
common control combination occurs as if they had been
combined from the date when the combining businesses first
came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining businesses are consolidated
using the existing book values from the controlling party’s
perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or
bargain purchase gain at the time of common control
combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining businesses from the earliest date presented or since
the date when the combining businesses first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control
(Continued)

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the businesses had been
combined at the end of the previous reporting period or when

they first came under common control, whichever is shorter.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group's most senior executive management for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,
the Group's various line of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
M BHERME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Foreign currencies

The Company’s functional currency is the United States dollar
("US$"). Because most of the subsidiaries’ functional currencies
are RMB, the consolidated financial statements are presented
in RMB. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the consolidated financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of each reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary

items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income

or profit or loss, respectively).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of the Company and certain
subsidiaries are currencies other than RMB. As at the end of
each reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period and their profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular operation is not recognised in profit
or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows,
the cash flows of subsidiaries with functional currencies other
than RMB are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of these subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates

for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

The major judgements, estimates and assumptions that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year are set out below:

Going concern

As disclosed in note 2.1, the directors have prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis as they are of the
opinion that the Group has adequate sources of liquidity to
fund the Group’s working capital and to meet its debt
obligations as they become due based on the cash flow
forecast prepared by the directors. Any adverse result on the
actual future cash flow would affect the Group's ability to

continue as a going concern.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (conminuep)

Provision against obsolete and slow-moving
inventories

The Group reviews an ageing analysis of its inventories and the
condition of its inventories at the end of each reporting period,
and makes provision against obsolete and slow-moving

inventory items which are identified as no longer suitable for

3.
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and bills receivables, deposit and other receivables based on
various factors including the aging of the receivables, historical
write-off experience and forward looking information. The
identification of impairment of receivables requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences will impact the
carrying amounts of receivables and the allowance for credit
losses on receivables is recognised in the years in which such
estimates have been changed. See note 39 for further

discussion.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

142

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (conminuep)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Impairment exists when the carrying value of
an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets
or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.

Impairment of advances to suppliers under
HKAS 36

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for advances to suppliers at the end of each
reporting period. Advances to suppliers are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. The identification of
impairment of advances to suppliers requires management’s
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in the future is different from the original
estimates, such differences will have an impact on the carrying
value of advances to suppliers and impairment/write-back of
impairment in the reporting period in which such estimate is

changed.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

3.

BERGFHE R E)

FERMEERE

REBRESHR  AKEFEHRAFE
TREERSHEEARETR - &
B SREAEEERLD A REE
AEESHFTREELETRENR
Ao BEERRSELENNER
EEBEAWE SR (BIQ A ER
ERALEREEMETNRSE)
i BIFAERE - AAEREEK
ATRBERAFRAANETEABEOR
NMBLEELERFIMENERE
FAERTSERRELEEEN
BEKAME - EtEERER
R EEEMAGAERAKRKE
EERACELEUNRSRE -
RERFEENHRAXFEZER
EREMNRE -

RIEEBS R ERERE365H
3 {5 FE R SRR R (E

REREHR  NEBFBHEMSH
ERFBALEFEEABERR -
EETRRAREERLA KD
B AKE e UEMNHEERREE
TTRE RIS - 38Rl TR (/B 78 3R IR
BB R E R E A S AT e
fia B B A5 RSR R TR HI B I ) 44
Bt - MIAEEZRE SN AE MG %
EEPNREHRATERNHEER
FRERREE R ERE REED -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (conminuep)

Current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications
of its transactions in accordance with prevailing tax regulations
and makes tax provision accordingly. However, judgement is
required in determining the Group’s provision for income taxes
as there are many transactions and calculations of which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, the differences will impact on the income tax and
deferred tax provision in the periods in which the determination
is made. The carrying amounts of current tax payables and
deferred tax assets and liabilities are set out in the consolidated
statement of financial position and note 27 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Derecognition of factored trade receivables
and discounted/endorsed bills receivable

The Group has entered into arrangements with its bankers in
respect of the factoring of trade receivables and discounting of
bills receivable, or endorsed certain of its bills receivable
accepted by banks to certain of its suppliers in order to settle
the trade payables due to such suppliers. Based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements
and the credit quality and settlement pattern of the factored
trade receivables and discounted/endorsed bills receivable,
management has to determine whether the Group has retained
substantially the risks and rewards of certain receivables, which
include default risks relating to such receivables. Details of the
transfers of financial assets are included in note 37 to the

financial statements.
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REBREBE N B A A SR
B - AEERBERITHBIESRZE
BEFHERXZORBTZE  LWHE
MEHRERERE - AT EEEA
SENMSHBERAED A -
TERBEXBBEFR REEERE
ERRBEMRBANR 5 Kt E
BEZ  c FAMFENRKHASR
RENABRESEIR  ZEZBEHF
27 T IR B H PTG AR RO AE TR
R - BB AN REEMX
MERRBREENRBBHNES
BN R KRG E P IBHMRME27 -

RIEBIAREEZRERERD
B CEERBRRE

AEBERRIEE S RUKFIE R
BRUEBRERITITLRE - 8
RITEERHNETREREZEESETA
SEETHER UEEH
HEBNEZEMNRA - REY L
oz R R B AR - A R B ARE
EHRBEFERBUR BEEERE
WERENEEEZREETAEL
M EEEABEARERS
EREBE T REKAENBAE D R
RO BEREZFEERER
MNENRR SREESBHE
NP MR EIT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
M BHERME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (conminuep)

Warranty provision

As further explained in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group makes provisions for the warranties it
gives on the sale of its products taking into account the
Group's current sales levels and past experience of the level of
repairs and returns. As the Group is continually upgrading its
product designs and launching new models, it is possible that
the past experience of the level of repairs and returns is not
indicative of future claims that it will receive in respect of past
sales. Any increase or decrease in the actual claims would

affect profit or loss in future years.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods
or services delivered or provided. This is also the basis upon

which the Group is organised and managed.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8
are as follows:

a.  Retail segment

b.  Manufacturing segment
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBHERMETE (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F12A31HIFFE
4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTinuED) 4. DEBER(#)
Segment revenue and results Pl NS E 3
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results NTREAEEIRI]EHREE D HE
by reportable and operating segments: DEMWARZEEDT
Elimination of
Retail segment Manufacturing segment intersegment sales Total
ZEAD ESY AREHEYH @t
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
2019% 2018% 2019% 2018% 2019% 2018% 2019% 2018%
RMB'000 RMB'000 ATl RMB'000 ATl RMB'000 AT RMB'000
AEETT PNESol AR%Tn PNSol ARK4T7T ENawa AKETT BNSE
Segment revenue AHUA
Biternal sales HPHEE LA 00448 | ERERR 1,387,505 980.298
Internal sales MEHE 64,803 20838 (1) 803) (20, 838) -
241,860 222,448 IR 1,408,433 (64,803) (20,838) 980.298
Segment (loss)/profit AB(ER) /&R (18,823) EECOEDN  (141,426) (148) (160,397)
Interest income FEMA 1,357
Fair value change on derivative  ATAREZ AT £ E5
component convertible loan HALEEY 2,530
Fair value change on contingent ~ FELal At B £
consideration receivables MEEY 5,257
Loss on non-substantial FEXBIT TR

modification of convertible loan  EFHIEE
Loss on remeasurement of liability ESrstEMAKER
component of convertible loan B ES 851
Unallocated corporate expenses KA ATER
Unallocated finance costs AARBENL

Segment (loss)/profit represents the (loss from)/profit earned by
each segment without allocation of interests income, fair value
change on derivative component of convertible loan, fair value
change on contingent consideration receivables, loss on
remeasurement of liability component of convertible loan,
unallocated corporate expenses, and unallocated finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the Board for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

B (BR) 87

(Loss)profit before taxation

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

(3.915)

(15,771)
(8,004)

SEB(E1R) R FIE SR ( FTELE
E18) /BT EUE I - k4 5 B
BUA - BB ERITEL DD
u@“@ Bl ARENARE
''''''' BE EFEABRBRERAEDS
DHEBE  KROEQAFBEIEERS
BB &R o WM E B
BHAR - UWEHEERKFHE
| .

(ERIER 100,286

S E R ERBIITISRBEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FEMBRRWE (K)
For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 12A31 HILFE
4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuED) 4. DEBER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERAR
Retail segment Manufacturing segment Consolidated
2EL B EESB ®e

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20184 20194 20184 20195 20184
RMB’000 HVEEON  RMB000 HYEEON  RMB000 RMB'000

ARBTT PNERwE \RHETT PRSP ARYTT NS

Segment assets NBEE 287,448 91,490 Sppibhe 1,098,492 lklavkr | 1,189,982
Unallocated corporate bVl W/NG]
assets BE 235,389 242,170

Segment liabilities SEEE 272,523 60,527 662,022 714,994 934,545 775,521

Unallocated corporate KB A Al

Consolidated assets GRBE 1,432,152

liabilities = 213,452

- 1,147,997

289,310

Consolidated liabilites A& & 1,064,831

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and BERSERIBENEZESI Z2ED

allocating resources between segments: BRER -

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other than e BEAIEATNEE(XTE@HE
unallocated corporate assets (mainly comprising FEWSARBREHEM RSB A
contingent consideration receivables and other FIEE)INN  EEEHSER
unallocated corporate assets); and ERESE ;K

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other e BEMNEATNEB(FTEmiE
than unallocated corporate liabilities (mainly comprising FENRBENTIRIE - (TSR
amount due to related companies, derivative financial TEH . BB EZREMEAD
instruments, convertible loan and other unallocated AT BE)N  FTEEEY
corporate liabilities). SERELKE DI o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE2019F 1231 HIEFE
4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTinueD) 4. DEER(E)
Other segment information Hith 3 ZRE ¥
Retail segment Manufacturing segment Unallocated Total
ZEAR EEAR L) @it
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
2019% 20185 IR 20185 WIICESN 20185 WEWIICEM  2018%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT BNAR ARETT BNEEel ARETT BELER ARETT ENRE
Addition of right-of-use assets T B FFIEARE 70,640 41435 112,075
Addition of property, TENE HR
plant and equipment R 3017 25,131 28,154
Depreciation of property, ~ #1%  BER
plant and equipment RERE 3835 5,751 , 9,586
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ (FREBENE
assets 46,437 3782 50219
Amortisation of prepaid ~~ EREEFE
land lease payments B

Provision/(reversal of provision) & £ [t 15

against obsolete and GERE/
sow-moving inventories  (EEER) 12,257 , 12,451

Impairment loss on trade and % 5 VB R B
bill receivables WEEHERE 15,155 15,576
Impairment loss on BB 2R
prepayments, deposits HinfEUEE
and other receivables HEEE 3
Impairment loss on property, 91 + B kit /&
plant and equipment HEEE 1973 2,306
Impairment loss on ERESERR
right-of-use assets B 4,066 6773
Finance costs HERE 12,851 29,331
Geographical information hEE R
(@) Revenue from external customers (a) HNBERPLULA
Geographical information in respect of revenue from HARIEBRARENE DB
external customers is not presented since most of the B2 DK E B KIS
Group's revenue from external customers, based on the HEEIWARENERER
locations of the products delivered to the customers, is (TER ) ELE  HHEZY
generated in the United States of America (the “U.S.”). HINEEEFIWABBRIMNEE
Accordingly, in the opinion of the Directors, the B oA EF=RE 29
presentation of geographical information would provide BERETE AEAMEER
no additional useful information to the users of the FRERHEBEINERESR -

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A M AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuED)
Geographical information (Continued)

(b) Non-current assets

4.

DEBER (&)
HEER(E)
(a) SMEBEFUA
2019 2018
20195 20184

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T JUNSRw

The People’s Republic of China RIEARHR
(including Hong Kong) (BiERE)

Cambodia RIHE

The U.S. =

The United Kingdom HEH

79,444 21,073
36,387 42,345
183,460 3,752
161 -

299,452 67,170

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes deferred tax assets

and contingent consideration receivables.

Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers with did not consist any related
parties of the corresponding year contributing over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group is as follows:

NEFRRBDEEERTIREE
ENMLEZS  TEEBELEN
TREE R W ARAE -

BFREEIREFNER

RIEEFEEEAEEAWA10% A
FHEEEF(TRETMNBER)
WA

2019 2018
2019% 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt N S

N/A* 35 F * 239,207
208,518 180,591
N/A* 35 F * 164,276
N/A* T 3E i * 164,046
100,847 WA/ NEN=1:: K

Customer 1 =P

Customer 2 ®F2

Customer 3 ®F3

Customer 4 BF4

Customer 5 ®F5

* Revenue from the customer is less than 10% of the total revenue of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
B E2019F 1231 HILFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns, trade discounts and value-added tax.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

WA~ HAAWAR WS

WAEFRHEERNKREE - B5
MBI ER R EROBERFE -

WA~ Hfb A RS DA T

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%¥ Tt NS

Revenue KA
Recognised at point of time: RE—FF R HR -
Manufacture and sales of sofas, sofa 4 EREEDE  DEER

cover and other furniture products HiREER 980,298 1,610,043
Other income and gains Hihlw A R Wz
Interest income F B WA 1,357 2,218
Exchange gains, net b R e - FEE 31,004 8,213
Government subsidiaries” BT 47 BR " 27,302 2,312
Gain on disposal of property, HEDE - BE REEN

plant and equipment Wz 15 3,775
Rental income Ea WA 6,010 1,084
Fair value change on derivative AR ERITESLHH

component of convertible loan NiEES 2,530 27,501
Sales of raw materials SHE R 134 9,327
Repair service income #IERBUA 9,180 9,129
Compensation on factory relocation i 5 1R B R (B = 15,846
Fair value change on contingent FE S AR AB Y

consideration receivables NRBEEE 5,257 2,799
Others Hih 2,760 3,587

85,549 85,791

Subsidies have been received from the local governments in Zhejiang
Province in respect of the Group’s contribution to sofa industry. There
were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these subsidies
as at 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

! MTERTBARASEE D BRESR

BEBREAME) - 201912831
A HEEEZEH S RERIGHFK
WREIE(20184F : ) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVBWRE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 12A31 HILFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount of the

transaction price allocated to the remaining performance

obligation under the Group'’s existing manufacture and sales of

sofa, sofa covers and other furniture products is approximately
RMB24,844,000 and the Group will recognised this revenue in

2020.

6. FINANCE COSTS

5.

WA~ B AR W aS (48)

M2019F 128318 » D EEAE
ERBEERHEEDE DEER
EMEEEMEBETR TENEETH
RHELEL R ANREE24,844,000
TT - MAEE B R 20204F R H
N

BE A

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T NG S

Interest on bank loans
Interest on discount trade bills
Interest on convertible loan

Interest on lease liabilities

RITERFE
BRESEENE
AT R B RN B
HEREMNE

6,041 9,793
1,832 -
7,931 15,077
13,527 -

29,331 24,870




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
B E2019F 1231 HILFE

7. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

BRBLA (&518) R F

AEBEBRBAT(BIE) 8 M T8 M

B/ GEA)THIRIE :

2019
20195
Notes RMB’000
{iEs AR¥T T
Cost of inventories sold EEFERAR 864,760
Depreciation of property, mE - W&
plant and equipment RiBITE 13 9,586
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  {F A EITE 15 50,219
Expense relating to short-term lease AL HATAER S 18,679
Impairment loss on property, plant 1% « B E RSB RIE
and equipment 518 13 2,346
Impairment loss on FRREEERERE
right-of-use assets 15 6,773
Amortisation of prepaid land lease  # #5781+ + R & FIA
payments 14
Loss on written off items of property, #i54% - WE &REER
plant and equipment HEE 13
Minimum lease payments under KEHEIR THRIK
operating leases HERK
Auditors’ remuneration: ZEME
Audit and audit related services Fit RFEETIEE RS
Non-audit services FEEETIRTE
Employee benefit expense EERANAZ(TBE
(excluding directors’ and Chief EERFETHAER
executives remuneration (note 8)): il (FMi:¥8)) :
Salaries, wages and benefits in kind ~ ¥& « TEMEYHZ 171,930
Pension scheme contributions” RGBT 9,195
181,125
Provision/(reversal of provision) RENEREFES
against obsolete and BiE (BERE)”
slow-moving inventories™ 12,451
Write-down of inventories to GFEMBRETZE
net realizable value™ FET
Impairment loss on trade and bills & 5 UK KRIE & FEURE 1%
receivables, net REEE - F5E 15,576
Impairment loss on other receivables =t fE /I8 K 32 £ 1A
and deposits, net B8 - 55
Product warranty additional provision E Sh{RIEEEINE 26

Loss on remeasurement of liability ~ E st 2 AR E K
component of convertible loan™” BEHOEERT

Loss on non-substantial modification JEEE AIEE] Al HAARE 7R HY
of convertible loan E1E

Foreign exchange differences, net  [E3} Z=%8 - /558

3,915
(31,004)

—

S

2018
20184
RMB'000
AREFIT
1,200,745

9,936

67,271

3,608
1,271

4,879

175,312
9,610

184,922

(18,804)
58
1,826

12
4,746

24,609

(8,21;)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A M AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019

B E2019F12A31HIFFE
7. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX (conTINUED) 7.
* At 31 December 2019, the Group had no forfeited contributions available

to reduce its contributions to pension schemes in future years (2018: Nil).

*x The above items are included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

**%  This item is included in “Other expenses and losses” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

8. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8.
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), section
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as

follows:

BRELAT (B 1R) &R ()

* R20194 128310 » "NEBETEE R
UGz 5 AT A R EL R SR G 2 AR ARG &

HFR (20184 « ) o

= DAEBEBFAGEBRRREGCEENRSR

REOTHERARIA »

oo EBHARARBREMSEREE
0T S B B HAP ©

EERFETHAEME

REBIMMES MR EHR
BlL) ~ &FBABEAIZE383(1)()
()~ (R (f) FARAR(REES

Mz EHR) R ANFE 280 -

AEEE=R

REZBITHRAEBMESWELT :

2019
20194
RMB’000
ARET

Fees we

4,138

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBEREYA

Discretionary bonuses BYIBTEAL
Pension scheme contribution RIRFFEME R

1,662
1,562
199

3,423

7,561
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20184
RMB’000

ARBTT
3,528

1,811
2,062
125

3,998

7,526



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

8. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (conTinuED)

(a)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

during the year were as follows:

8.

EERFTETHRAEME #)

(a) BUFHITES
FAXNTFEIFERATEEDN

. Huang Wenli B AE
. Shao Shaomin BRIkt
. Liu Haifeng et
. Pang Wing Hong EKREE
. Chu Guodi BB L E

HwWeEIWT
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBEFIT
64 134
36 134
134
402

(i)

(iii)

Mr. Pang Wing Hong was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the
Company on 12 April 2019.

Mr. Chu Guodi was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 28 May
2019.

Mr. Shao Shaomin resigned as an independent
non-executive director on 12 April 2019.

Mr. Huang Wenli resigned as an independent
non-executive director on 28 May 2019.

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2018: Nil).

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

SRERAR AT 2019 F3R

EIKEAEER2019F 4 A
NBHEZTAEBE Y IEH
TESE -

BRI AR 201945 A
28BEZ (T BB IEH
TES -

A 20194 A
12BEEBIIENTE
$ o

FEXELEER2019F5 A
28HEBIE B IERITE
$ o

MEELMFRNRNE L

FARTEFTZ2HM (2018
FE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A M AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019

EE2019F12H31HILF/Z

8. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (conTinuED)

(b) The chief executive officer, and executive

directors

The remuneration of each of these executive directors is

set out below:

8. EBERIBITHAEME (&)

(b)

THRERIITES

ZEHTEEEEONE R

m

Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme Total
in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
3 ]
we REMAE BMETA fH3% WeuE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR¥Tr AR®Tr AR®Tr ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2019 EiZ2019512A31A 1L EE
Executive Directors: WEE:
Mr. Zou BEA
Mr. Zeng Jin e
Mr. Wu Yurning RABEE
Mr. Shen Zhidong NEREE
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
E R BIRETE
e RENIE B 158 Mems
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETR ARETT ARBTL  ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2018 HE2018F12A31BILFE
Executive Directors: W%
Mr. Zou e 2,185 1,218 882 32 4317
Mr. Chen Guohua REEE S 146 87 - 32 265
Mr. Zeng Jin LeEE 440 177 250 kY] 899
Mr. Wu Yuming RABEE 244 130 530 11 915
Mr. Shen Zhidong HERTE 110 200 400 18 728
3,125 1812 2,062 125 1,124
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019

#E2019F 1231 HIFFE
8. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERFEITBAEME(#)
REMUNERATION (conTinueD)
(b) The chief executive officer, and executive (b) THARRHITES(E)
directors (Continued)
Mr. Wu Yuming was appointed as executive director of R APELEN2018F6 A6 H
the Company on 6 Jun 2018. EZEABERBNITES -
Mr. Chen Guohua retired as an executive director on PR B #E 5L £ 201845 817 H
17 May 2018. BRERITESE ©
There was no arrangement under which a director or the MEEMESKFETHAER
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any REAREXREBREMNEH
remuneration during the year (2018: Nil). ZHE(2018% - M) o
9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. HEBEFEE
The five highest paid employees during the year included 1 FALEERT EERE —RES
director (2018: 1), details of whose remuneration are set out in (20185 : —H)  FHAAM e
note 8 above. The emoluments of Mr. Chen Guohao disclosed B LXK FES o BREIZE 5o A 7B
in note 8 only included the portion of his emoluments during SR NEREAELEEE
the year when he held the directorship position. Details of the ERFHBENTS>HM - TRES
remuneration of the five highest paid employees are as follows: FEEMNFHMFENT
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETTT
Fees e 2,295 2,185
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e 2B 7,795 6,828

Discretionary bonuses EIEIEAT 1,007 882
Pension Scheme contributions RONGTEIE TR 72 32

11,169 9,927

SRPERAR AT 2019 £, 155



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REVBWRE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 12A31 HILFE

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (conmivuep) 9. hEROHER &
The number of highest paid employees whose remuneration FHNFTIHBENZSHEEH
fell within the following bands is as follows: BT

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £%1,000,0008 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000

1,000,001 7% 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001,8 7T 22,000,000/ 7T
2,000,001/ 7T % 2,500,000 7T
2,500,001/ 7T % 3,000,000 7T
4,000,001;#7T%4,500,0007# 7T
5,000,001 7T 25,500,000/ 7T

RER - AEBBERNREES
BEZMBME  EARSIEMAR
EERMARAEESHNERNIES
BERLWHIE (20184 @ 4&) o

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to
any of the five highest paid employees as an inducement to

join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2018: Nil).



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

10. INCOME TAX 10. FriSH

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”)
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The
bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazette on
the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group
entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million
will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%).

PRC subsidiaries are subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
at 25% during the year (2018: 25%). Pursuant to the relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC, Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home
Co., Ltd. ("Fashion home”) and Zhejiang Apollo Leather
Products Co., Ltd. (“Apollo”), which qualified as High and
New Technology Enterprises ("HNTE") in November 2018,
were entitled to a reduced enterprise income tax rate of 15%.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, Fashion Home an
Apollo applied the qualification of HNTE and are entitled to the
reduced tax rate of 15% until the year ended 30 November
2021.

REFAERELEBELES ([H
BELZEBDOBRALED A%
BHENHAERENRABRELES
BRMERAEN -

MR2018%F3A21H @ B EeB
#2017 FE R (1&5]) (B 79%) (&
BN ZHEHER])SIAFEHM
Wl o ZIGRPIEZRMN20184F3 A28
AEEELENR  YRZEETHRT
FoRBMABMNESHESE - &
BEIREBEERRE2,000,0008 T8 &
MR8 25% M EHH - MEBB
2,000,000 7T #Y i ) Bl 32 16.5 % BY
REHI - THAMBHFEHE
FIEBRMEBE RGN IGEE
1216.5% (20184 : 16.5% ) WEE
TREH

FAN - AFPEWE QR BIKR25%
(20184 : 25% ) Bt = &5 49 A B 1
ERED o  RBHPEMBEEERE
] R2018F 11 A A& =M
2(BHEMEE)ERNITIR
ARHMREERAR([BRERE])
EHIMEREE SR MBER A A
(TFIRE]) EREZERELEFRN
BB EIS% - B Z2019F12 A
B1HIEFE  BHRERMAKEED
HEaSRMECEER  TEES
AR ERI15% HEEHE20214
1MA30RLEFEAIL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

10. INCOME TAX (coNTINUED) 10. 8% (&)

The U.S. corporate tax rate is 21% for the year ended 31
December 2019 in accordance to the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act.
The U.S. income tax includes (a) federal income tax calculated
at a fixed rate of 21% for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: a fixed rate of 21%) on the estimated U.S. federal
taxable income and (b) state income to calculated at various
state income tax rates for both periods on the estimated state
taxable income for the respective states. The income subject to
tax in a specific state (i.e. state taxable income) is calculated
based on the federal taxable income with state tax adjustments,
which is then allocated or apportioned to the respective states
(i.e. percentage of taxable income that should be apportioned
or specially allocated to the respective states in which the
Group operates) based on the apportionment factors provided

from the state tax returns in previous year.

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations of United
Kingdom (UK), the subsidiary comprising the Group in UK is
liable to United Kingdom at a tax rate of 19% for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Cambodia, the
tax of the Cambodia subsidiary is 20% during the year ended
31 December 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
B E2019F 1231 HILFE

Frig®i &)

R {4 0 8 2 15 B T 4 A o
45 42 P 7E )0 I B 3247 4 R B

2019
20195
RMB’000
AR®T T

(530)

723
(33,410)

66

9
(5.111)

10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 10.

Taxes on profits assessable in elsewhere have been calculated
at the rate of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the
Group operates. R
Current — PRC BNE — AR

— Charge for the year — TR

— Over-provision in prior year — BT FEBERE
Current — Hong Kong BNER — &%

— Charge for the year — FAZH

— Over-provision in prior year — BEFEBEEE
Current—U.S. BNER — £

— Change for the year — TR

— Over-provision in prior year — BT FEBERE
Current — Other BIHER — Hpth
Deferred (note 27) RIE(PfEE27)
Tax (credit)/charge for the year FAREBEGER), S

(38,253)

REERABRAR 2019 F4

2018
20184
RMB’000
AREFIT

12,720
(7,810)

17,450

52
(520)

11
(8,022)

13,881




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A M AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 12A31 HILFE

10. INCOME TAX (conTiNUED) 10.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before

tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the

majority of the Company'’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax

expense at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows:

FRigHi &)

BAR B KR M B 2 B & MK S
BARE R R TE R 5 B M BR A
HEMERNHAR AR AEEE
B RGO BRHEROT ¢

2019 2018

20195 2018%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T AREF T

(Loss)/profit before tax BEAT(EE),HF (179,943) 100,286
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates REBR)EER

applicable to profit in the respective 358 )36 PR A 3 S =R

jurisdiction FTERTIE (41,209) 22,388
Adjustments in respect of current tax of ThBE AR BNEA

previous periods HIBR) T (33,940) (8,330)
Effect of withholding tax at 10% onthe — ZA&E@EFAREKB AT

distributable profits of the Group’s A o> B v A1 0%

PRC subsidiaries TR #5222 = (3,097)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR A X 16,979 13,587
Super-deduction of eligible research and A& RT3

development expenditure FREEH A (9,184) (11,757)
Tax effect of deductible temporary AR B 2= 5B A

difference b7 (2,155) (3,507)
Income tax on concessionary rate REBEVRTENMEH (1,463) (8,480)
Income not subject to tax BAERTIUMA (2,095) (6,207)
Tax losses not recognised RIERRIARE 34,814 19,284
Tax (credit)/charge for the year FABIE(ER), S (38,253) 13,881

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 23.1% (2018:
12.1%). The change in the weighted average applicable tax

rate was caused by a change in the profitability of certain

subsidiaries of the Company in the respective jurisdictions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019

B E2019F12A31HILFE
11. DIVIDEND 1. RE
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T AREFTT
Interim dividend paid 2R HIRE
— Nil 2018: HK1.8 cents) — BREBRTE
per ordinary share (20184 : 1.878l) 15,213
Final dividend proposed BEARHRE
— Nil (2018: HK1.3 cents) — BRCE BRI
per ordinary share (20184 : 1.3741l) 10,709
25,922
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T AREFT
Final dividend in respect of the previous E—BBFEEREARE
financial year, approved and paid during SRR E@A%1.38L - 2R
the year, of HK1.3 cents per ordinary FRHLE N A (201845 -
share (2018: HK$3.8 cents per ordinary B EM3.8)
share) 32,038

12.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share amount for
the year ended 31 December 2019 was based on the loss for
the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
of RMB140,436,000 (2018: profit of RMB86,405,000), and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 998,379,710
after excluding treasury shares (2018: 1,000,000,000) in issue
during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018 as the Group had anti-dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: no potentially
dilutive ordinary shares in issue).

12. RAREBEEREHE ARA

BR(&EE) BR

HE2019F12A31BILFE -
REX(BER) BINDRELRE
EARRAREBEEZRHA ARGEIS
A R #140,436,000 7T (2018 4F :
& A A R ¥ 86,405,000 70 ) WA K&
FREBITLTBEROME TS H
998,379,710 (MR EF KM E)
(20184F :1,000,000,0000% )5+ & -

AR AEBREE20199412A318
FTFEAARBEMEND HTYE
B (2018F « W BE#EHE %
TERRKR) MW EMREE2019F
K&2018F12A31HIEFEE2INE
REXBFSBEIELFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REVBWRE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 12A31 HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Buildings

Ba

Note RMB'000
GG ARMT7

31 December 2019 20195125318
Asat 31 December 2018and 12018128318

1 January 2019 19F1 818
Cost s 37481
Accumulated depreciation 2:TE (3,647)
Net carrying amount FEYE 33,834

Asat 1 January 2019, netof 20191818 -

accumulated depreciation MR 2:iE 33,834
Additions ANE -
Disposalfwritten-off HE /s (4312)
Depreciation HE 7 (1,647)
Impairment loss FEEE -
Exchange realignment BiAE 368

As at 31 December 2019, netof 20195128318 »
accumulated depreciationand IR BEHTER
impairment e

As at 31 December 2019: 019128318 -

Cost A 33212
Accumulated depreciationand ~ ZEHE R

impairment (4,969)
Net carrying amount BEHE 28243

Leasehold

Improvements

il

UE 3
RMB000
ARBTR

nnii
(12,520)

10217

10,217
5183
@
(4,691)
(2,037)
99

27416

(18,049)

9,367
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13. ¥ - BMERKE

Plant and

machinery

HER
K

RMB'000
AE®BTT

21,037
(11,636)

9,401

9,401
1,747

(1,556)
(57)
4

2,191

(13,258)

9,539

Furniture,

fixtures and
office
equipment
BE - GR
EHARE
RMB'000
AEET

15,585
((ARED)]

4,450

4,450
1,203
(6)
(1,160)
(133)
24

15,822

(11,444)

4,378

Motor Construction

vehicles i progress Total

nE  ERIRE it

RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
AE®TT  ARMTR ARMTR

99,188
(40,092)

59,096

59,096
28,154
(4,334)
(9,586)
(2,346)

496

3,682 121,005

(1.805) (49,525)

1877 18,076 11,480



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019

B E2019F 1231 HIEFE
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ BERRXREB#E)
(CONTINUED)
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold Plant and office Motor
Buildings Improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles Total
HE BER RE- G
BEY  MEEE ke RFAERE e Bz
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
M ARETT ARETT ARBTn ARETR ARETT ARETR
31 December 2018 2018512318
Asat 1 January 2018 72018F 1 A1H
Cost AR 34,395 20,390 18,130 20,608 2,464 95,987
Accumulated depreciation  ZHTE - (11,373) (10,163) (14,020) (1,029) (36,585)
Net carrying amount EmFE 34,395 9,017 7,967 6,588 1435 59,402

Asat 1 January 2018, netof 201841818

accumulated depreciation  HBRZHTE 34,395 9,017 7,967 6,588 1,435 59,402
Additions AE 1,208 4,706 3,150 1,560 245 10,869
Disposal/written-off e/ - (394) (40) (2918) (18) (3:370)
Depreciation ik 7 (3,502) (3392) (1,678) (896) (468) (9,936)
Exchange realignment B AR 1733 280 2 116 - 2,131

As at 31 December 2018, net 182018124318 -
of accumulated depreciation 2 E 33,834 10,217 9,401 4,450 1,194 59,09

Asat 31 December 2018: 20185128318 :

Cost A 37,481 22,737 21,037 15,585 2,348 99,188
Accumulated depreciation  ZHTE (3,647) (12,520) (11,636) (11,135) (1,154) (40,092)
Net carrying amount EmFE 33,834 10,217 9,401 4,450 1,194 59,096
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

M BHERME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

14. FB LB EFHE

2018

20184

Note RMB’'000

Bt ARBTFT

Carrying amount at beginning of the year ~ F¥REREE 7,212

Addition NE 994

Amortisation #E 7 (159)

Exchange realignment fE 5, 207

Carrying amount at end of the year FRIREE 8,254
Current portion included in prepayments, EEATENRIR « e RHEAM

deposits and other receivables U B R R ED B (180)

Non-current portion IEREE D 8,074

As at 31 December 2018, the title certificate with respect to
the land with a carrying amount of RMB8,254,000 in
Cambodia leased by Masia Industries Co., Ltd., the Group’s
subsidiary, from the Sihanoukville Special Economy Zone Co.,
Ltd., was not registered in the name of Masia Industries Co.,
Ltd. Notwithstanding, the directors are of the opinion that
Masia Industries Co., Ltd. is entitled to the lawful and valid
occupation and use of the buildings and land to which the
above-mentioned land use rights relate based on the lease

agreement and the subsequent assignment.

Upon initial application of HKFRS 16, the interests in prepaid
land lease payments were classified as right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15. EAEEE

The Group as lessee AEBEREBEA
Leasehold Leased
Land  properties Total
HE L HEME i
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTFT ARETT ARBTT
As at 1 January 2019 (Note 2) M2019% 1818 (MzE2) 8,254 163,892 172,146
Additions NE 27,360 84,715 112,075
Depreciation charge during FRITEER
the year (Note 7) (Ffzx7) (713) (49,506) (50,219)
Impairment loss NOREN -SR] - (6,773) (6,773)
Exchange realignment PE 5, = 99 644 743
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F12A31H 35,000 192,972 227,972

Lease liabilities of RMB223,213,000 are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of RM192,972,000 as at 31 December
2019. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security

for borrowing purposes.

Details of total cash outflow of leases is set out in the

consolidated cash flow statements.

During the current year, the Group leases properties for self-
own use. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of one
to ten years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

MR2019F12A31H HEAFEA
R #223,213,000 c#E R A H R F
Hi#E&EEARK192,972,0007T °
BREHEAMBHEEENREREZ
Hh o BB 15 5 A e 00T ) R o
HEEETSHESERNERS -

HEMRSRHARFBTIARNES
RemnEx -

RAFE AEBHEWMEES
A-HEGONBETFHR =
THFE - -HEGRRDEBAER L
o W B S BB R AR SR
o R EE M KA A e
REER  AEEERSONTE
BV BEAXNABHIMTHRME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019

EE2019F12H31HILF/Z
15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continuED)

16.

The Group as lessee (Continued)

In addition, the Group owns a leasehold land located in the
PRC and Cambodia. The directors are of the opinion that
Group's subsidiaries are entitled to the lawful and valid
occupation and use of the buildings and land to which the
above-mentioned land use rights relate based on the lease
agreement and the subsequent assignment. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire these property short

term lease commitment interests.

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES

The amount represents the fair value of receivable if the
audited net profits of Jennifer Convertibles Inc. and its
subsidiaries cannot achieve the respective base profit target for
the year ending 31 December 2019 and 2020. For detailed
information, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 14 August 2018.

The fair value of contingent consideration receivables as at 31
December 2019 was determined based on the valuation
performed by an independent professional valuer not

connected with the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

17. INVENTORIES

18.

17. 78

2019
20194
RMB’000
AR%T

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

R #
ERm
BLpX n

18,441
69,632
81,436

169,509

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

2018
20184
RMB’000
AREF T

29,055
43,968
144,268

217,291

18. ESEWFEREWREE

2019
20194
RMB’000
ARET

Trade receivables from third parties

Less: Impairment of trade receivables

REFE=TTNEZEKFIR
B SRR E

234,847
(17,829)

Trade receivables, net
Bills receivable arising from intra-group sales fEWZ1E — KB EEANHE

BHRWGIR - FHR

217,018

217,018

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on

credit. The credit period for customers of the manufacturing

segment is generally one to two months, extending up to three

to six months for major customers, the credit period for

customers of the retail segment is within one month. The

Group does not hold any collateral over its trade and bills

receivable balances. Trade and bills receivables are non-interest

bearing.

2018
20184
RMB’000
AREFT
633,409
(2,253)

631,156
3,365

634,521

AEEREEFPNESKRANEER
BRE-EENMEFPNEEHR R
R—EMER FTEFEFNEEH
ERERZ=ZEXEA MTEH
MEPHEEHARA—MEAR - K
5 H I gL BB 5 WK IR B IR
SRERBBELAERAR - -BEHE
WkIA R B IR R B R AF R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A M AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continuep) 18. EZBWHREREBRERE #)

An ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables as at the end RARERR - LB E QMO
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of BE2INESHERIKRIEREKRE
provision, is as follows: BORESTHOT

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBT T AREBFIT

Within 3 months 3MEAAR 205,807 596,928

4 to 6 months 4% 618 A 2,925 36,983
7 to 12 months 721218 R 8,286 610

217,018 634,521
Details of the ECL assessment was set out in Note 39. EAEHREE BB G BN
39 ¢
19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19. FAITRIE - RERHEMEW
RECEIVABLES Er|
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AREBFT
Advances to supplier TE R FRIE 139,598 2,081
Other prepayments HAb B FIE 7,407 7,550
Deposits and other receivables e R E A EWGRIE 65,212 52,271
Current portion of prepaid land lease TER T E R IBRYRENER S
payments (note 14) (MtsE14) 180
PAVIVAY) 62,082
None of the above assets were either past due or impaired. The T EEGESAMNERE - GTA
financial assets included in the above balances relate to Lataere) & mE E T B mE
receivables for which there was no recent history of default. RECERHFEWRIBB @ -
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20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

0. RERBESEBYURE K

PLEDGED DEPOSITS HIFER
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Cash and bank balances B NLIR1TES 203,323 217,904
Less: Pledged deposits for bills payment W RN EROEEIRER
(note 21) (BF#E21) (131,221) (92,935)
Less: Pledged deposits for letter of credit 3§ : {ERENCIKFFER (1,056) (1,041)
Total pledged deposits BEHEAFRERE (132,277) (93,976)
Cash and cash equivalents WENIRESEEY 71,046 123,928
Cash and bank balances denominated R RIBITEMBIZUA T B
in: #HAE -
RMB AR 183,917 108,447
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") B(AEx)) 3,794 1,368
us$ ETT 15,262 108,089
British pound TR 350 -
203,323 217,904

As at the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances denominated in RMB amounted to RMB183,917,000
(2018: RMB108,447,000). RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under Mainland China‘s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with

creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

RHMEBRR UARBHENRS
FiR{TH A AR 183,917,000
7t (20184 : A K % 108,447,000
L) ARSI ERLRAEM
B R REBRBEAMINEE
AR R AR  SELRNEEER
EASEEEBZREREREN
EEBORTHEARBLBAEM

RITEFEFRRESARITERMXZ

FEFRETE o RITHERTF RN
HIEE R 8% B E B RAFHVIRTT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A M AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 12A31 HILFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

BSRNFERESRE

2019 2018

20195 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T AREFTT

Trade payables to third parties ENE=FHESFIE 158,737 209,275
Bills payables ARNE S

— arising from intra-group purchases — REEEANHAFHEE 90,865 19,173

— arising from third purchases — REE=FBE 139,732 188,318

389,334 416,766

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

RBEKR - REEAMLIIHE
5 8 1] 20T % B 1 3 4 8 R 6 ) A
W

Within 1 month 1 A A

1 to 3 months 12318 A
4 to 6 months VENEYS
Over 6 months BiE6E A

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
108,207 143,706
72,450 80,087
130,034 148,617
78,643 44,356
389,334 416,766

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. Trade
payables are normally settled on terms of 30 to 180 days while
bills payable are settled on a term of 90 to 180 days.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019

#E2019F 1231 HIFFE
21. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (conTinueD) 21, ESRENREREBENEE &)
Certain bills payable were secured by pledged deposits with ETERNEEBE ERTFRER
aggregate carrying amounts as listed below: - HAREESINET
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREBFT
Pledged deposits of the Group (note 20) A& @K EHF K (FI7520) 131,221 92,935
As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, certain bills payables were M20184F K2019F 12 A31H * &
secured by corporate guarantees provided by independent third TENEERBULE=FREHA
parties. A ERIEHEAR -
22. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS/ 22 HitwENRERESTER
CONTRACT LIABILITIES BREE
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBFIT
Other payables Hib {51 42,936 70,232
Accruals fEETEH 20,304 56,099
63,240 126,331
Contract liabilities (Note b) EREE D) 24,844 17,967
Non-current portion: IERENEL D ¢
Accruals (Note a) FERH & A (Mf3Ea) 6,029
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EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE
22. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS/ 22. HthENFREREFTER
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (conTivuED) aNBE®)
Contract liabilities represent contract amounts received in EHNBREXINEDAKREINE L
advance of delivery of goods. BEE o
There were no significant changes in the contract liabilities ERNEEEARNBMERRNT EEE
balances during the reporting period. Bt -
The following table shows how much of the revenue TR TR E B FE R YA H
recognised in the current reporting period relates to brought- RESANBENHEBEREE - X&E
forward contract liabilities. There was no revenue recognised in HEMERREBEFEENNE
the current reporting period that related to performance HEEBHBEHRE -
obligations that were satisfied in a prior year.
The Group’s revenue recognised that was included in the AEEBRBYVFAGNAGEERD
contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the period: EiERU R
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T T ARBFT
Amounts received in advance of R E @ BTER B IR
delivery of goods 17,967 14,018

172

Note:

a. The non-current portion of accruals represented the deferred rent-free
period benefits to be recognised over 1 year. Upon initial application of
HKFRS16, the carrying amount of the non-current portion of accruals was
classified as right-of-use assets.

b. Contract liabilities in relation to sales of finished goods are expected to be

settled within one year. The entire amount of contract liabilities as at
1 January 2019 is all recognised as revenue during current year.

Other payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and are

normally repayable on demand.
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A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
B E2019F 1231 HILFE

23. LEASE LIABILITIES

Within 1 year 1FER
After 1 year but within 2 years  1E2F R
After 2 years but within 5 years 2 &5
After 5 years RS

Less: total future interest
expenses

B RRFE
EEEE

Present value of lease obligations 7 & & EIR &

As at 31 December 2019
2019128311

Present
value of

the minimum
lease
payments
REHEE
NREE
RMB’000
ARETIT
46,504

39,220
67,870
69,619

176,709

223,213

Total
minimum
lease
payments
BREHEE
R
RMB’000
ARETIT
58,423

48,712
86,525
77,742

PAVEYL]

271,402

(48,189)

223,213
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23. HEERE

As at 1 January 2019

20191818
Present

value of Total
the minumum minimum
lease lease
payments payments
RERE REEE
HHRE HHBE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®F T AR®F T
22,735 33,262
24,845 33,940
64,182 82,664
69,315 78,859
158,342 195,463
181,077 228,725
(47,648)
181,077
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

23. LEASE LIABILITIES (conmivueD)

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

23. HEBE#)
HMEAHHWMT -

As at As at

31 December 1 January
2019 2019
20195 F20195F
12A31H 1H18
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREFT

Current liabilities mENBE
Non-current liabilities E e UN=Er=

46,504 22,735
176,709 158,342

223,213 181,077

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to
recognise lease liabilities relating to lease which were previously classified
as operating leases under HKAS 17. Comparative information as at 31
December 2018 has not been restated. Further details on the impact of
the transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in Note 2.2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

24. AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER/RELATED  24.

COMPANIES

The amount due to a shareholder and related companies are

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 25.

Effective
interest

Rate Maturity
|- YIES 3

Current - secured
Bank loans

Bank loans

Factoring loans with recourse

A — HEA
BTER

BEN
MERENRERR

4.2%-6.5%  On demand
REX

5.1%-5.7% 2020
32% 2020

FET IR R BAE N BIFRIR

st

e IR R K BEE R B RE S EIE
;B RARERE]

o

il

s ERAT AR

2018
20185
Effective
interest
RMB'000 rate Maturity RIMB'000

ARBTT L 18 ARETR

SRS 27%-65%  Ondemand 107,197

BE%
LR 43%5.8% 2019 35,000
51,147 - - -
220815 142,197

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥FIT

Analysed into:

Bank borrowings repayable within

one year or an demand

D RATEIR
R—FARIZEREED
RITREK

220,815 142,197
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 12A31 HILFE

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

Certain of the Group’s secured bank loans are secured by:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

()

(vi)

pledges of certain parcels of land and buildings which were
provided by Morris PRC as at 31 December 2019 and 2018;

personal guarantees provided by the Controlling Shareholders as
at 31 December 2019 and 2018;

corporate guarantees provided by Morris PRC as at 31 December
2019 and 2018;

corporate guarantees provided by Morris Real Estate, a company
controlled by the Controlling Shareholders as at 31 December
2019 and 2018;

corporate guarantees provided by independent third parties as at
31 December 2019 and 2018; and

pledges of certain properties which were provided by Morris Real
Estate, a company controlled by the Controlling Shareholders as at
31 December 2019 and 2018.

The Group’s bank borrowings were denominated in the following

25.

TERITER )

(a) AEENETEEMRRTERUATIE
TRIEEM -

(i) 72019%F 20185 12A31H -
DRERPEEHRNE TELIBR
YR

(i) FERRARE 20194 K 2018412
A3 1B EAER

(i)  HEAHBER20194 2018412
A31 B ARER

(iv)  PERRBREEGINARREHER
20194 2018412 A31 HiZ
B A BIER

(v) BB =N 2019F 20184
12A31BIRENRARIER &

(vi)  BAERRRAR AR G K R R R B HE
H2019F K2018F 12 A31HIR
HEE T EIEEM -

(b) AEBERRITERLTIEHE :

currencies:
2019 2018
201945 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AREFTT
RVB AR 160,000 122,116
us$ ED 60,815 13,492
HK$ BT - 6,589
220,815 142,197
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R MWK (&

For the year ended 31 December 2019

B E2019F 1231 HILFE
26. WARRANTY PROVISION 26 fR1ERE
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREBFT
At beginning of year F1) 4,943 3,292
Additional provision (note 7) REOMER (FEE7) 4,649 4,746
Amount utilized during the year FRNEEAFKIEAE (4,962) (3,329)
Exchange realignment PE 5 2L 59 234
At end of year FR 4,943
The Group provides one-year warranties to certain customers AEERETEFPRERE—FNER
on its products, under which faulty products are repaired or RIERE  BUHEBERBEHE®S
replaced. The amount of the provision for the warranties is BEERELIER REBHESES
estimated based on sales volumes and past experience of the BEBEHERBATHEERREKTE
level of repairs and returns. The estimation basis is reviewed on Tt - AEBEFERIGEER
an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate. £ WERFEHEET ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

27. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax assets

27. IEIEFIA

ELHEAE

Unrealised  Impairment

profit losses on
arising from inventories
intra-group and
transactions receivables Total
SERE FER
REEEN WA
RGBT F WEBE At
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥ETFT AR¥ETT
As at 1 January 2018 7201851 H1H 1,941 - 1,941
(Charged)/credited to (BE=MR),
profit or loss AR (270) 5,195 4,925
As at 31 December 2018 and 2018512318 &
1 January 2019 20191 A1H 1,671 5,195 6,866
(Charged)/credited to (BEz=NR),
profit or loss FFAER Q) 2,155 2,154
As at 31 December 2019 7201912 H31H 1,670 7,350 9,020
The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of AEERETPBEANMATRIEEER

RMB42,260,000 (2018: RMB20,688,000) that will expire in one

to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.

A B # 42,260,000 7t (2018 £ -
AR #20,688,000 ) R—&EREFE

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of WEH - o] AR R R ERB R

these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable

that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses

can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

27. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 27. IEIERLIE (&)

Deferred tax liabilities

EEBEEE

2019 2018

2019F 2018%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AREF T

At beginning of year F] 5,845 8,942
Credited to profit or loss FANFFAER

during the year (2,957) (3,097)

At end of year FR 2,888 5,845

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirements is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, during the year ended 31 December 2019 the
applicable rate is 5% (2018: 5%). The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of

earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

BIEBEFRESERBSHE  RPEK
VRN E R EMINEBEEE D
IKAR B - T 10% BB X G 78 40
o ZMEBE2008F1A1HREAE
o WiEAR2007F12A318 214
EEMABF - WP EINEIEEE
FrERNVERRETBEHBENBE S -
AR ABRENENRE - iASE
EmsE - BE2019F12A318 1t
FEMEAMEA5% (20184 :
5% ) ° Bt - N5 E AR B A
PR BYFZ S5 BT B A R 320084 1 A1
AREESNEN D IKREHMNE
B o

ARARAEBRRENBRETEELE
FIEHER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 28. AIBEBER PTEEMIA
INSTRUMENTS
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T T ARETTT
Liability component of the Convertible loan AR ERA B & 109,588 181,372
Derivative financial instruments TESMTIA 2,521
Analysed for reporting purpose as: HEBABEHIFTOT :
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET ARBTFT
Liabilities component of the AR EFR A &S
Convertible loan
Current liabilities EIARE 99,986 181,372
Non-current liabilities JEmEAE 9,602 -
109,588 181,372

On 5 January 2018, the Company entered into a convertible
loan (the “Convertible Loan”) agreement (the “Convertible
Loan Agreement”) with International Finance Corporation
("IFC"), pursuant to which IFC agreed to lend, and the
Company agreed to borrow, the Convertible Loan in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$200,000,000. IFC has the
right to convert all or any part of the outstanding principal
amount of the Convertible Loan into shares of the Company at
an initial conversion price of HK$2.22 per conversion share
(subject to adjustments as set out in the Convertible Loan
Agreement). The outstanding principal of the Convertible Loan
bears interest at a rate of 1.25% per annum above 6 months
HIBOR. Interest period of the Convertible Loan shall be a period
of six months in each case beginning on an interest payment
date and ending on the day immediately before the next
following interest payment date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (contivuep)

Unless previously converted, the Company shall repay 50% of
the non-converted portion of the Convertible Loan outstanding
as at fourth anniversary of the date of the Convertible Loan (the

“First Repayment Instalment Date”).

Subject to any repayment to be made on the First Repayment
Instalment Date as set out above, the outstanding amount of
the non-converted portion of the Convertible Loan shall be
repaid on the fifth anniversary of the date of the Convertible
Loan (the “Maturity Date"”) together with a redemption
premium (the “Redemption Premium”) which is an amount
equal to 3.25% per annum of such portion of the principal
amount of the Convertible Loan to be repaid of repaid in
respect of the period beginning on the date of the
disbursement and ending on the day immediately before the
date of repayment or prepayment. Any amount of the
Convertible Loan which is redeemed by the Company will

forthwith be cancelled.

28. AIRRER TTEERMITE

(#)

PRS- RARIABEERT
BRRERBEHRUBEFE R (TERX
DHERA ) RERATRRKREFD
50% REHFD ©

RIBEEXFREERDHERAEL
MEMER  ABRRERRE R
MOWMARKEESHERELDEE
([EEEE (R ER REE
ERENIIEAMERA A — A LE
AT o 7 38 SR K R B AR AR A AR R
ERASBEERA DT F3.25%H
FE2B)ARATREERB RO
BFEEA(NEHANEE - AQF
BB [ B (17 & BB /O R SRR B 3RS 3L
BIEESH ©
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e B mRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (contivuep)

The Convertible Loan recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position of the Group is bifurcated into two
components for accounting purpose, namely the liability
component and the derivative component, and the movements
of these components during the reporting period are as

28. AIRRER TTEERMIE

(#)

RAEEGZE M BEARRRERNA
BRERS AMEGFED - B8

& A

DMOTER S - RREHEH

HERHRBIMT

follows:
Derivative
Liability financial
component instrument Total
8EMs TEEWMIA st
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTIT ARBT T ARBTIT
As at 1 January 2018 R2018F1H1H - - -
Issue of Convertible Loan TR AR E R 136,702 29,490 166,192
Amortisation of liability AR E R

component of the Convertible — B{&E3850 &)k

Loan 15,077 - 15,077
Accrual interest FEETFIE (4,361) - (4,361)
Fair value change N EEH - (27,501) (27,501)
Loss on remeasurement of liability ¥zt £ B8 &S

component REs 18 24,609 - 24,609
Exchange difference MENZE 9,345 532 9,877
At 31 December 2018 and R2018F12A31BE X

1 January 2019 20191 A1H 181,372* 2,521 183,893
Repayment of Convertible Loan (B R[S E X (81,037) - (81,037)
Amortisation of AR E

liability component of the BEBIW

Convertible Loan HH 7,931 - 7,931
Accrual interest FEH R B (4,717) - (4,717)
Loss on non-substantial FEEREFT B ERA

modification of E5E"

Convertible Loan* 3,915 - 3,915
Fair value change NREES) - (2,530) (2,530)
Exchange difference EH =5 2,124 9 2,133
At 31 December 2019 72019612 A31H 109,588 - 109,588

* During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had suspended
from trading the shares, as a result the convertible loan become repayable
on demand of the holder due to breach of cross default term in the
convertible loan agreement. The outstanding principal amount of the
convertible loan was reclassified to current liabilities and remeasured to

the amount repayable on demand plus redemption premium.
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28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (contivuep)

#

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company re-negotiate

with the holder of the convertible loan to renew the repayment schedule.

As the modification of the convertible loan does not result in

derecognition, the Company record loss on non-substantial modification

of the convertible loan of approximately RMB3,915,000.

29. SHARE CAPITAL

29.

2019
20185

US$'000
TR

Authorised:
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of US$0.001 each
(2018: 10,000,000,000
ordinary shares of US$0.001 each)

ETE
10,000,000,0008 &K E
0.001E TR LBk
(20184 : 10,000,000,0008%
SREB001ETHERR)

10,000

Issued and fully paid:
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of US$0.001 each
(2018:1,000,000,000
ordinary shares of US$0.001 each)

BEIRER :
1,000,000,000 % 2 REE
0.001 TR LB
(20184 : 1,000,000,0008%
SREBE0.001E TR ERR)

The movements in the Company'’s issued share capital during

the year are as follows:

28.

RBRER TEERIA

(%)

” HZE2019F12A31BLEEE  AAF
HABRRERFEAESTEEUEER
AR o BRMERT TR E R &g
BUR LR - ARRERBIFEREETA
B E A EIB A ARYES,915,0007T ©

RN

2018
2018%

RMB'000 Us$'000 RMB'000
ARBTR TEL  ARETR
Equivalent equivalent

2@ SE
10,000
1,000 6914

KABRAFEANS EITIRAE
£/ NS

Number of
ordinary
shares Issued
in issue capital
28T 2817
ZEREAR =N
Notes RMB’'000
k3 ARBTT
As at 1 January 2018, 31 December 7201851 81H
2018, 1 January 2019 and 2018F 124318 -
31 December 2019 2019F 1 AH1E K
2019412 A31H 1,000,000,000 6,914
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EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

30. RESERVES

184

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the
Cayman Islands, share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions and dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum
and Articles of Association and provided that immediately
following the distributions or dividend payments, the
Company is able to pay its debts as

Treasury shares

As at 31 December 2019, 14,800,000 ordinary shares
acquired under the Restricted Share Award Scheme were
deem to be held in treasury, representing 1.48% of the
shares in issue as at 31 December 2019. The nominal
value of shares held in treasury was approximately
RMB2,269,000.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all relevant
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of the Company and subsidiaries

with functional currencies other than RMB.

Reserve funds

The transfers from retained profits to the reserve funds
were made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the

Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
B E2019F 1231 HILFE

31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Change in liabilities arising from financing activities:

2019
Amount
due to
a shareholder
B
REHE
RMB'000
ARETR
As at 31 December 2018 R2018E12831A 9978
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 16 FAEREABKHE S
B165 AR
As at 1 January 2019 {restated) 201951 A1R(RES)
New bank borrowings made during the year & RFEH47(E
Financing cash inflows HERERA
Interest charged S
Loss on modffication of Convertibleloan (53T AR EZHEIE
Repayment during the year ERER
Interest paid and payable BN REMTIE
New lease entered SRS
Exchange realignment ERAE
As at 31 December 2019 R2019512A317

Amount
due to
related
companies
Jeft
BELTRE
RMB'000
AEBTR

81,959

81,959

46,243

(49,509)

 REEBELENEEYHER

BERPEENRESR

20194

Lease
liabilities

HEAR
RMB'000
ARBTT

181,077

181,077

13,527

(57,864)

84,115
1758

w213

HEARERAR AT 2019/?%& 185 \\\

Convertible
loan

THRREHK
RMB'000
ARBTR

181,372

181,312

1,931
3915
(81,037)
(@,117)

2124

109,588

Interest-
bearing bank

borrowings

i RRITHR
RMB000
ARBT R

142,197

142,197
437,608

6,041

(359,778)
(6,041)

188

20,815

& -

Total

it
RMB000
ARRTR

415,506

181,077

596,583
437,608
46,247
27499
3915
(548,188)
(10,758)
84,715
6,412

644,033
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EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE
31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 31. MERBAMEENEEYHE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (conminueD) (%)
2018 20184
Amount
Amount due to Interest-
due to related ~ Convertible Bearing bank
ashareholder ~ companies loan  borrowings Total
et
JEFS wiENA
REIE FIE OUBRER HERITEX st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETRT
As at 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H 9,801 - - 149,659 159,460
New bank borrowings made ERFILRIT
during the year B - - - 354,287 354,287
Financing cash inflows RERERA - 99,112 - - 99,112
Issue of convertible loan AR E TR - - 166,192 - 166,192
Interest charged FTUCEN RIS, - - 15,077 9,793 24,870
Derivative portion TETASS - - (29,490) - (29,490)
Loss on remeasurement of B EAGEHH
liability component &g - - 24,609 - 24,609
Repayment during the year FNER - (21,426) - (362,814) (384,240
Interest paid and payable BN RERFE - - (4,361) (9,793) (14,154)
Exchange realignment e 5t % 177 4,273 9,345 1,065 14,860
As at 31 December 2018 201812 A31H 9,978 81,959 181,372 142,197 415,506
32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. AREE
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as REERABERARLTBEMEKR
at the end of the reporting period. LABE -
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33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS — AS LESSEE

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum

lease payments during under non-cancellable operating leases

J~J~
. RE

HEZH# —FREEA

20185128318 - REBRET
AREEEEOM AR TR

falling due as follows: NORRGEBAENRETLT -
RMB’000
ARETT
Within one year — K 42,826
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ZFEERTF  BREEEMT 126,460
Over five years BiBRF 79,980
249,266

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of office
property, showrooms and factory premises which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. The
Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the Group
adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to these leases (note 2.2). From
1 January 2019 onwards, future lease payments are recognised
as lease liabilities in the statement of financial position in
accordance with the policies set out in note 2.2, and the details
regarding the Group’s future lease payments are disclosure in
note 23.

34. COMMITMENTS 34.

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in
note 33 above, the Group did not have any capital commitment
as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

AEBRZBELAFNBEESSHE
A7 EREEHENHAE
ME BEBERIWMYWENERA
REEBEHBKETENEERE
REAGBREERE 165 o 1B
B AE - AEBHEER20194F
1TR1HMBYER  UWEREBZ
EHEMHEARB(ME2.2) - B
20191 H1HEE » RAKHEENFIR
B FE2 2T BUR R B B AR R R 1

ReEHEaE EEAEEAKAE
ENRFFBR 23 E -
TRE

B bl B 7 335 il A9 45 & FH &R IR
Gh - REBER2019F £ 2018412
A 318 I EAEA]E AR AGE -
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EE2019F12A31HILFE
35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BERRS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the (a) B BHREREMIBHFMER
financial statements, the Group had the following S8 REBRAFE HRYE
significant transactions with related parties during the FETUTERRS
year:
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Morris PRC EA/d
Purchases of electricity BEE 1,208
Short-term rental expenses (note 1) FRHMESRZ (M) 14,249
Compensation on factory relocation % = B B (15,846)
Jennifer Convertible Inc. Jennifer Convertible Inc.
Sales of finished goods (note 1,2) HERKS(MHEL - 2) 7,457
The above related parties are companies controlled by AR T A B R AR AR R 1 &Y
the Controlling Shareholders. The transactions were NAl e ZERGIRBHRBIIAOR
conducted on terms and conditions mutually agreed BB %€ IR AR ST -

between the relevant parties.

Note: B aE -

1. These related party transactions also constitute non-exempt
continuing connected transactions as defined under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

ZEBBEHZHIERETRAE14A
BEENTERRERERZS -

2. The Group completed the acquisition of Jennifer Convertibles Inc. 2. ANEEKR201848 A31 8 T E
on 31 August 2018. Jennifer Convertibles Inc. ceased to be a Jennifer Convertibles Inc. ° R & £
connected party to the Group under Chapter 14A of the Listing # Al 2 14A & - Jennifer Convertibles
Rules. The amount represents the transaction with Jennifer Inc. THBAASEMNBES - AR
Convertibles Inc. up to 31 August 2018. TEEH £2018F 8 A 31 H & Jennifer

Convertibles Inc. #7732 5 ©
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuep)

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group

35. BERRS (#£)
(b) XEBXTEEE ASRHN

2019 2018

20195 20184F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARBTT

Fees e 4,138 3,528

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind &% -~ 2R EWET) 3,735 3,134

Discretionary bonuses BB TE4L 2,332 2,524

Pension scheme contributions RRET B 372 192
Total compensation paid to key TRHFEEEREAEN

management personnel B e 9,378

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in

note 8 to the financial statements.

E=EMenE—PHBEERY
BRI FES -
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B E2019F 1231 HILFE
36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. RERESHWEMIEA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EHEeRmIAXNMERRNEEEAE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as ;AT
follows:
2019 20194
Financial assets EHMEE
Financial assets
at amortised cost
REBERSTTENESREE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFIT
Trade and bills receivables B 5 rW IR Kk EREE 217,018 634,521
Financial assets included in prepayments, st ATERZIE - K42 &
deposits and other receivables Hith U IER &R EE 65,212 52,271
Pledged deposits BT 132,277 93,976
Cash and cash equivalents HEeERIEELZEEY 71,046 123,928
485,553 904,696
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit or loss
RAARBEFAEBENESHEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT
Contingent consideration receivables TEW SRR (B 234,425 226,318
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

Trade and bills payables

Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals

Amount due to related companies

Amount due to a shareholder

Lease liabilities

Convertible loan

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

BHRNFARENRER
AR AL A A K
R ERNERAE
FEABRE R B RIR

J& A B R R IR

HERRE

AR E R
FHRRITIE N

36. REHETHNEMIE (&)

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

RBERATENSHEE
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREFT
389,334 416,766
63,240 126,331
80,310 81,959
10,107 9,978
223,213 -
109,588 181,372
220,815 142,197
1,096,607 958,603

Financial liabilities
at fair value
through profit or loss

BARERABENEREE

Derivative financial instruments

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
- 2,521
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37. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

192

Transferred financial assets that are not
derecognized in their entirety

(a)

At 31 December 2019, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China to
certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables
due to such suppliers. In the opinion of the directors, the
Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards,
which include default risks of certain issuing banks after
the endorsement, and accordingly, the Group continued
to recognise the full carrying amounts of the endorsed
bills receivable from such issuing banks (the “Endorsed
Bills”) and the associated trade payables settled.
Subsequent to the endorsement, the Group did not
retain any rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills,
including the sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Bills
to any other third parties. As at 31 December 2019, the
aggregate carrying amounts of the Endorsed Bills were
RMB24,861,000 (2018: RMB3,365,000).

As part of its normal business, the Group entered into
trade receivable factoring arrangements (the “Factoring
Arrangements”) with recourse and transferred certain
trade receivables to banks. Under the Factoring
Arrangements, the Group was exposed to the default risk
of the trade debtors after the transfer. The aggregate
carrying amount of the trade receivables transferred
under the Factoring Arrangements that has not been
settled and continued to be recognised by the Group as
at 31 December 2019 is RMB54,420,000 (2018: Nil).

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

37. BEESRMEE

ARERUIEINCEZEREE

(a)

MR2019F12H31H - A& H
BEPBERNMRITEANE T
EREEEEZTE THER
NEEBEENZEHERINES
ERNRE -ZEERA A5H
EREBBARE SRR RE®R -
HpaEEEEA TETRGT
REENRER  WAEEFER
REZEBRTRITHNEREEE
BEEREE]) REEDE
EMNEZENREBNZHER
B-REER AEETER
BAMNGEABSEZENERN
BREAEENEME=ZFHE
ERIERSEZERE - 12019
F12A31H BEZENER
B R AR®24,861,0007T
(20184 : AR ¥ 3,365,000
TT) °

ERHEEEBHN —&H K
EEBAUMEBERENE S
JERFERELZHE([RER
¥ #ETESENFESE
ETHRT o BMEBRERZY K
SEEAXREREEZESHEBHA
HE QR - K2019F 12 A
318 » A& B EEERBIBRIE
REZHEEBEEMHREENE
SEBFIENERBELEAA
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HWETMEE#)
IIERANEERSREE

37. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (conmivuep) 37

Transferred financial assets that are not REEK

derecognized in their entirety (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, the Group discounted and endorsed
certain bills receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China
(the “Derecognised Bills") to certain banks in order to obtain
additional financing or certain of its suppliers in order to settle
the trade payables due to such suppliers with carrying amount
in aggregate of RMB24,861,000 (2018: RMB141,953,000). The
Derecognised Bills had a maturity of one to six months (2018:
one to six months) at 31 December 2019. In accordance with
the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of
the Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse against the
Group if the PRC banks default (the “C
Involvement”). The Derecognised Bills were honoured by

ontinuing

reputable banks in the PRC, such as China Merchants Bank,
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China and other reputable
banks rating at AAA by national credit rating agencies. In the
opinion of the directors, these banks have good reputation and
credit quality, and the risk of default of these bills receivable on
maturity is remote, and therefore, the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised
Bills since after the transfer the Group’s exposure to the
variability in the amounts of the net cash flows of the
transferred asset is not significant. Accordingly, it has
derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised
Bills and the associated liabilities. The maximum exposure to
loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to
repurchase these Derecognised Bills is equal to their carrying
amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the
Group's Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are
not significant.

(%)

M2019%F12A318 » AEERAET
RATREETHERURARESES
BARITEMNSE THEOERSE
D RlAANR24,861,000 7 (2018
& AR®141,953,0007T ) HY FE Uk
ZR([RLBIAERE])  UESHE
BB FEERNZEREINE
SEMNFIE - RIEERZEEN2019
F12H3 BB —=EAH (2018
F—Z2REA)RE - RIBEFEA
REMBEEREE  WEFPRERITE
W BRIEIEREBRFEABRERAK
EEER([HESHE]) - (KIEER
ZRTEPEMMBETEL A
BERT  PRIEETRERE
B RBIBG TAAATT R A H 4 A0

H|T - EEFAR RERTEE
REEEREE BARFRUERE

MEBHENRREMN  BALEED
BRERIIERZEABEOBRES
R EkER MELERE A&
EMASCEBREEEFRSREH
HEBHMERIL NEKN - AR TR
REIEREZBERBAEABNES
BRMEE - AEBEEESLHEREER
ZHRATHE R & KIBRER I KERD
%?mﬁﬁmmﬁm*%ﬁﬁﬁm
ENSREREBE BERA A
EEBEBELARIIBERZENAR
BEXFREK -
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37.

38.

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (conminuep)

Transferred financial assets that are not
derecognized in their entirety (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has not
recognised any gain or loss on the date of transfer of the
Derecognised Bills. No gains or losses were recognised from the
Continuing Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively.
The discounting and endorsement has been made evenly
throughout the year.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial

instruments reasonably approximate to fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, trade and bills payables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, the interest-bearing bank
borrowings and amounts due to related parties approximate to

their carrying amounts.

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team reports directly to the
chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the corporate
finance team analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer.
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conminueD)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

During the year, there was no transfer of fair value
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into
or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities
(2018: Nil).

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair
value, grouped into Level 1 to 3 based on the degree to which
the fair value is observable.

- Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

38.

TRIENARERQIAE
=)

TREERBENAOABENAERR
577 (A FRHEEERIN) EA
RZPZTANARZEBRAR -

FRNEMEENSRMAERIALE
2RAREFEZENEES - IE
A E N EIRMIER(20184F ¢
/7)o

TERRBBEBURERERAAE
HAEVREBEAAEMNAERIEE Y
MEAEFI1E23MMNEM T AEDN -

— BRAREHEENIERE
ESE AR ERTNWE
(RIERE) B -

— FE2RAREFEEREER(A
ER)EER (N ERAERS
B BABE(F1RMERE
MEEXRBENABRERER
ST o

— FEIRRAAREFEDNEMHER
MatESH  EPERARE
EXRBEIFERABEMS
BB (TR BREABR) O
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuED)

Financial asset and liabilities measured at fair

value
Level 1
1R
RMB'000
AR¥T T
Assets BE
Contingent consideration FEW AR E
receivables
Liabilities =L

Derivative financial instruments $T4 &g T E

38. ERMIAMARERAAE

=EE D)

BRARERENEREERAERS

2019
20195
Level 2 Level 3
E2i B3
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

234,425

Total

gt
RMB’000
AR%T

234,425

2018
20184
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ERFY EPE E3R st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AR®ETT AR®T:R
Assets 8E
Contingent consideration FE WSk AR (E
receivables - - 226,318 226,318
Liabilities =0
Derivative financial instruments $T4 & & T & - - 2,521 2,521
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 38. €T AN AARBERAAE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conminueDp) B &)

Financial asset and liabilities measured at fair BARBENENEREENRERE

value (Continued) (#)
Fair value of financial liabilities that are not measured at fair WIEERAABEFE(EAELARE
value (but fair value disclosure are required): BEINemBEARE

Level 1

1R

RMB’000
AR®T T

Convertible loan

A A S R >

2019
20195
Level 2 Level 3
E2AH 34
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T R AR¥ET T

= 96,696

Total

#et
RMB'000
AR¥T T

96,696

2018
20184
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1 F24 £38% st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR¥BTR
Convertible loan ARREN - - 149,559 149,559
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuED)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

The fair value of the contingent consideration relating to the
acquisition of Jennifer Convertibles Inc. is determined based on
the expected payment, discounted to present value using a
risk-adjusted discount rate of 2.52%.

The fair value of contingent consideration is determined by an
independent external valuer based on the latest financial
forecast of the acquired subsidiaries and other relevant
information.

The movement during the year in the balance of Level 3 fair

value measurement is as follows:

38.

TRMTANARERARE
=)

BRAEIMARETFENESR

A 8 U 8% Jennifer Convertibles Inc.
B ARERREERRR AR
IR K2 52% i BB SRR IR =3
BET °

HARRERRETIHBULINBEE

B AR 2% P U B8 BT 1B & B) O S 3 B 7%
BRIREMBEENERE -

FRAFIRAAEFEEHRNEE

pall]

2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Continent consideration HARE
At 1 January ®1A1H 226,318 -
Fair value change on contingent SARREBRAAREEF

consideration 5,257 2,799
Acquisition of subsidiary e B Bt 8 2 7] = 214,507
Exchange realignment ME 3, 38 B 2,850 9,012
At 31 December 125318 234,425 226,318

For the movement of derivative financial instruments, please

refer to note 28.
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 38. €T AN AARBERAAE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conminueDp) B &)

Information about Level 3 fair value BEHEFINAAETENER(£)

measurements (Continued)

RRBEMRAKEEMS © HA

The fair value change on contingent consideration is included

in “Other income and gains” in the consolidated statement of REAREEZHF AGE Bz A
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for asset held at fib 2 T U 2 2% A9 [ HL WG A B W &
the end of reporting period. A o

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of derivative financial MR2019F12A31H  fTEe@T
instruments of Nil (2018: approximately RMB2,521,000). The BERAAREAZ(2018F : HARE

~N

fair value of derivative and liability component of convertible ,521,0007T) ° A[#AAR & RITA K
loan was valued by an independent valuer. It was calculated by BEBOORREHBE LEERME
B DEBEMSENERGT AT

discounting the future cash-flow at market rate and including

some unobservable inputs. See note 28 for the detailed
information and the movement of the fair value of derivative

financial instruments.

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the

THESRBABBEMRERKRSR
Bt E - ABITESRITANGE
MRarEEE  FLHME28 -

AT T & f T AKERRG

B kTR H AR

key inputs to the valuation of derivative financial instruments:

Significant
Valuation unobservable
technique inputs 2018
RERN SEAXTITEEHARE 2018%F
Derivative financial instruments and Discounted Risk-free rate 1.76%
convertible loan cash flow method
MESBMTARAIBRRKRER MR EREE 2 [ i )
Volatility 48.36% 43.59%
R
Discount rate 13.33% 13.13%
AL IR &
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES ~ 39. #i#ERERE B ERBEE

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and
pledged deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade and bills receivables and trade and bills payables, which

arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The directors review and agree policies for

managing each of these risks and they are summarized below.

Interest rate risk Interest rate risk exposure refers to the risk
that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s bank
loans will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
As at 31 December 2019, if interest rates at that date had been
10 basis points higher with all other variables held constant,
profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 would have been
RMB163,000 (2018: RMB81,000) and RMB22,000 (2018:
RMB40,000) higher arising as a result of a decrease in the fair
value of fixed and floating rate bank loans respectively. If
interest rates at that date had been 10 basis points lower with
all other variables held constant, profit for the year ended 31
December 2019 would have been RMB163,000 (2018:
RMB81,000) and RMB22,000 (2018: RMB401,000) lower
arising as a result of an increase in the fair value of fixed and
floating rate bank loans respectively.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES ~ 39. BiiEERE B ERBR#)

AND POLICIES (conminueD)
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk means the risk on the fluctuation of fair
value or future cash flows of financial instruments which arose

from changes in exchange rates.

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units in

currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in the exchange rates of currencies other than
the functional currencies of the relevant operating units, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before
tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities). There is no material impact on other components of

SME LB

SNERBESBIANAABRK
R 2R E R E X5 MKE

LA
i

o o
ZN

AEEAZRRZEERR - ZER
R IRAKEEMIABLANYEEE
MM ERETEEMESE °

TEREAEREEMEERFT T E
MBERT BB (HBEKEEMHY
EEEBBRINERTNAIEA EZ Y
AEERBANGN(EREBEER
BENAREER) EREST
AEEEEHEMBOTEZHE

the Group's equity. N2

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) in
in exchange (loss)/profit
Rates before tax
BRBE Al

ExEH (BE) HF

(FR) & CRL)

% RMB’000
AR¥T T
2019 2019%
If RMB weakens against US$ i AR H T E 5,584
If RMB strengthens against US$ MARKNETHE (5,584)
2018 20184
If RMB weakens against US$ MARNFETRE 5 18,855
If RMB strengthens against US$ MARBHETHE (5) (18,855)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

39.

202

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (conminuep)

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from bank balances
and deposits, trade receivables, deposit and other receivables.
The carrying amounts of these balances represent the Group’s

maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk is
considered to be low as the counterparties are reputable banks.
The existing counterparties do not have defaults in the past.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of cash at bank is assessed
to be close to zero and no provision was made as of 31
December 2019.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected credit loss for all trade
receivables and general model provision for all deposits and
other receivables. To measure the expected credit losses by
applied simplified approach, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics. The Group
has performed historical analysis and identified the key
economic variables impacting credit risk and expected credit
loss. For the deposits and other receivables, the Group assessed
the expected loss rate by applying general model. The expected
credit loss rate under general model was determined by
referencing of the market credit rating data and the probability
of default rate. It considers available reasonable and supportive

forwarding-looking information.

As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables that are individually
significant have been separately assessed for impairment. The
Group makes periodic assessments on the recoverability of the
receivables based on the background and reputation of the

customers, historical settlement records and past experience.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES ~ 39. BiiEERE B ERBR#)

AND POLICIES (conminuep)
Credit risk (continued)

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received from individual
customers in relation to manufacture and sales of sofa, sofa
covers and other furniture products and are transacted in cash
or credit. The Group's trade receivables arise from manufacture
and sales of sofa, sofa covers. As at the end of the year, the
top five debtors and the largest debtor accounted for
approximately of 75.8% and 45.2% (2018: 67.7% and 27.0%)
of the Group’s trade receivables balance. In view of the history
of business dealings with the debtors and the sound collection
history of the receivables due from them, management believes
that there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding receivable balance due from these debtors saved
for the debtor related to the impaired trade receivable disclosed
in the below. Management makes periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables based on
historical payment records, the length of overdue period, the
financial strength of the debtors and whether there are any
disputes with the debtors.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade receivables

are due within 30 to 120 days from the date of billing.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the Group's

different customer bases.

FERREE)

REBRBH WK G MHEAEE K
EEFHENENER - PBEE
FEMEREERURSREEET
G e AEEMNE S EWREEE
BEXEREEDERDEE - RNF
R AREBAREREBLAML
AEBEZFRERWREBELE S 5L
75.8% % 45.2% (20184 : 67.7%
227.0%) - ERBEEBFARNBAE
MEXSREWRESENFTIBHNZR
WELs  EEEEERAEEEK
ZEBBANKRERERFHIBL S
WHEEAMBEREFEERR - HHETX
FrEBREREEZERKIEE BN
BEFEABRI - EEEBRBEEEAD
BENRLEE  AHKE BBHE
HREBEEAZBEESFEEMA
o BB S RHAMERGRIEN AU
O]V # 17 F BRRT Al o

AEESMETEHRBR -T2 EN
EENEPETHEIEETH - %
ETFEEEIREFPIHANTRNBA
RERBEROINED  TEEEF
BEPREPKEMTLERRR
BREEER - B 5 EIKIERN
ZEAH#EET30= 1208 R EH -

AEBERBSERHRBEEBE
MEEHEE S RUGRIANEIRR
B PHEcBEECHABRERESNE -
HRAEENEEEERELRY
BRI TREFOMNEEENA
EXZR  HREBEAHBEREDW
EERBYEZAKSETREFE
RIEE—TERD -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A M AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (conminuep)

Credit risk (continued)

Provision of ECL on trade receivables

On that basis, the provision of trade receivables as at 31

December 2019 and 31 December 2018 was determined as

follows:

30. EREMEEBEERBE£)

EERK(E)

B S RWIEE B EEBIERE
R EE . R2019F12A31B R
2018F 12 A31HKE 5 B RIERE
HEENT :

More than
1 day but less More than
than 1 year 1 year
31 December 2019 No past due past due past due
AHEB1A okt
2019512A318 ES L BHME BB1F
Expected credit loss rate BHEEEEX 0.26% 4.10% 100%
Gross carrying amount REAE
(RMB'000) (AR®TFT)
— Trade receivables - B HRNFR 94,286 128,163 12,398 234,847
Provision for life time ECL ZHRHEERR
B (236) (5,195) (12,398) (17,829)
More than
1 day but less More than
than 1 year 1 year
31 December 2018 No past due past due past due Total
AR A k=i
20185124318 KB BORIE HBiEE st
Expected credit loss rate EHEEEEX 0.06% 1.14% 100%
Gross carrying amount REAE
(RMB'000) (AR®T)
— Trade receivables —Z S WA 489,609 143,482 318 633,409
Provision for life time ECL ZHEREEBE
B (304) (1,631) (318) (2,253)
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A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
B E2019F 1231 HILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (conminuep)
Credit risk (continued)

Provision of ECL on trade receivables (Continued)
The provision of ECL for trade receivables as at 31

2019 and 2018 reconcile to the loss allowance as foll

30. EREMEEBEERBE£)

EERK(E)

RN BTEREEBEREE)
MN20194 & 201812 A31HKWE
SN EEHEEBERERE

December

As at 1 January 2018
Provision for the year
Written off for the year

OWS:
BEENYEERNT
RMB’000
ARET T
M2018F1 818 519
FRRER 1,826
FEME (92)

As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019

Provision for the year

MR20185F 128318 K2019F1A1R
FEAE

2,253
15,576

As at 31 December 2019

2019412 A31H 17,829

Provision of ECL on deposits and other receivabl

The provision for deposits and other receivables as at
31 December 2019 and 2018 reconcile to the loss allowance as

follows:

1z MEAEWGIETE R B B8RS
20194 K% 2018F 12 A31 HM %
e REMBERREREABERE
REERAT

es

RMB’000
AR®T

As at 1 January 2018
Provision for the year

R2018F1A1H
FEEE

66
12

As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019
Provision for the year

M2018F12HA31H K2019%F1A81H
FEBE

As at 31 December 2019

MR2019%12A31H

R ER AR 2019, .ﬁ%ﬁ



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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BRI EE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (conminuep)
Credit risk (Continued)

Deposit and other receivables

Other receivables relating to accounts that are long overdue
with significant amounts, known insolvencies or nonresponse
to collection activities, they are assessed individually for
impairment allowance. The Group recognised the provision for
expected credit losses by assessing the credit risk characteristics
of debtor, discount rate and the likelihood of recovery and
considering the prevailing economic conditions.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objectives are to maintain a prudent financial
policy, to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to
maintain a contingency plan for funding to ensure that the
Group maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual
rates and based on rates at the end of the reporting period)
and the earliest date that the Group could be required to

repay:

39. I EREERE

ERBR(#)

FEREE)

B e K B A UK IR
HEMBANNEANFE ESHES
EEIARE @ Qﬁﬁ@ﬁ%%
FEROEMEWHIR - §EBF
EREREE - $%Iﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%
AREER R - BHR X kU
B AT BEME I E B E B RO B IR
EREHEEERRE -

RBE S E

$EIE’JETE7%%%%’I‘EE’JE7T%BZ

CURBERREEERDES
tl:$)§2,%@#r§iﬁi cxT & o fe i i
RAEEEARRSEINERDE

TRHAVNAEEN SR ABN RS
HARNBRTAOINHBER - HR
ﬁ%/ﬁ\rﬂ]*ﬁﬁiﬁfii/mg(’F‘]?E@iﬁﬁ/\
HNERRBREAROFEGFHE
BB ST ) K A &R B AT i 2 SR AN R
WP EBMEL

Within 1 year or on demand

Trade and bills payables
Financial liabilities included in other

payable and accruals MEREE
Amount due to related companies e RN B FRIE
Amount due to a shareholder FE S PR 18
Derivative financial instruments MTESRMIE

Lease liabilities HESE
Convertible loan Al E R
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITER

BHRNFARENRRE
FEARMEN AR ERTE R

MMEARRER
2019 2018
201945 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
389,334 416,766
63,240 126,331
80,310 81,959
10,107 9,978
= 2,521
58,423 -
103,798 181,372
220,815 142,197
926,027 961,124
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. iR EEBERBEK (&)
AND POLICIES (conminuep)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REBEE R (Z)

After 1 year
but within 2 years

1225 R
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Lease liabilities HEARE 48,712 -
Convertible loan AR E R 9,975 -

58,687 -

After 2 years
but within 5 years
2E5F R
2019 2018

20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT
Lease liabilities HEEE 86,525 -

After 5 years
HBiB5F
2019 2018

20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT
Lease liabilities HESE 77,742 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MEHRRMEE (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE
39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. Bi%REKREEEERBEK (&)
AND POLICIES (conminueD)
Capital management EoER
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are AEBESEENEZHERIRE
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern REEMFELEE N URER
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its BRENESHEE  UXIFEER -
business.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments AEERBEERENELIRER
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or MARBEAREE REFIAEER
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend REE AEBEAEERETRR
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue R BIELE AR - MBREBREENR
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies REITHIAR G - BlZ=20194F 2018
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 FI12A3MBIEFEE  BEBEAXNE
December 2019 and 2018. % BRSEF B E
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is the AEBUNEEEBRELERERHAEE
total interest-bearing bank borrowings divided by the total K EFEBRITERAERUER
equity. Total equity refers to equity attributable to owners of BE o R BREEARAEA AR
the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting hiEm REREHRNEERRE
periods were as follows: tEEmT -
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T R ARBFIT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note 25) &t B4R 7T K (FE25) 220,815 142,197
Equity attributable to owners of the
Company RRTEE AR ER 197,229 367,321
Gearing ratio BEBELE 38.7%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 40. MEMEBREE

Pursuant to the disclosed and connected transaction
announcement of the Company dated 31 March 2020, the
Company has exercised the put option to require the seller to
repurchase all the issued common stock of Jennifer Convertibles
Inc. at the exit price of US$35 million.

Impact of COVID-19 on the Group

Since January 2020, the outbreak of Novel Coronavirus
(“COVID-19") has impact on the global business environment.
Up to the date of this announcement, COVID-19 has not
resulted in material impact to the Group. Amid the
development and spread of COVID-19 subsequent to the date
of this announcement, further changes in economic conditions
for the Group arising thereof may have impact on the financial
results of the Group, the extent of which could not be
estimated as at the date of this report. The Group will keep
continuous attention on the situation of the COVID-19 and
react actively to its impact on the financial position and

operating results of the Group.

RIEAR D7 BB S202045F 3 A 31
ANETEBRBLRBEISZAE &K
NAIBITERAEERE  EXEA
¥ EE358 &% BElennifer
Convertibles Inc. 2 HE ZITE B
% -

COVID- 198 AR EHRFE

B2020F 1A TABRES
([COVID-19 |) 13 B ¥ 2 Ik & 7 IR
BERYE BEARAEHE -
COVID-19 ¥ K ¥ A~ & B #& X =
AFE RARESHHE  BE
COVID-19M) BB RYER - RILEAE
Ry — B AOEMR RSB e A E
ENMBEEELEYE  ERER
ARIpERHE LG - AEEBE
FERECOVID-19M1IE N - TEiRE Y
HASET KRR REEEED

o

hus3
=F

H
H
=
=

g
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 12A31 HILFE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE ~ 41.

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

ZNNSILE T O

BRAARRREHE RO M BN

REOERIMT -

2019
20194
RMB’000
AR%T T

240,860

77,203
1,044

78,247

Non-current asset kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RARRIEE
Current assets RBEE

Amount due from subsidiaries FEU B B A R 3 TE
Cash and cash equivalents RehBEeEEY
Total current assets MEEERE
Current liabilities RBAE

Other payables and accruals
Amount due to related companies
Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Hip 5B R BT E A
FE& I B8 2 B 3R
FHBRTTIE

99,986

203,847

(125,600)

115,260

9,602

105,658

6,914
98,744

Derivative financial instruments TESMIT A
Convertible loan Al E
Total current liabilities mEBERTE
Net current liabilities REBEEEE
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERRBER
Non-current liability FREBAE
Convertible loan Al E
Net assets BEEFE
Equity R

Share capital [N

Reserves (note) ()
Total equity g

105,658

-
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2018
20184
RMB’000
ARBTIT

240,853

205,441
171

205,612

7,823
103,223
6,589
2,521
181,372

301,528

(95,916)

144,937

144,937

6,914
138,023

144,937



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#E2019F 1231 HIFFE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE ~ 41. RA BB BRI 3R (47)

COMPANY (conTINUED)
Note: B EE
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RARMRERRAT
Retained
Exchange earnings/
Share Treasury  fluctuation (accumulated
premium Shares reserve losses) Total
EXEE KREERM
RDEE EFRA #E  (ReHE8) st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETRT ARBFT ARBTT
As at 31 December 2017 H2017%F12A31H 211,900 - (13,738) 16,563 214,725
Loss for the year FAERE - - - (36,812) (36,812)
Other comprehensive income FRHEM B :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BREP B WK
translation of financial N =
statements - - 7,597 - 7,597
Total comprehensive loss FANEEEERTE
for the year - - 7,597 (36,812) (29,215)
Divided paid AR S (47,487) - - - (47,487)
As at 31 December 2018 2018 12A31H 164,413 - (6,141) (20,249) 138,023
Loss for the year FREE - - - (25,086) (25,086)
Other comprehensive loss FAHAMZEERE :
for the year:
Exchange differences on translation 12 & Bf #% K &9
of financial statements i =R - - (582) - (582)
Total comprehensive loss FANEEEEETE
for the year - - (582) (25,086) (25,668)
Share repurchased B LR G5 - (2,269) - - (2,269)
Dividend paid BEfI’RE (11,342) - - - (11,342)
At as 31 December 2019 2019 12A318 153,071 (2,269) (6,723) (45,335) 98,744
42. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 42, Bi#sR&zRZE

S mE O N202065 AsHEESE
Gz TR -

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 8 May 2020.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TEMBHRE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 H31 HIFFE

The consolidated results of Morris Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2019 and the consolidated assets and liabilities
of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and 2019 are those set out in
the audited financial statements.

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for each of the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016 and of the consolidated
assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and 2016
has been extracted from the prospectus issued on 30 December
2016 in connection with the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 12
January 2017.

The summary below does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

HZE2018F N2019F12A31BIEFE -
ERERBERAG(TRAT ) RERBER
A(TXHEAIRNER|)MiEA EEUU
FAREBER2018F &2019F 12 A31HH
%éé\ﬁé&ﬁ%iaﬁﬁuﬁé,@%ffzaﬁ%i&%

AEBEZ=2015F X2016F 12 A31H
EEFENGREEEMEUARTEER
2015F N2016F 12 A31BENGAEE R
BENEEEARTARMDBE2017F1 A
NAREBBERSHAER AR ER LT
Fr 2 B 122016412 A30 B Y4B R

R

VAT B 22 3 A 18 A 2 A B 75 SRk B9 — &6

7]

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
20194 20185 20175 20164 20155
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
INGLETW ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(Restated)
(m=51)
RESULTS S
Revenue oN 980,298 1,610,043 1,416,395 941,617 926,471
Cost of sales HEMA (yrbak)l (1,181,999) (937,864) (671,050) (705,557)
Gross profit EF 103,087 428,044 478,531 270,567 220,914
(Loss)/profit before tax BEA(ER)/8H (178,943) 100,286 184,043 112,045 103,166
Income tax credit/(expense) FiEHEe/ (%) 38,253 (13,881) (38,348) (31,369) (20,098)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER)/EH (140,690) 86,405 145,695 80,676 83,068
As at 31 December
R12A318
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
20194 20185 20175 20164 20155
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
INGLEM ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(restated)
(m=51)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BEE 1,344,964 1,432,152 1,142,847 1,102,005 937,359
Total liabilities BEE (1147,997) BERX:ER)! (802,688) (943,241) (862,302)
196,967 367,321 340,159 158,764 75,057
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